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2006 WAS A BIG YEAR FOR US in terms of both earnings and growth.
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WESTIET IS CANADA'S LEADING LOW-FARE AIRLINE and is based in Calgary, Atberta, At year-end 2006, WestJet employed 5,970 people,
ang carried 11.2 millisn guests to its 23 Canadian destinations of Victoria, Comox, Vancouver, Abbotsford/Fraser Valley, Prince George,
Kelowna, Grande Prairie, Calgary, Edmonton, Fort McMurray, Saskatoon, Regina, Winnipeg, Thunder Bay, Londan, Hamilton, Terento,
Ottawa, Montréal, Moncton, Charlotietown, Halifax and 51. John's, its 11 American destinations of Honolulu {seasonal), Maui {seasonall,
Los Angeles, Palm Springs [seasonal), Las Vegas, Phoenix [seasanat), Tampa, Orlando, Fort Myers, Fort Lauderdale and West Palm Beach,
' and its first international destination of Nassau, Bahamas. As at December 31, 2006, West let's fleet consisied of 63 Boeing 737 aircraft.
, WeslJet is publicly traded on the Toronto Stock Exchange under the symbols WJAand WJAA,
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THE FUTURE BECAME DISTINCTLY BRIGHTER for both West Jet and the airline industry.




West et welcomes you aboard.

We are happy to serve you our 2006
results, activities, financials and
forecasts today. Especially after

a year of record-breaking profits.

WELCOME ABOARD
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ALICIA BURTON I YANICK HARRISON

Flight Attendant Flight Attendant

We would also like to take this opportunity to showcase our
friendly and diligent people whose accomplishments have given
us an extraordinary story to tell.

If at any time during your read you wish to simply relax and enjoy
the scenery, we encourage you to take in the view on your left.
There you will get a breathtaking snapshot of how things appear
from our vantage point at 40,000 feet.

For a closer view, please turn your attention to the task at hand:
the discussion and in-depth analys:s of our achievermnents and
success in 2006.

Both offer an impressive overview of an airline that is spreading
its wings and poised to increase its value in the years to come.

Once again, we thank you for investing or considering to invest
in WestJet and we hope you have a pleasant read.




FERTILE

AT THE END OF 2004, our netf earnings grew by 378 per cent to $114.7 million.




FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

WestJet Airlines Ltd.

Selected Consolidated Financial Data lin Thousands of Dollars, Except Per Share Datal

Consolidated Operating Statistics
Revenue
Earnings before incorme taxes

Net earnings {loss)

Earnings lloss) per share
Basic
Dituted

Consolidated Operating Statistics
Revenue Passenger Miles (RPM]
Available Seat Miles (ASM)

Load Factar

Yield i¢)

Revenue per ASM (¢

Operating cost per ASM {¢]
Average stage length [miles)
Cost per passenger mile (¢]
Segment guests

Fuel consumption [litres|

Fuel cost per litre [¢]

Number of full-time-equivalent employees

at year-end
Fleet size at year-end

2006

$ 1,773,686
$ 164,481

$ 114476

$ c.88
% .88

2006

9,791 878,403
12524379943
78%

18.1

14.2

126

833

16.1
11,168,027
617,963,429
68.9

4974
63

2005

% 1,392,762
% 51975

$ 24001

% 0.1%

2005

7,957,738,384
10.672,983,797
75%

17.5

13.0

12.5

802

16.8
9,423,279
552,382,525
6.1

4,285
54

2004

$ 1.057.213
$  (15976)

$  (17.168)

$ [0.14)
(0.14)

+r

2004

6,277,332.668
8,963,103,389
70%

14.8

11.8

1.4

758

16.2
7,835,677
490,782,605
49.2

4,024
54

2003
$ 863323
$ 97395
$ 6053%
$ 052
$ 052

2003

4,852.506,652
6,871,715,636
1%

17.8

12.6

10.9

659

15.4
6,978.815
397.613.173
39.2

3.396
44

2002
$ 683,388
$  B2.844
$ 51,780
% 0.47
$ 0.46

2002

3.406,663,632
4,650,990,031
73%

201

14.7

124

552

17.2
5,861,068
305,600,565
36.6

2,710
35

Mote 1: For comparative purposes, impairment lass of $47,577,000 included in depreciation and amerlizalion expensa has been excluded fram unit cosl calculations for 2004,

OPERATIONAL TERMS EXPLAINED:

REVENUE PASSENGER MILES: A measure of passenger traffic, calculaled as the number of revenue passengers, multiplied by the total distance flown.

AVAILABLE SEAT MILES: A measure of lotal passenger capacity, calculated by multiplying the total number of seats available for sale by the total distance flown.

LOAD FACTOR: A measure of total capacily utilization, calcutaled as the proportion of total available seat miles occupied by revenue passengers.

YIELD [REVENUE PER REVENUE PASSENGER MILE); A measure of unit revenue, calculated as the gross revenue generated per revenue passenger mile.

CASM [COST PER AVAILABLE SEAT MILE]: Operating expenses divided by available seat miles.
RASM [REVENUE PER AVAILABLE SEAT MILE): Tolal revenue divided by available seat miles.

Revenue IMILLIONS OF DOLLARS)

2000

| 2042 2003 2004 2005
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IT WAS A YEAR OF MILESTONES. We recorded four record quarters of profit, and we went international, adding the Bahamas to our growing
list of destinations.




Hi, I'm Sean Durfy, President of WestJet.

We're expecting sunny skies this year.
Perfect for enjoying views like the one
on your left. And if you think that's
breathtaking, wait till you see our
business landscape. Allow me to give

you a quick overview,

PRESIDENT'S MESSAGE
TO SHAREHOLDERS
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SEAN DURFY
Fresident

As president, to reflect on WestJet's performance throughout
2006 is a privilege. This was a momentous year for our airline,
highlighted by significant growth, record earnings, industry-
leading performance and award-winning standards.

This 12-month journey began with the cost-conscious retirement
of cur last 200-series aircraft and ended with record net
earnings and fourth quarter results. Through a focused and
collective commitment, we controlled costs and improved
profitability, increasing shareholder value for all WestJet
owners, with earnings increasing to 88 cents a share in 2006, a
netable improvement compared to 19 cents in 2005,

We took to the skies in 1996, with 200 employees and three
aircraft. After a decade of flight, our business landscape is
breathtaking. Qur domestic market share increased to 35 per
cent, measured in revenue passenger miles, by the end of 2005,
and is expected to reach 37 per cent in 2007. Having entered the
transborder market in 2004 and now the international market
in 2006, both continue to develop as important and profitable
aspects of our business with enormous growth potential.
As we establish our name in the U.S. and build a scheduled
network that meets the dernands of our guests, we are seeing
an excellent return on that investment.

Along with our aggressive growth, we have maintained our
commitment to providing an exceptional guest experience, as
delivered by our 5,990 WestJetters. In addition to our focus on
guest experience, we are also committed to industry-leading
operational performance. In fact, at the end of 2004, out of the




airtines that report operational performance, WestJet was one
of only two North American airlines 1o rank in the top five on
key performance measures of on-time performance, completion
rate and baggage.

Throughout 2006, we locked for ways to improve our product
and launch sustainable initiatives for future profitability; cne
such initiative was WestJet Vacations. Much like our transborder
service, which started to prosper in its second year, we expect to
see great things from WestJet Vacations in 2007 and beyond.

Avacation company is a logical product expansion for West Jet.
With the cost of air travel and the ability to produce high margins
being the biggest struggle for Canadian tour operators, WestJet
Vacations has a clear advantage. Leveraging WestJet's aircraft,
network, loyal guest base and exceptional guest service, while
operating with the same low-cost madel, WestJet Vacations
has the potential to become the premier vacation provider for
Canadians and our U.S. friends coming to Canada.

The addition of Nassau, Bahamas to eur network brought
WestJet to the international market, benefiting cur seasonal
business and enhancing WestJet Vacations. Sun destinations
will continue to be part of our network growth, with the launch
of Nassau and West Palm Beach bringing cur total number of
transborder and international destinations te 12. This is also
part of our fleet deployment strategy te {it the travel demands
of our guests - flying where they want to go when they want
to go there. These vacation spots lessen our costs through
the increased utilization of our aircraft, as they fly at alternate
heurs te cur domestic routes and spread costs over greater
distances.

After a decade of leadership that created a strong and vibrant
company, 20046 was an appropriate time for transition at the
executive level. Most notable was the retirement of Sandy
Campbell, CFO, and the transition of Clive Beddoe to Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer. | accepted the role of President
in September 2004, having previously held the position of
Executive Vice-President, Marketing, Sales and Airports. When
it came time to add to our executive team, we didn’t have to lock
beyond the walls of WestJet. Three of our newest Executive Vice-
Presidents, Bob Cummings, Hugh Dunleavy and Ken McKenzie,
represent our culture, which is embraced at all levels of the
organization, as well as possess the knowledge and business
savvy required for our growing business. Qur CFO left big
shoes to fill, and we took the time necessary to find the right
replacement; | am pleased to welcome Vito Culmone to the role
of Chief Financial Officer and Executive Vice-President, Finance.
We were fortunate in the interim to have two exceptional
individuals, Derek Payne and Janice Paget, valued contributors
to our organization for many years, to share the role of CFOC.

We have identified a corporate
vision that by 2016 WestJet will be
one of the five most successful
international airlines in the world
providing our guests with a friendly
and caring experience that will
change air travel forever.

We are searching for our new Executive Vice-President for cur
People department. We believe this position will be easily filled
as our culture puts a tremendous emphasis on people, giving a
human resources prefessional an opportunity to truly shine.

In 2004, Don MacDonald, a leng-time member of our Board
of Directors, stepped down. Brett Godfrey, CED, Virgin Blue
Airlines of Australia, joined the group. Mr. Godfrey has over 10
years of airline experience, specifically in the low-cost sector
and is a welcome addition to the team. | would like to thank
Don for his valued contribution to the Board of Directors over
the past several years.

Our success throughout 2006 was not without turbulence. We
were reminded of the difficulties of our industry when anather
competitor withdrew scheduled service in the face of rising
costs and other airlines experienced the threat of bankruptey.

Fluetuations in fuel prices were a challenge for atl industries
that have a large portion of their costs rooted in the price of
oil. We are fortunate that our low-cost structure and our fuel-
efficient fleet offset the instability of jet fuel costs throughout
the year,

We settled our dispute with Air Canada, ending all tegal
proceedings between the companies. The setilement resulted
ir $5 million in legal fees and $10 million being donated, in the
name of WestJet and Air Canada, to children’s charities across
the celntry.

Throughout 2006, we continued work on our new reservation
system. Following the difficult decision, in early 2007, to suspend
implementation, we will take part of this year to renegotiate the
terms of our agreement. Creating a seamless guest experience
is avital part of our business, ene that we will not compromise
as we upgrade to a newer version of Open Skies, Qur husiness
planis, and will remain, on track as we add functionality to the
system we are currently using.

2006 | Westiet Annual Report




When | first assumed the role of president, | was most commenly
asked, whal challenges do you see WestJet facing in the future?
My response was that | don't see challenges, | see opportunities.
We have the opporiunity to define our strategies and remain
steadfast in our commitment to creating sharehclder value.
We have the opportunity to grow and develop exciting new
markets and products. And we have the opportunity to attract
and retain the best and brightest people through empowerment,
accountability and ownership.

We have identified a corporate vision that by 2016 WestJet will
be one of the five most successful international airiines in the
world providing our guests with a friendly and caring experience
that will change air travel forever.

We plan to deliver this vision by focusing on the four most
fundamental pillars of our business: revenue, cost. guests and
people.

« Our revenue strategy relies on financial performance and
grewth, We will achieve an average annual compound grewth
rate in available seat miles of at least 10 per cent, through
continued fleet expansion; commercialization of our schedule;
expansion of domestic, transborder and international
destinations; WestJet Yacations and selling ancillary products
and services.

Our cost strategy is to maintain our law-cost modet and grow
aur margins, having the lowest equivalent sustainabie cost per
available seat mile, excluding fuel, in North America. We will
achieve this through a sustained focus on cost control, cost
reduction and increased fleet utilization.

Our ability to deliver an amazing guest experience is achieved
through our industry-leading performance. We will centinue
to achieve top five North American on-time performance,
completion and baggage rates. Moreover, our differentiating
service, delivered by our friendly and caring front-line
WestJetters, will be nurtured and sustained.

We will build our unique corporate culture by investing
and fostering the growth, develepment and commitment of
our people by providing the proper training and tools and
creating a fun and positive work environment. Our competitive
campensation plan includes employee profit share and
participation in employee share purchase plan.

We look forward to delivering on these objectives throughout
2007.

Looking back on aur journey through 2004, | am praud of all we
have accomplished. We celebraied 10 years in business and locoked
back at a decade of service that truly changed Canadian air travel
forever. The next 10 years will be just as exciling as we offer our
award-winning services in new markets with new products.

2006 | WestJet Annual Report

PATTI FOWLER ‘ BRAD FOWLER

Sales Super Agent Sales Super Agent

With a commitment to operational improvernents, lowering
costs angd improving profitability, we are striving for financial
stability through smoocth and turbutent market conditions. We
are setting standards that will benefit cur sharehalders, our
people and our guests.

Our 2004 results are a testament to the hard work and dedication
of our 5,990 people across Canada. Our company was founded
on the principal "take care of the people and they will take care
of the guest.” Eleven years later, we still find this to be true.
We were honoured to be recognized as Canada’s Most Admired
Corporate Culture for the second year in a row and thank our
dedicated WestJetters for their continued commitment.

We would not be where we are today without cur shareholders
believing in us, our guests choosing to fly with us and our people
giving both a reason to do so.

Thank you for your continued support.

SEAN DURFY

President
WestJet Airlines

March ¢, 2007




DUR CARING SPIRIT SHONE THROUGH IN 2006. We donated time, money and flights ta numerous charities and communities.




If you need assistance, we will be there
to help you and not just with blankets
and headsets. In 2006, WestJet supported
over 800 community initiatives across
the country. As usual, we brought caring
from 40,000 feet right down to the

communities we serve,

SUPPORTING
OUR COMMUNITIES

2004 | WestJet Annual Report

LACEY TAYLOR
Property Coordinator

VERN ADAMS
Building Dperator

Financial success is only one leg of WestJet's 2006 journey; the
complete picture comes down (¢ people: our WestJetters, our
guests and our communities, WestJet's giving is about building
partnerships that make animpact on our communities; it is an
extension of our brand and representative of aur culture and,
within it, our commitment to caring.

Qur 2006 story would not be complete without a {ook at our
presence in the community and the spirited WestJetters who
are giving back.

WestJet’s giving first tock shape in 1994, providing the gift of
flight to various community prejects in our five origin cities.
Throughout 2006, we supported the fundraising efforts of our
23 Canadian cities by giving the gift of flight to over 700 charities
and non-profit organizations.




CHERILYN BELLAMY-FAUCHER ‘ TREENA KLAGENBERG

Specialty Sales Agent Specialty Sales Agent

Throughout 2006, we supported

the fundraising efforts of our 23

Canadian cities by giving the gift
of flight to over 700 charities and
non-profit organizations.

SUPPORTING CHILDREN'S HEALTH

In 2006, kids and kids” health was identified as the key strategic
focus for our community investment program. In 2007, this
initiative is growing into a company-wide commitment.
Recently re-branded WestJet Cares for Kids, this program
supports charities and non-profit organizations that make life
easiar for seriously ill children and their families; or promote
and advocate safe and healthy lifestyles for children and their
families. Throughout 2006, WestJet supported organizations
such as Hope Air, the Missing Children Seciety of Canada, CNIB,
Shriners Hospital for Children and other children’s hospitals.

SUPPORTING OUR PEOPLE

Since the beginning, WestJeliers have been carving out their
own initiatives. It should come as no surprise that our pecple,
who embody our unique caring spirit, use that same compassion
in their community involvement. WestJet's spirit of giving is best
exemplified by the hundreds cf employee initiatives that support
fundraising efforts and local events in their home communities.
With such a motivated and generous team of people, WestJet's
employee-driven initiatives include: adopting inner-city schools,
Big Brothers Big Sisters of Canada, the Boys and Girls Clubs
of Canada, CIBC Run for the Cure, the Canadian Red Cross,
Kidsport Canada, Relay For Life, focd and clothing drives and
meals for the homeless.

As our WestJet family continues to grow, so does the diversity
of causes in which we get involved. Our people’s dedication to
spread the WestJet culture has a profound impact on these
communities as well as our airline.

SUPPORTING CHILDREN AND
YOUTH ACROSS CANADA

In 2006, 178 charitable erganizations received a one-time
combined total of $10 million for the benefit of children and
youth across Canada.

The main recipients of the donations were the Children’s Miracle
Network, benefiting 14 pediatric hospitats, the Boys and Girls
Clubs of Canada Foundation, and the Breakfast Clubs of Canada.
Atotal of 175 other charities also received donations, 86 of which
were nominated by WestJetters.

SPONSORSHIPS

WestJet's sponsarships alse play an important role in reinforcing
our brand, perpetuating our culture and building relationships
with our communities. Throughout 2006, we took an some new
initiatives.

2006 | WestJet Annual Report




LEFT TO RIGHT: Teresa DeMare, David Nolsoe, Don Bell, Laurie Yerxa, Jeremiah Gillett, Greg Hunter and Richard Bartrem deliver toys to the Alberta Children's
Hespital in Calgary.

SUPPORTING AMATEUR SPORT

Young and proudly Canadian with a dream to succeed, WestJet
felt a natural alignment with Canadian amateur sport. We
believe the dreams of our Canadian athletes deserve to be
supported. Through our partnership with Alpine Canada Alpin
and each of Canada’s provincial ski organizations, we are the
official airline in support of Canada’s competitive alpine skiing
program through to the 2010 ski season.

SUPPORTING COMMUNITY ARTS & CULTURE

QOur Canadian cities play an impartant role in our airline’s
success. By supporting some of the premier festivats across
Canada, WestJet is sharing its spirit of fun and celebrating
local culture that fits with our brand. Now in its secend season,
the WestJet Fun'n Festival Series partnered with a number of
community events throughout 2004:

* CanWest ComedyFest in Vancouver

« Just For Laughs Festival in Montréal

» Okanagan Wine Festivals

» WestJet Festival of Friends in Hamilton
= Calgary Stampede

* HubCap Comedy Festival in Moncton

* Folklorama in Winnipeg

» Halifax International Busker Festival

* Beaches International Jazz Feslival in Toronto

2006 | Westset Annual Report

WHAT IS ON THE HORIZON?

As WestJet grows, so will our community investment activity.
As we enter new communities, we look forward to developing
partnerships and finding ways to engage our people, Qur
communities and our people put us in the sky; we are honoured
to be able to give back on the ground.




WE UPGRADED TO NEXT-GENERATION AIRCRAFT, {lying North America’'s most modern fleet.




We would now like to tell you about
some important features of this airline.
The most important one is our people
(or WestJetters as we like to call them].
You can easily locate them ~ they're
the ones with the smiles. The caring
treatment that WestJetters provided to
our guests in 2006 goes a long way to
explain the encouraging results that we

will be outlining in the pages ahead.

LILLIANE HRNCIRIK ‘ CAROQL 5T, AMOUR

Payrell, Manager Payroil, Team Lead

MANAGEM ENT'S D |SCUSS|O N Westtet's 2006 financial overview tells a compelling story.

Favourable revenue growth, continued cost controt and an

AN D A N A LYS I S 0 F increasing demand for our product produced consistently strong

financial results throughout the year. In 2006, we generated an

FI NAN C |A|_ R ES U I_TS 11.2% operating margin, 4.8 points higher than in 2005, and one

of the best cperating margins in the North American airline

2006 AT A GLANCE industry.

Our strong performance began in the first quarter of 2006, with
prefits that surpassed any other first quarterin ocur history. The
momentum generated from the success of this period carried
through te the remaining quarters of the year where we also
realized record earnings. We completed the year with net
earnings of $114.7 million for the full year 2005.

FORWARD-LOOKING INFCRMATION Certain information set forth in this document, including management's assessment o WeslJet's tuture plans and operations, contains forward-
looking stalements. These forward looking statements typically conlain the words “anticipate,” “believe] “estimate,” “intend” “expect, “may.” “will,” “sheuld” er other similar terms. By their
nature, forward-locking statements are subject to numerous risks and uncerlainties, some of which are beyond WestJet's control, including the impact of general economic conditions,
changing damestic and international industry conditians, velatility of luel prices, terrorism, currency fluctuations, interest rates, competitian from other industry participants lincluding
new entrants, and generally as to capacity Iluctuations and pricing environment], labour matters, governmenl regulation, stock-market volatility and the ability lo access suflicient capilal
from internal end external sources. Readers are cautioned that managemenl's expeclations, estimates, projections and assumptions used in the preparation of such information. although
considered reasanable at the tirne of preparation, may prove to be impregise and, as such, undue reliance should nol be placed on lorward-leoking stalements. WestJot's actual results,
performance or achievernents could dilfer materially lrom those expressed in, or implied by, these forward-looking statements. Additional infermation relaling ta WestJet, including Annual
Information Forms and financial statements, is lecated on SEDAR al www.scdar.com. To supplement its censelidated financial stalements presenled in occordance with Canadian generally
accepled accounting principles [GAAPI, the Company uses various non-GAAP performance measures, including available seat mile JASMI, cost per available seat rrile [CASM| detined
as operaling expenses divided by available scal miles, revenue per available seat mile [RASM] delined as lotal revenue divided by available seat miles, revenue per revenuc passenger
mile {"yietd"] defined as total revenue divided by revenue passenger miles, operating revenues defined as the tolal of guest revenues, charier and other revenues and interesl income,
operating margin delined as earnings from operations divided by lolal revenuces, and load faclor defined as revenue passenger miles divided by available seat miles. These measures are
provided Lo enhance the user's everall understanding of Lhe Company's current financial performance and are inctuded to provide inveslors and managemant with an alternative melhod
for assessing the Company’s operating resulls in a manner that is Jocused on the performance of the Campany’s ongoing operatians and (o provide a more consisient basis for comparison
belween quarters. These measures are nol in accordance with or an allernative for GAAP and may be differenl frem measures used by olher companies.
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CHARMAINE ARSENAULT
Aircraft Maintenance Engineer

In 2006, we generated one of
the best operating margins

in the North American airline
industry, growing by 6.8 points
from 2005. Our focus on cost
control is fundamental to our
success. We continuously look
for ways to keep WestJet's
low-cost competitive advantage.

If there's anything we can do to make your
investing with us more comfortable, please don’t
hesitate to ask us at westjet.com.

Qur successful efforts to increase value for our shareholders
were realized through our improved earnings per share. For the
fourth quarter of 2006, diluted earnings per share increased
to a record 21 cents, compared to one cent in lhe same period
in 2005. Diluted earnings per share for the entire year was 88
cents compared to 19 cents in 2605.

Our fourth quarter and year-end results can be attributed to
a healthy RASM performance, our continuous commitment to
cost contrel and increased preductivity through efficient fieet
utilization.

Revenue per ASM for the fourth quarter increased to 13.9
cents, a slight change over 2005's 13.6 cent RASM, as expected
given cur significant capacity increases. For the full year 2006,
RASM was up ta 14.2 cents from 13.0 cents in 2005. Throughout
the year, we have focused on RASM as a key measure for
assessing our airline’s strength. Qur healthy 2006 RASM is
most impressive when looked at in conjunction with our futl-
year capacity increases of 17.3% and load factor improvernents
of 3.6 points.

In the fourth quarter of 2006, we increased our netwark capacity
by 23.3% to 3.3 billion ASMs, compared to 2.7 billion ASMs in the
same period in 2005. We also shifted 12% of our total capacity
into our transborder routes at the same time; this was almost
double the capacity shift that we performed in 2005 during the
same period. Year-end capacity increased to 12.5 billion ASMs
compared to 10.7 billion in 2005.

Even with 12 consecutive months of increasing seat capacity in
our netwark, the demand fer our product remained strong, as
iltustrated by our fourth quarter load factor increase to 75.5%
from 74.7% in the same period 2005 and our highest annual
load factor 1o date of 78.2%, up 3.6 points from 74.6% in 2005.
Demand for our product was further illustrated by improvements
in fourth quarter vield, showing a slight improvement of 0.5%
increasing to 18.4 cents. Yield for the full-year 2006 increased
to 18.1 cents, an increase of 3.4% over 17.5 cents in 2005.

During 2006, we flew 11.2 million segment guests to destinations
within Canada and beyond our borders, an 18.5% increase over
that of 2005. These numbers are proof of our growing guest
base and the market’s ability to absorb the additional supply
of seats.

Our focus on cost controlis fundamental to our success and is a
company-wide initiative. We continuously look for ways to keep
WestJet's low-cost competitive advantage. As a result of our
peoples eiforts, we reduced our fourth quarter CASM by 6.1%
from the same quarter in 2005 and successfully maintained
our 2006 fuli-year CASM at 12.4 cents, a less than one per cent
increase over 12,5 cents in 2005, We are particularly pleased
that these full-year costs were achieved in the face of higher
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fuel prices that continued to place uncontroflable pressure on
our operating costs. Excluding fuel, our CASM in the last quarter
of 2004 decreased by 3.6% to 9.3 cents compared to 9.7 cents
in the fourth quarter of 2005. For the whole of 2006, our CASM
excluding fuel remained consistent with 2005, at 9.2 cents.

We began 2006 with the strategically planned retirement of our
remaining 737-200 aircrafi, leaving us with the youngest fleet
operated by any large North American commercial airline. In
January 2006, our fleet cansisted of 54 aircraft. We retired our
last three 200-series aircraft early in the year and continued
te expand our fleet with the addition of 10 737-600s and two
737-700s, bringing our total registered fleet at year-end 2006
to 63 Next-Generation aircraft.

These aircrafl atlowed us to further develop our route network
across Canada, the United States and to cur first international
destination, Nassau, Bahamas, in November 2004. By adding
these aircraft into our scheduled network, we increased our
capacity by 17.3%, as measured by available seat miles, Our

growth stralegy relies on increasing our network capacity
through the addition of aircraft, as well as increasing
the utilization of our aircraft on a daily basis to maximize
productivity.

SELECTED ANNUAL AND
QUARTERLY INFORMATION

The tables below ["Annual Audited Financial Information™ and
“Quarterly Unaudited Financial Information”] set forth selected
data derived from our consoclidated financial statements
far the three years ended and the eight previous quarters
ended December 31, 2006. These tables have been prepared
in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principtes and are reported in Canadian doltars. This information
should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended Oecember 31, 2006, and related
notes thereto.

Annual Audited Financial Information (N MILLIONS EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)

2006 2005 2004
Total revenues $ 1774 $ 1393 $ 1,097
Net earnings lloss) $ 115 $ 24 $ U7
Basic earnings {loss) per share $ 088 $ 019 $ (0.14)
Diluted earnings lloss] per share $ 088 $ 019 % (0.14)
Total assets $ 2,727 $ 2,213 $ 1877
Total long-term liabilities®™ $ 1,461 $ 1.180 $ 1,020
Shareholders’ equity $ 806 $ 670 5 59

[1) Long-term liabilitres include currenl and long-term portions of long-term debl and obligations under capital wases and sther latilites.

Quarterly Unaudited Financial Informatien (IN MILLIDNS EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)

Three Months Ended

Dec. 31, 2006 Sept. 30, 2006 June 30, 2006 Mar. 31, 2006
Total revenues $ 460 % 502 $ 425 $ 387
Net earnings $ 27 % 53 $ 22 $ 13
Basic earnings per share $ 021 $ 04 - $ 017 $ 010
Diluted earnings per share $ 021 $ 041 $ 017 $ 010

Three Months Ended

Dec. 31, 2005 Sept. 30, 2005 June 30, 2005 Mar. 31, 2005
Total revenues $ 367 % 406 $ 326 $ 294
Net earnings [loss) $ 1 % 30 $ 2 % (101
Basic earnings (loss) per share $ 0.0 $ 024 $ 0.0z $ (0.08]
Diluted earnings (loss) per share $ oM $ 023 $ 002 $ (0.08]
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Our business s seasonal in nature with varying tevels of activity
throughout the year. We experience increased domestic travel
in the summer months [second and third quarters) and more
demand for transborder and charter sun destinatiens over the
winter period [fourth and first quarters). With the introduction
of our first transborder destination in September 2004, we
have been able to somewhat alleviate the affects of seasonality
on aur net earnings. In 2006, we focused on allocating our
network capacity to our domestic and transborder markets as
appropriate based on demand in the season.

In the quarter ended March 31, 2005, we reported a net loss of
$9.6 million as a result of the impact of lower fares throughout
the domestic airline system driven by intense competition
and extrerely high fuel prices. This created a high-cost and
low-yield environment. Markel rationalization was reinstated
at the end of March 2005 when Jetsgo ceased operations. This
materially changed our operating environment and we began
to witness significant improvements in our yield.

YEAR 2006 COMPARED TO YEAR 2005
REVENUE

Three Months Ended

Twelve Months Ended

December 31 Decermnber 31
RASM lin centsl 2006 2005 % Change 2006 2005 % Change
Guest revenues 12.40 1218 1.81% 12.44 1.3 2.99%
Charter and other 1.33 1.38 [3.62%]) 1.61 1.68 14.17%)
interest income Q.13 0.08 62.50% ' 0.1 0.0 83.33%
13.86 13.64 1.61% 1414 13.05 8.51%

Our 2006 fourth quarter operating revenues increased to $459.6
million, compared to $3466.8 million in the same period 2005,
Full-year operating revenues increased to $1.8 billion during
2006, a 27.4% increase over that of 2005. The increase in guest
revenues was driven by a fourth quarter capacity increase of
23.3% to 3.3 billion ASMs and a full-year increase of 17.3%
to 12,5 billion ASMs. Our ability to fill these seats came from
marketing efforts, our ability to match our capacity to the
demands of our guests and our exceptional guest service that
continues to build brand loyalty and repeat business.

Our charter and other revenues per ASM decreased slightly
for both the full year and quarter ended December 31, 2006,
primarity due to an increase in our scheduled transhorder
operations during these periods relative to cur charter network.
We also generated non-transportation revenues from interest
income. Interest income during the year and fourth quarter 2006
increased as a result of cur higher cash balance.

Ancillary revenues provide an opportunity te maximize our
profits through higher margin items while enhancing our overall
guest experience. We generate ancillary revenue primarily from
fees associated with guest itinerary changes, excess baggage
fees, buy-on-board food sales and headset sales. In 2006,
ancillary revenues grew by 47.6% over 2005 to $74.8 million.

A significant revenue initiative we undertook during 2006 was
the launch of a whotty ewned subsidiary of WestJet Airlines Ltd.,

WestJet Vacations Inc. offering guests packaged vacation
options that may include hotels, car rentals, attractions and
insurance. WestJet Vacations leverages our aircraft, schedule
and renowned guest experience while operating in the same
tow-cost manner. Fully cperational in September, WestJet
Vacations surpassed forecasted expectations for 2005.

During the year, we focused our strategy around seasonal
capacity adjustments. Shifting our capacity to higher-demand
markets, based on the seasonal demand for these routes, has
become an tmportant part of our deployment stralegy. Typically,
there is a natural decline in domestic travel during the winter
maonths, which fall within the first and fourth quarters of our
fiscal year. During these slower times, we capitalize on the
ability of our sunny transborder destinations to attract leisure
travellers that want to escape the Canadian winter manths. Qur
ability to maximize {leet efficiency through diligent network
management has directly contributed to our noteworthy
operating margin perfermance throughout 2005.

Along with careful ptanning of our routes, fleet optimization
was another focus in 2006, and contributed to the overatl
productivily of our airline. During the year, we increased our
aircratt utilization by 5.3% to 11.9 operating block hours per
day compared to 11.3 operating block hours per day in 2005.
Increasing the utilization of our aircraft increases our revenue-
generating potential and allows us to gain cost efficiencies.
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EXPENSES

Cost Per Available Seat Mile (casm) (IN CENTS) ! ) ‘ ‘

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Aircraft fuel 3.40 3.32 2.69 2.27 2.40
Airport operations 2.0% 205 1.94 1.78 1.90
Flight operations and navigational charges 1.83 1.72 1.66 1.53 1.63
Sales and marketing 1.24 1.6 0.95 0.84 0.94
Depreciation and amortization® 0.89 1.00 0.88 0.2 1.13
General and administration 0.64 0.67 0.70 0.70 0.92
Aircraft leasing 0.57 3.62 0.46 0.64 0.77
Interest expense 0.56 0.52 0.4% 0.36 016
Maintenance 0.56 0.67 0.85 1.06 1.69
Inflight 0.54 0.50 0.4% 0.47 6.59
Guest services 0.25 0.26 0.26 0.32 0.43

12.57 12.49 11.37 10.89 12.58
CASM, excluding fuel 817 9.17 8.68 8.62 10.18

(1) For comparsative purposes, the impairment loss of $47,577,000, related to the early replacement of aur 737-200 aircralt, included in depreciation and amertizalien expense has been excluded
trom unit-cast calculations for 2004,

Cost Per Available Seat Mile §in cenrs)

Three Months Ended

Twelve Months Ended

December 31 December 31

CASM [in cents) 2006 2005 % Change 2006 2005 % Change
Aircraft fuel n 3.48 [12.77%) 3.40 3.32 2.41%
Airport operations 214 2.10 1.90% 2.09 2.05 1.95%
Flight operaticns and navigational charges 1.88 1.77 £.21% 1.83 1.72 £.40%
Sales and marketing 1.26 1.38 {8.70%) 1.24 1.16 6.90%
Depreciation and amaortization 0.91 1.03 111.45%) 0.89 1.00 £11.00%]
General and administration 0.46 0.73 {9.59%) 0.64 D.&7 [4.48%)
Aircraft leasing 0.53 0.72 126.39%) 0.57 0.62 [8.06%I
Interest expense 0.58 0.55 5.45% 0.56 D.52 7.69%
Maintenance 0.53 0.59 10.17%) 0.56 0.67 {16.42%]|
Inflight 0.56 0.51 9.80% 0.54 0.50 8.00%
Guest services 0.26 0.28 (7.14%} 0.25 0.24 [3.85%]

12.52 13.34 (6.15%} 12.57 12.49 0.66%

Keeping costs low is a key component of cur business model and
has played an important role in cur ability to generate industry-
leading operating margins during 2004. Part of our competitive
advantage is our ability to operate with casts below that of our
competitors. We have achieved strong bottorn-line performance
by continually striving for efficiencies in our operations.

Our longer average stage length, which increased 1o 833 miles
from 802 miles in 2005, has played a role in creating cost
efficiencies. Defined as the average distance of a flight between
takeoff and landing, average stage length has a significant
impact on our unit costs. As it increases, cost efficiencies
are gained and we achieve a lower average cost per mile.
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This is because our fixed costs ¢f operations are shared over an
increasing number of miles flown.

0n a stage length adjusted basis, we estimate our CASM should
have decreased by 2.1% to 12.2 cents per ASM. [ncreases in
costs were driven primarily by uncontrollable higher fuel costs,
airpart operations and increases in certain direct fixed costs
impacted by new initiatives undertaken during the year. These
initiatives typically are intended to enhance our long-term
business objectives, such as incentive programs implemented
to increase travel agent and corporate sales and an enhanced
compensation structure under our new pilot agreement.



Senior Financial Accountant

RICHARD PRIEBE ’ THERESA NORDMARK

Financial Reporting, Administrative Assistant

We successfully managed high
fuel costs through operating
efficiencies inherent in our
infrastructure. One of our most
significant cost advantages is
that we operate the youngest
-fleet operated by any large North
American commercial airline.
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AIRCRAFT FUEL

In 2004, the average price of oil increased by 17% over 2005
to WTI US $64.10 per barrel, which increased our fuel CASM by
0.2 cents during 2006. However, as a result of internal cost-saving
efforts and the strengthening Canadian dotlar, our realized cost
of {uel per litre increased at a lower rate of 7.5%, to 8.9 cents
per litre compared to 64.1 cents in 2005, Similarly, our fuet
CASM increased at a slower pace, by only 2.4% to 3.4 cents
from 3.3 cents in 2005.

We successfulty managed high fuel costs through operating
efficiencies inherent in our infrastructure. One of our most
significant cost advantages is that we operate the youngest fleet
of any large Nerth American commercial airline, comprised of
fuel-efficient Boeing Next-Generation aircraft. Furthermore,
we have implemented fuel conservation programs throughout
our operations to minimize the impact of increasing energy
costs. Our larger 700-series and 800-series aircraft are all
equipped with blended winglet technology that further improves
the fuel effictency of these new aircraft. Along with increasing
the efficiency of our productive assets, our pilots and ground
handlers contribute to daity fuel cost-saving efforts to minimize
fuel consumption.

Our 3.9% longer average stage length in 2006 contributed to
increased fuel efficiency. Longer-haul routes typicatly achieve
higher fuel economy as we are able to absorb the higher costs
of fuel for takeoffs and landings over a longer trip length.

While oil prices did decline in the last three months of 2006
from the elevated levels we experienced throughout the year,
prices in this period remained at about the same levels as that
of the fourth quarier of 2005. During the last quarter of 2006,
the price of fuel was WTI US $60.0% per barrel, which is only
slightly higher than the price in the same quarter of 2005 at
WTI US $60.03 per barrel. However, the fourth quarter of 2005
was weathering the effects of hurricanes Rita and Katrina which
impaired refinery utilization, and consequently the supply of
US Gulf Coast [USGC] jet fuel. In the fourth quarter of 2005,
the US-dollar price of USGC per barrel was 9.3% higher when
compared to the average price in the last three months of 2006,
As aresult, our aircraft fuel cost per ASM was lower by 12.8%
to 3.2 cents during the fourth quarter of 2004 compared to the
same period in 2005. Similarly, our fuel cost per litre during
the fourth quarter of 2004 decreased by 13.1% aver the same
period in 2005.

In 2007, we estimate our sensitivity to changes in jet fuel costs
is appraximately CAD $7 million for every one-cent-per-litre
change in the price of jet fuel le.g., $0.69 to $0.68).
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AIRPORT OPERATIONS

Our airport operations encampass costs associated with (anding
and terminal fees, ground handling and onboard services, such
as buy-on-board food. Airport CASM increased 2.0% in 2006
to 2.09 cents from 2.05 cents, For the three months ended
December 31, 2006, the CASM for airport operalibns increased
by 1.9% over the same pericd in 2005.

In 2006, casts per departure increased 6.7% over Z2005's costs,
primarily driven by our increased transbarder flights; utilization
of larger aircraft which drove higher fees; and an increased
number of flights flying into one of the busiest and most costly
airports in the world, Toronto's Lester B. Pearsan Internaticnat
Airport.

Fee increases imposed by our airport and ground-handling
pariners impacted us on average by approximately 6%. These
costs were further magnified by our expanding international
charter and transborder operaticns, where the number of
departures grew by 7.9% in 2006 over 2005 and are charged
higher rates and fees compared with our domestic operations.
Qur cost per departure for transhorder and charter operations is
approximately 263% higher than that of our dornestic flights.,

Despite higher fees and costs per departure, our airport CASM
grew al a lesser rate primarily as a consequence of the increase
in our average stage length.

Airport operations make up one of cur largest cests, representing
approximately 17% of our totat operating expenditures. As we
conlinue to expand our transborder and international network,
these expenses will continue to be significant to our operations.
In order for us to properly manage these costs, generally
controlled by airport autharities, we continually look for ways
we can improve preductivity and reduce operational costs while
at the same time increasing the convenience to our guests,
We do this by seeking opportunities te automate our airport
operations, offering our guests convenient online check-in
services for destinations within Canada, as well as equipping
most of aur airports with self-service kiosks.

The rise in unit costs for the quarter can be attributed to an
increase in our system-wide weighted average airpori rates
and fees increasing by approximately 6%. Our transborder and
charter activity incur higher airport fees than our Canadian
operations, and the higher terminal and landing fees associated
with operating our larger 700-series and 800-series aircraft also
contributed to higher unit costs.

We are encouraged by the slowing pace of airport rates and fee
increases that we witnessed in 2006, as well as this coentinuing trend
in 2007 - based on the fee schedule released in January 2007.
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FLIGHT OPERATIONS

Our flight operations are largely driven by the cost to compensate
our pitots, including salaries, training and stock option expense.
Our CASM for flight operations increased by 18.6% during the
fourth quarter and 15.4% for the full year 2006, aver the same
periods in 2005. The increase in these costs is primarily due to a
new pitot agreement designed to improve our pitots’ compensation
structure and increase productivity. Approved in the beginning of
the year, this agreement allows our pilots to elect to receive a
certain amount of cash in lieu of a selected portion of their stock
options. In addition to the operational benefits we derive from this
new agreement, we also benefit from the tax deductibility of the
elected cash outlay, whereas we do not realize any tax benefits
from stock-based compensation expense.

In the first year of this new agreement, we incurred both a cash
expense, for the cash-elected portion under the new agreement,
as well as stock-based compensation expense related to the
options that were granted te all pilots in May of 2006 under
the terms of the old pilot agreement. As a result, in addition
to stock-based compensation expense, we incurred a cash
expense of $10.2 million and $3.8 millicn at year-end and in
the fourth quarter of 2006, respectively. Commencing in 2007,
we expecl our stock-based compensation expense to decrease
as a result of the lower number of optiens issued due to pilots
electing to receive greater cash compensation in the first year
of the new agreement. In 2006, we recognized $21.2 million in
steck-based compensation expense, an increase of 20.5% as
compared to $17.6 million in 2005.

NAVIGATIONAL CHARGES

Air navigational charges are predominantly driven by the size of
aircraft and distance flown, and are administered on a per-flight
basis. On a per-departure basis, Nav Canada and FAA costs
rose 3.3% in 2006 over 2005, driven by higher fees associated
with operating larger Next-Generation 737 aircraft and our 3.9%
increase in average stage length. On a per-ASM basis, our year-
over-year navigational charges have declined by approximately
1%, primarily as a result of the growth in our network capacity
outpacing the increase in our number of flights.

SALES AND MARKETING

Sales and marketing encompasses a wide variety of expenses
related to advertising and promotions, travel agency commissions,
corporate incentive programs, credit card fees, global distribution
system costs, the AIR MILES* reward miles program costs,
and live satellite television licensing fees. CASM for sales and
marketing expenses increased 6.9%, from 1.16 cents in 2005
10 1.24 cenls in 2004.
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WE BRING PEQPLE TOGETHER with our 35-city North American and Caribhean network,




In 2006, we increased our efforts to attract sales from corporate
customers, Business travellers are an impartant guest segment
for our airline as they are more likely to travel several times
throughout the year, they tend to purchase fares closer to the
date of travel that have higher margins and are typically less
price sensitive than leisure travellers. In times of economic
uncertainty or a sharp decline in consumer confidence, the
amount of leisure travel typically declines while business travel
rermains more stable. To increase cur corporate sales, we offer
incentive programs that encourage corporations to reach
targeted purchase volumes in order to receive discounted fares.

Sales and marketing CASM for the fourth quarter of 2006
decreased by 8.7% when compared {o the last three months of
2005, resulting from a decrease in advertising and prometions
costs in the current period. In the later part of 2005, we initiated
our WestJjet "Owners” campaign to refresh our brand awareness
across Canada. We are pleased with the positive response we
have received from this campaign from both our WestJetters
and our guests.

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

In 2006, our depreciation and amortization expense per unit
decreased 11.0% to 0.89 cents, compared to one cent in 2005,
and declined by 11.7% in the fourth quarter of 2006 compared to
the same period in 2005. With the stronger Canadian dollar, aur
depreciation expense, which is based on a dollar rate per cycle
determined using the cost of the aircraft net of residual value,
has declined. In addition, we incurred ane-time adjustments
related to the earfy retirement of our 737-200 capital leasas in
the fourth quarter of 2005.

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATION

General and administrative costs pertain to our accounting,
treasury, audit and advisory services, infermation technology,
legal, "people” (human rescurces], procurement and logistics
and facilities teams. Also included in these costs are executive
compensation, professional fees and insurance.

In 2004, total general and administrative costs decreased 4.5%
over 2005 and declined by 2.6% during the last three months of
2006 compared to the same guarter in 2005. Unit cost reductions
during these periods were driven primarily by reduced legal fees
incurred from the settlement of our lawsuit with Air Canada in
May 2006.
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Operational Performance

Our 2006 operational performance was among the
top five for North America*

On-time Performance B1.7% - ranking second in
North America

Completion Rate 99.5% - ranking secend in Narth
America

Baggage Handling: 4.64/1000 bags that did not arrive
with the guest at their destination - ranking fourth in
North America

*0ut o! 20 airlines in the U.5. that report.

AIRCRAFT LEASING

Our mest significant infrastructure cost is cur aircraft, To support
our growth initiatives, we investigate various alternatives for
financing, with the intention of achieving optimal balance sheet
flexibility while realizing the benefits of low-cost financing.
Leasing is often an attractive alternative to debt-financed
aircraft for reasons such as alleviation of obsolescence risk and
the significantly reduced uptront cash outtay being reguired 1o
fund deposits on purchased aircraft.

Aircraft leasing costs, on a CASM hasis, decreased 8.1% in 2006
compared to 2009, and also decreased by 26.4% in the fourth
quarter of 2006 versus the same quarter in 2005, The decline
in our aircrait leasing costs was driven primarily by the dilution
of these costs over a greater number of available seat miles. In
2006, we operated the full year with 18 Next-Generation aircraft
financed under operating lease arrangements, comprised of 13
737-700s and five 737-800s. In 2007 through to 2009, we have
committed to lease an additional 11 737-700s and two 737-800s,
for terms ranging from eight to 10 years, in US dotlars.

INTEREST EXPENSE

Owning newer aircraft does carry higher ownership costs;
however, the benefits gained from operating such aircraft offset
these increased costs through higher productivity, improved fuel
efficiency and lower maintenance costs.

On a per-ASM basis, our interest expense increased by 7.7%
in 2096 to 0.56 cents for the year, compared to 0.52 cents per
ASM in 2005. This increase is primarily due to the additional
$418.6 million in debt that we incurred in 2006 1o support the
acquisition of 12 new Next-Generation aircraft. All long-term
debt related to the financing of our Next-Generation aircraft,
which accounts for 97% of our total long-term debt, is financed
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on a fixed-rate basis in Canadian dollars at an average rate
of 5.3%. The fixed-rate nature of cur financing eliminates the
risk of interest-rate fluctuations aver the life of the debt. In
addition, the ability to finance the US-dollar purchase price of
these aircraft with Canadian-dollar debt eliminates our foreign
currency exposure over the term of the debt.

MAINTENANCE

Maintenance costs per ASM decreased 16.4% to 0.56 cents in
2006 from 0.67 cents in 2005, During the fourth quarter of 2008,
our maintenance CASM decreased by 10.2% to 0.53 cents over
the same period in 2005. The decrease in our unit maintenance
costs can be attributed to operating an overall younger fleet of
aircraft compared to 2005. in January of 2006, we retired the
last of our 200-series aircraft, leaving us with a fleet comprised
of anly new Boeing Next-Generation aircraft. At the end of 2004,
the average age of cur fleet was 2.5 years compared to 4.3 years
in 2005.

We realize significant unit cost reductions and increased
efficiencies when operating these new aircraft compared to our
older 737-200 series aircraft. As a result of the increased seat
capacity of these aircraft, higher daily utilization capabilities
and their ability te fly longer distances, economies of scale are
realized with regards to fixed and cycle-driven maintenance
costs incurred on these aircraft,

While the retirement of our older 200-series aircraft in early
2006 drove the decrease in our overall unit maintenance
costs over the preceding year, we witnessed a slight increase
in maintenance cost per block hour en our owned 737-700s
because the warranties on some of these aircraft expired
during 2005, By the end of 2004, 31% of our owned Nexi-
Generation aircraft were no longer protected under warranty.
Over the course of 2007, a further 11 aircraft will be coming off
of warranty.

Afthough we anticipate our unit maintenance casts will increase
as more aircraft come off warranty, the lower interest costs
we will realize on these aircraft over the course of ownership
will mitigate this increase as their debt is being paid down on
a straight-tine basis.

INFLIGHT

Inflight expenses consist of the wages, benefits and training
for our team of flight attendants. Cost per ASM increased
by 9.8% when comparing the fourth quarter of 2006 to 2005,
and increased 8.0% in 2006 to 0.54 cents from 0.50 cents in

2005, Annual salary increases and the increase in our aircraft

|
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utilization, from 11.3 block hours in 2005 to 11.9 block hours
in 2004, drove an increase in this cost category. Furthermore,
the number of crew hours worked as a result of this greater
utilization increased our inflight CASM.

GUEST SERVICES

Our commitment to guest service encampasses a strong focus
on enhancing the overall experience of our guests at every peint
of contact, from the time of booking their flights to reaching
their final destination. Guest service expenditures include the
costs of our Sales Super Cenire and our Customer Care team.

Our total 2006 CASM relating to guest service slightly decreased
by 3.9% ta 0,25 cents aver the full-year 2005 and declined by
7.1% during the fourth quarter of 2006 versus the same quarter
in 2005. Operating on time is a critical component to our
guest experience. During 2004, we focused on implementing
processes to improve our on-lime performance. As a result of
successful on-time performance improvement, we reduced our
costs related to compensating our guests for the consequences
of delayed flights, such as re-accommodations and meal-cost

reimbursements.

In 2006, cur number of total guests delayed by more than two
hours decreased by 20% over 2005. Similarly, during the fourth
quarter of 2006, 26% fewer guests were delayed on the same
basis. Being able to improve these operating statistics while at the
same time moving 18.5% more guests in 2006 compared to 2005
15 a commendable accomplishment for our operations team,

In 2006, 81.7% of our flights arrived within 15 minutes of their
scheduled time, while 81.4% arrived within the same time frame in
the fourth quarter. Qur performance aver the previous year showed
great improvement where 67.9% of our ftights arrived within 15
minutes of schedule in the fourth quarter and 76.3% for the full
year. While our operational teamn maintains a high commitment
t¢ ensure our guests reach their destinations on time, we never
tet this objective compromise our safety standards.

Our Sales Super Agents also strive to provide the highest
standard of customer service to our guests. In 2005, our Sales
Super Centre was named the Best Call Centre in the country
in an airline phone survey conducted by Canadian Business
Magazine's consumer reperts department. The survey focused
on the quality of customer service in addition to phone wait
times. To support guest-focused service, we grade our agenis
tased on friendliness, knowledge and the ability to take control
of the call. We reward our agents on the quality of guest service
they provide to our guests through a performance-based pay
system which nat only encourages excellent customer service
standards but alsa improves productivity.
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RESERVATIONS SYSTEM

In January 2007, we entered into an agreement with a service
provider to suspend the current aiRES contract in order to
negotiate an amendment to this contract for the successful
delivery of their 3iRES reservation system. As at December
31, 2006, we had $31.9 million capitalized, related solely 1o the
aiRES project. If WestJet and the service provider can not come
to an agreement by May 31, 2007, the parties will each bein a
positicn to proceed with claims against each other, and there is
the potential of a cne-time write-off of this amount.

On December 22, 2006, we entered into a support agreement
with a service provider, etfective through Decemnber 2008. This
support agreement will provide us with a supported upgraded
version of our current Open Skies reservation and distribution
system. Further, it will provide us with the functicnality required
to deliver our growth strategy and business plans during the
interim period white we seek to amend our agreement with
the service provider.

White we are committed to completing the aiRES project,
uncertainty does remain, the outcomne of which may impact the
future recoverability of the project and have a significant impact
on the financial statements of future periods.

COMPENSATION

Our compensation philosophy is designed te align corporate
and perscnal success. We have implemented a compensation
plan that allows expenditures associated with labour to adjust
with the variability in our financial success. Our compensation
strategy encourages employees to become owners in our
company, which inherently creates a personal vested interest
in our accomplishments, Consequently, our people have the
opportunity to improve their compensation through our profit
sharing and employee share purchase plan,

A significant component of our compensation structure is the
employee share purchase plan [ESPP], which allows employees
to participate in our company’s success. Qur ESPP is embraced
by our people, as evidenced by 81% of our eligible employees
participating in this program, at the end of 20056. WestJetters
can contribute up to 20% in the ESPP, on average they currently
contribute 13% cf their base wage. In order to encourage
WestJetters to participate, we match every dellar contributed by
employees to purchase our shares. Qur matching expense in 2004
was $28.2 million, a 30,1% increase from 2005's $21.7 million.

The profit share system is a variable cost that is reduced and
adjusted in tess profitable times. Conversely, in good years,
profit share will generously reward employees. Qur average
WestJetter received approximately 8.2% of their base pay as
profit share for 2006.
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GUY CHABOT
Captain

In 2006, our Super Sales Centre
was named the Best Call Centre
in the country in an airline survey
conducted by Canadian Business
Magazine.
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ALISON BRITTON
Compensation Coordinatar

NANCY EATON-DOKE
Compensation Coordinator

Our compensation strategy
encourages employees to
become owners in our company
which inherently creates for
them a vested interest in our
accomplishments.

The profit share provision amounted to $20.3 million in 2006, a
234.2% increase over the $6.0 million in the previous year, which
was directly attributable to our increased pre-tax margin.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE

On average, the Canadian dollar was stronger during 2006
compared 1o 2003, ending the year at $0.84, relative to the US
dollar. WestJet's exposure to the US doltar primarily relates to
aircraft lease payments, jet fuel, airperl operations at our U.5.
destinations and certain mainienance costs.

To minimize our risk in foreign-exchange movements related to
our US-dollar operating expenditures, we carry US-doliar cash
and cash equivalents to meet these obligations. On average, we
had a balance of approximately US $37 million in cash and cash
equivalents an hand throughout the year.

We estimate that for every $0.01 movement in the Canadian
dollar in relation to the US dollar [e.g., $0.86 to $0.85), cur
pre-tax operating expense would change by approximately
$5.4 miltion.

INCOME TAXES

Our operations span several tax jurisdictions, which subjects our
income to various rates of taxation. As such, the computation
of the provision for incorne taxes involves judgments based
on the analysis of several different pieces of legislation and
regulaticns.

Our effective consolidated income tax rate for 2006 was
approximately 36% of earnings before income taxes, which was
lower than expected. During the second quarter of 2006 the
federal government, along with several provincial governments,
substantively enacted corporate tax rate reductions. The
revaluation of our future tax liability resulted in an approximate
%11.3 million recovery of future income tax expense. The
federal government also eliminated the large corporations’ tax,
effective January 1, 2006, which helped reduce our 2006 cash
tax obligatian. Overall, the reductions in tax rates were offset
by higher earnings which ted to an increase in a total income
tax expense of $21.8 million as compared to 2005.
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FINANCIAL CONDITION
LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Our notable financial performance in 2006 resulted from our
ongoing efforts to build infrastructure, manage risk, prepare
for apportunities and secure our competitive advantage and
reputation in our industry’s rapidly changing environment.

In an industry highly sensitive to unpredictable circumstances,
such as increasing energy prices, maintaining a strong financial
position is imperative to our long-term success. Through our
cautious financial management, we have maintained ane of the
most favourable balance sheets in the airline industry.

We realized a significant growth in our cash pesition by the
end of 2006, completing the year with a cash balance of $377.5
millian compared 1o $259.6 million in 2005. At year-end 2006,
our working capital ratio strengthened ta 1.0 from 0.8 in 2005.

Our cash position from the previous year was boosted by a
$336.2 millicn inflow from operations, an increase of $88.8
million over 2005. These results were driven by our strong
operating margins in 2006 that were generated from our careful
route planning and continued cost-containment efforts.

One of the major challenges that airlines face is the high cost
of capital. Having sufiicient access to capital is critical in order
to facilitate our planned growth. At the same time, we require
the flexibility and resources to take advantage of unforeseen
opportunities as they arise. In addition to having strong cash
liguidity, we have been successful in financing ocur growth
through aircraft acquisitions financed by low-interest-rate
debt supported by the Export-Import Bank of the United States
(Ex-Im Bank] commitments. To secure our fulure growth, we have
a preliminary commitment with Ex-Im Bank for US $240.2 million
for the purchase of seven aircraft deliveries in 2007 and 2008.

During 2006, we acquired 12 aircraft supported by loan
guarantees from Ex-lm Bank. These loan guarantees from
the U.S. government represents approximatety 83% of the
purchase price of these aircrait. In 2005, we completed financing
arrangements for the purchase of six aircraft, delivered
between February and June 2006. Buring 2006, we completed
financing arrangements for US $191.1 million supported by lean
guarantees from the Ex-lm Bank. This was for the acquisition
of five Boeing Next-Generation 737-600 zircraft and cne 737-
700 aircraft, and their related live satellite television systems.
By the end of 2006, we took delivery of all 12 aircraft under
these facilities and have drawn a total of CAD $409.6 million (US
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$360.6 million} at an average fixed rate of 5.2%. This financing
activity brings the cumulative number of aircraft financed with
loan guarantees to 45, with an outstanding debt balance of $1.4
billicn associated with those aircraft. All of this debt has been
financed in Canadian dollars at fixed rates ranging from 4.62% to
5.98%, thus eliminating all future foreign exchange and interest
rate exposure on these US-dallar aircraft purchases.

To facilitate the financing of our Ex-Im Bank supported aircraft,
we ulitize four special-purpose entities. We have no equity
ownership in the special-purpose entities; however, we are
the beneficiary of the special-purpose entities” operations. The
accounts of the special-purpose entities have been consolidated
in the financial stalements,

tn 2006, we spent $480.0 miltion related to capital investments
primarily for the planned acquisition of 12 new aircraft
throughout the year, under our purchase commitrnent with
Boeing. In addition to completed aircraft acquisitions, we have
also made upfront cash deposits for progress payments on
future aircraft deliveries. By the end of 2006, our total cash
deposits held with Boeing totalled US $31.7 million. Other
capital expenditures relate primarily to information technology
and miscellaneous aircraft parts.

On February 24, 2007, we filed a notice with the Toronto Stock
Exchange [the "TSX") to make a normal course issuer bid to
purchase outstanding shares an the open market. As approved
by the TSX, we are authorized te purchase up te 2,000,000
comman voting shares or variable voting shares [collectively
“shares”] [representing approximately 1.5% of our currently
issued and outstanding sharesi during the period of February
28, 2007, to February 27, 2008, or until such earlier time as the
bid is completed or terminated at the option of WestJet. Any
shares we purchase under this bid will be purchased on the
open market through the facilities of the TSX at the prevailing
market price at the time of the transacticn. Shares acquired
under the bid will be cancelled. We believe that, from time
to time, the market price of our shares may not reflect their
underlying value, At such times, the purchase of shares for
cancellation will be advantageous to shareholders by increasing
the value of shares remaining. The purchase of shares will also
offset the dilutive affect of the issuance of shares pursuant to
the exercise of stack options.

As at February 28, 2007, we had 125,241,548 commeon voting
shares putstanding. 4,608.800 variable voting shares outstanding
and 14,189,654 stock options outstanding.

27




CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS, OFF-BALANCE-
SHEET ARRANGEMENTS AND COMMITMENTS

Our contractual obligations for each of the next five years, which
do not include commitments for goods and services required in
the ordinary course of business, are indicated in the table below
[see "Contractual Obligations”).

Contractual Obligations (THousanns]

Total 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 Thereafter
Long-term debt repayments $ 1.444856 % 153720 $ 161425  $145593 $ 144877 $ 157466 $ 681,775
Capital lease cbligations™ 2,068 444 4h4 4h4 698 38 —
Operating leases® 1,237,791 102,375 118,338 137,906 141,627 139,453 598,092
Purchase obligations® 301,517 177,776 117,543 6,198 — — -
Total contractual obligations $ 2,986,232 $ 434315  $ 397,750  $290,141 % 287,202 % 296,957 $1,279.847

1] Includes weighted average imputed interest af 5.29% totalling $229.000.

|2] Included in operating leases are US-dallar operating leases primarily related to aircrafl. The cbligations of these aperating leases in US doltars are: 2007 - $75,430,000; 2008 - $92,673,000;
2009 - $114.343,000; 2010 - $119.154.000: 2011 - $119.067.000: 2012 and thereatter - $500,035.000.

|3} Relates to purchases of aircraft, tive satellite television sysiems and winglets.

We currently have 18 Next-Generation aircraft under operating
leases. We have entered into agreements with independent third
parties to lease 11 additional 737-700 aircraft over eight- and 10-
year terms in US dellars and two 737-800 aircraft over a 10-year
term, to be delivered throughout 2007 te 2009. These amounts
have been included at thesr Canadian-dollar equivalent in the
table above. Although the current obligations related to our
aircraft operating agreements agreements are not recognized on
our balance sheet, we include these commitments in assessing
our overall leverage. Qur debt-to-equity ratio, including off-
balance-sheet debt of $442.3 million, was 2.3 to 1 at the end
of 2006 compared to 2.5 to 1 at the end of 2005, which is well
within our self-imposed range of acceptable debt-to-equity
ratios. Although we have increasing debt obligations from new
atrcraft purchases, we have successfully maintained an enviable
debt-to-equity ratio that reflects our ability to effectively manage
our balance sheet.

CONTINGENCIES

On April 4, 2004, Air Canada commenced a lawsuit against
WestJet. Air Canada claimed damages in the amount of
$220 million in an amendment to its statement of claim.
On May 29, 2006, as a full settlement, we agreed to pay Air
Canada’s investigation and titigation costs incurred totalling
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$5.5 million, and accepted Air Canada’s request that WestJet
make a donation in the amount of $10 million in the name of
Air Canada and WestJet to children’s charities across Canada.
Air Canada withdrew its claims in light of this settlement. All
legal proceedings between the parties were terminated. These
amounts and ather settlement costs totalling $100,000 have
been paid as at December 31, 2004, and have been included in
non-recurring expenses.

A Statement of Claim was also filed by Jetsgo Cerporation in the
Ontario Superior Court on October 15, 2004, against WestJet, an
officer, and a former officer [the "Defendants™). The principal
allegations were that the Defendants conspired together to
unlawfully obtain Jetsgo’s proprietary information and to use
this proprietary information to harm Jetsga and benefit the
Company. The Plaintiff is seeking damages in an amount to
be determined plus $50 million, but the Plaintiff has provided
no details or evidence 1o substantiate its claim. On May 13,
2005, Jetsgo Corporation declared bankruptcy. As a result, this
action has been stayed and no further sieps can be taken in the
litigation unless a court order is obtained.

We are party to other legal proceedings and claims that arise
during the ordinary course of business. It ts the opinion of
management that the ultimate outcome of these and any
outstanding matters will not have a material effect upon our
financial position, results of operations or cash flows,
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Critical accounting estimates are defined as those that require
us to make assumptions about matters that are highly uncertain
at the time the accounting estimates are made, and could
potentially result in materially different results under different
assumptions and conditions. For further discussion of these
and other accounting policies we follow, see Note 1 to our
consoelidated financial statements,

We have identified the following areas that comtain critical
accounting estimates utilized in the preparation of our financial
statemenis:

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

We make estimates about the expected useful lives, projected
residual values, lease-return conditions and the potential for
impairment of our preperty and equipment. In estimating the
lives and expected residual values of our fleet, we rely upcn
annua! independent appraisals, recommendaticns from Boeing
and actual experience with the same aircraft types. Revisions
to the estimates for our fleet can be caused by changes in the
utilization of the aircraft or changing market prices of used
aircraft of the same type. We evaluate cur estimates and
potential impairment on all property and equipment annualty
and when events and circumstances indicate that the assets
may be impaired.

NON-REFUNDABLE GUEST CREDITS

We also make estimates in accounting for aur liability related
to certain types of non-refundable guest credits. We may issue
future travel credits related to quest compensation for flight
delays, missing baggage and other inconveniences as a gesture
of good faith. These types of credits are non-refundable and
expire one year from the date of issue. We record a Liability
based on the estimated incremental cost of a one-way ilight in
the period the credit is issued. The utilizatton of guest credits is
recorded as revenue when the guest has flown or upan expiry.

DEFERRED SALES AND MARKETING COSTS

We defer sales and marketing costs related to advanced ticket
sales, we estimate the amount to defer based on the proparticn
of advanced ticket sales to total bookings on an annualized
basis. This amount is included ¢n our balance sheet in prepaid
expenses.
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RIAZ VERJEE

Cuslemer Service Agent

Through our cautious financial
management, we have maintained
one of the most favourable balance
sheets in the airline industry.
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WE LAUNCHED WESTJET VACATIONS, bringing our high level of service to the packaged holiday market.



FUTURE INCOME TAXES

We use the liability method of accounting far future income
taxes, which requires a significant amount of judgment regarding
assumpticns and the use of estimates. This can create significant
variances between actual results and estimates, including the
scheduling of our effective tax rate and the patential realization
of future tax assets and liabilities.

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION EXPENSE

We use the fair value methed for valuing stock options. Under
this method, as new options are granted, the fair value of
these options will be expensed on a straight-line basis over
the applicable vesting period, with an offsetting entry to
contributed surplus. The fair value of each option grant is
estimated on the date of grant using the Black-5choles option
pricing medel. The Black-5choles option pricing model was
developed for use in estimating the fair value of short-term
traded options that have no vesting restrictions and are fully
transferable. In additicn, option valuation models require the
input of somewhat subjective assumptions including expected
stock price volatility.

FINANCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts of financial instruments included in the
balance sheet, ather than long-term debt, approximate their
fair value due to their shert term to maturity.

At December 31, 2004, the fair value of long-term debt was
approximately $1.5 billion {2005 - $1.2 billion). The fair value
of long-term debt is determined by discounting the future
contractual cash flows under current financing arrangements
at discount rates which represent borrawing rates presently
available to us for loans with simitar terms and maturity.

We are exposed to foreign currency fluctuations as certain
ongoing expenses are referenced te US-dollar denominated
prices. We periodically use financial instruments, including
foreign exchange forward contracts and options, to manage
aur exposure.

We have entered into a contract to purchase US $2.5 million
per month at a forward rate of 1.11 for the payment period
from October 2006 to March 2007 to hedge a portion of our
committed US-dollar lease payments during the same period.
The estimated fair market value of the cantract as at December
31, 2006, is a gain of CAD $349,000.

The CICA released new standards related to financial
instruments in April 2005 - Financial Instruments - Recognition
and Measurement, Section 3855, Hedges, Section 3865,
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Aircraft Utilization

Throughout 2006, we increased productivity through
efficient fleet utilization. Aircraft utilization increased
5.3% to 11.9 operating block hours per day in 2006
compared to 11,3 operating block hours per day

in 2005. Incr'easing the utilization of our aircraft
increases our revenue-generating potential and
allows us to gain cost efficiencies.

Comprehensive [ncome, Section 1530, Financial Instruments -
Disclesure and Presentation, Section 3861 and Eguity, Section
3251, These sections specify when a financial instrument or
non-financial derivative is to be recognized on the balance
sheet. These sections will require a financial instrument or
non-financial derivative to be measured at fair value or using
cost-based measures; establish how gains and losses are to be
recognized and presented, including introducing comprehensive
income; specify how hedge accounting should be applied;
establish new disclosures about an entity’s accounting for
designated hedging relaticnships and the methods ang
assumplions applied in determining fair values.

We will adopt these new standards commencing January 1,
2007, and as at the date of the management’s discussion and
analysis cannot reasonably estimate the full effect on our
financial statements.

CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Management is responsible for the establishment and
maintenance of a system of disclosure controls and procedures.
The Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer
have evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls
and procedures as of December 21, 2006, as defined under
the rules of the Canadian Securities Administrators, and have
conciuded that cur disclosure controls and procedures are
effective. Management is also responsible for the establishment
and maintenance cf a systemn of internal controls aver financial
reporting. Management has designed internal controls over
financial reporting effectively to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of our financial reporting and the
preparation gf financial statements in accordance with Canadian
GAAP. There were no changes in our internal controls over
financial reporting during the most recent interim period that
have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially
affect our internal controls over financial reporting.
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RANDY DICKS | JILL FERRIS

Flight Attendant Flight Atlendant

Our financial achievements during
2006 are a direct result of the
hard work and commitment of
our exceptional WestJetters. The
dedication, motivation and strong
vision of our people have carried
us through a decade of successful
operations.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

During 2004, the Board of Directors continued to take steps
to ensure that good corporate governance practices were
employed by WestJet and the Board for the protection of all
stakeholders. These changes were largely related to the ongaoing
review of "best practices,” compliance with regulatory changes
and the continued review and update of the existing governance
materials.

The Board of Directors has established three standing committees:
an Audit Committee, a Compensation Committee and a
Corporate Governance and Norinating Cemmittee. The charters
of these committees are reviewed annually by the Board of
Directors. In addition, the Board has an Independent Comnmitiee
of Directors to deal with the claims from Air Canada and Jetsgo.
This special committee was established to deal with litigation
and to separate the handling of the claims from management
to aveid any potential conflicts and to allow management to
cancentrate its time and efforts on running the airline. Each
committee reports to the Board with their recommendations
for final approval.

Parl of the Corporate Governance and Nominating Cornmittee’s
mandate is 1o assess the effectiveness of committees, the
composition of existing committees and the appropriateness
for any new committees.

In 2006, the Board of Directors updated our Disclosure,
Confidentiality and Trading Policy, based on management’s
recammendations. In addition, management, in consultation
with external advisors, began the preparation of a mandate and
procedures for a Management Disclosure Committee, which
were presented to and approved by the Board of Directors at
its first 2006 meeting. This committee’s mandate is to provide
assurance that relevant information is made known to the CEO
and Ce-CFO0s to allow for timely decisions about disclesures. The
Disclosure Committee also performs procedures and reviews to
provide assurance that disclosures made to our security holders
or the investment community are reliable and made on a timely
basis as required by applicable laws and regulations.
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QUTLOOK

Qur financial achievements during 2004 are a direct result of
the hard work and commitment of our excepticnal WestJetters.
The dedication, motivation and strong vision of our people
have carried us through a decade of successful operations.
In 2007, we will continue to focus on increasing shareholder
value through the achievement of sustainable, capital efficient
and profitable long-term growth. The strength of our balance
sheet, the success of our seasonal deployment strategy and
our low-cost model will continue to be the basis for our future
profitable growth. Heading into our second year of our seasonal
deployment strategy, first quarter gains will largely be realized
through capacity increases. With planned capacity growth of
19% in the first quarter of 2007, RASM to date for this period s
tracking with slight improvements over that of 2006.

March 9, 2007

2006 | West Jet Annual Report

RUSS McIVOR
TAC Trainer

In 2007, we will continue to

focus on increasing shareholder
value through the achievement
of sustainable, capital-efficient
and profitable long-term growth.
The strength of our balance sheet,
the success of our seasonal
deployment strategy and our
low-cost model will continue

to be the basis for our future
profitable growth.
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WE MADE A SEAMLESS TRANSITION {0 @ new company president and a new 5-year strategic plan designed to take us to the next level.




MANAGEMENT'S REPORT 70 THE SHAREHOLDERS

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian
generally accepled accounting principles. When a choice between accounting methods exists, management has
chosen those it deems conservative and appropriate in the circumstances. Financial statements will necessarily
include certain amounts based on estimates and judgements. Management has determined such amounts on a
reasonable basis to ensure that the consolidated financial statemenls are presented fairly in all material respects.
Financial information contained in the annual report is consistent, where appropriate, with the information and
data contained in the consolidated financial statements. All information in the annual report is the responsibility

of management.

Management has estabtished systems of internal control, including disclosure controls and procedures which are
designed to provide reasonable assurance that financial and nen-financial information that is disclosed is timely,
complete, relevant and accurate. These systems of internal centrol also serve 1o safeguard the Corporation’s
assets. The systems of internal control are monitored by management, and further supported by an internal audit

department whose functions include reviewing internal controls and their application.

The Board of Directers is responsible for the overall stewardship and governance of the Corpeoration, including
ensuring management fulfills its responsibility for financial reporting and internal control, and reviewing and
approving the consolidated financial statements. The Board carries out this responsibility principally through its

Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, comprised of non-management Directors, meets reqularly with
management, the internal auditors and the external auditors, to satisfy itsell that each is properly discharging its
responsibilities, and to review the consolidated financial statements and MD&A. The Audit Committee reports its
findings to the Board of Directors prior to the approval of such statements far issuance 1o the shareholders, The Audit
Committee also recommends, for review by the Board of Directors and approval of shareholders, the reappointment

of the external auditors. The internal and external auditors have full and free access to the Audit Committee.

The consalidated financial statements have been audited by KPMG LLP, the independent exiernal auditors, in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards on behalf of the shareholders. The auditors’ report outlines

the scape of their examination and sets forth their gpinion,

oo . T-_F_/___,_-

CLIVE J. BEDDOE JANICE PAGET DEREK PAYNE
Executive Chairman Vice-President, Controller Vice-President,
and Chief Executive Officer and Co-Chief Financial Officer Finance and Corparate Services

and Co-Chief Financial Officer
Calgary, Alberta

February 12, 2007
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AUDITORS" REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of WestJet Airitnes Ltd. as at December 31, 2006 and 2005 and
the consolidated statements of earnings and retained earnings and cash flows for the years then ended. These
financia! statements are the responsibility of the Corporation’s management. Our responsibility is to express an

opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasanable assurance whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement, An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and

significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these consotidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Corporation as at December 31, 2005 and 2005 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the

years then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

KPm Grep

Chartered Accountants
Calgary, Canada
February 12, 2007
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

WestJet Airlines Lid.

Recernber 31, 2004 and 2005
[Stated in Thousands of Dollars)

20056 2005
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents [note 9) $ 377517 $ 259,640
Accounts receivable 12,645 8,022
Income 1axes recoverable 13,820 13,909
Assets held for sale [note 2) 13,157 -
Prepaid expenses and deposits [note 1ig]) 30,727 31,746
Inventory 8,200 6,259
456,066 319,576
Property and equipment [note 2) 2,158,746 1,803,497
Other assets [note 3] 111,715 90,019
$ 2,726,527 $ 2,213,092
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 17 $ 100,052
Advance ticket sales 148,743 127,450
Nen-refundable guest credits 40,508 32,814
Current portian of long-term debt (note 4 153,720 114,115
Current portion of obligations under capital lease [note 6] 356 2,466
464,484 376,897
Long-term debt [note 4) 1,291,136 1,044,719
Obligations under capital lease [note 6 1,483 1,690
Other liabilities [note 5] 14,114 16,982
Future income tax Inote B) 149,283 102.651
1,920,560 1,542,939
Shareholders’ equity:
Share capital Inote 7[bl 431,248 4£29.613
Contributed surptus [note 7(g)) 58,6596 39,093
Retained earnings 316,123 201,447
806,027 670,153
Commitments and contingencies fnotes 6 and 10]
$ 2726527 $ 2,213,092

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

On behalf of the Board:

<,::ZDCQ>_7;

Clive Beddoe, Director
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Wilmot Matthews, Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS AND RETAINED EARNINGS

WestJet Airlines Ltd.

Years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005
[Stated in Thousands of Dollars, Except Per Share Amounts)

2006 2005
Revenues:
Buest revenues $ 1,558.4M $ 1,207,075
Charter and other 201,400 179,379
Interest income 13.815 6,308
1,773,686 1,392,762
Expenses:
Aircraft fuel 425,506 354,065
Airport operations 262,310 219144
Flight operations and navigational charges 229,821 183,443
Sales and marketing 194,734 124,154
Depreciation and amortization 111.442 106,624
General and administration 79.817 71,610
Aircraft leasing [note 11(bl} 71,432 65,647
Interest expense 76,196 55,496
Maintenance 59,975 71,.3%7
Inflight 57,220 53,003
Guest services 31,739 27,322
1,574,192 1,331,927
Earnings from operations 199,494 60,835
Non-operating income [expense]:
Gain [loss) on foreign exchange 32 {2,729)
Gain (loss) on disposal of property and equipment 839 198]
Non-recurring expenses [note 10fc]) 115,600] -
114,729 {2,827)
Ernployee profit share {note 10{bl) (20,284} 16,033]
Earnings before income taxes 164,481 51,975
Income tax [expense] recovery [note 8):
Current 13,170 7.367
Future 144,635] 135.341]
§49,805) 127,974
Net earnings 114,676 24,001
Retained earnings, beginning of year 201,447 177,444
Retained earnings, end of year $ 314123 $ 201,447
Earnings per share [note 7(d|]:
Basic % 0.88 % 019
Diluted % 0.88 5 0.1%

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

WestJet Airlines Ltd.

Years ended Recember 31, 2006 and 2005
{Stated in Thousands of Dollars]

2008 2005
Cash provided by (used in}:
Operating activities:
Net earnings $ 114,676 $ 24,000
ltems not involving cash:
Depreciation and amaortization 111,442 106,624
Amortization of other liabilities [858) [604)
Amortization of hedge settlements 1.427 1391
[Gainl loss on disposal of property and equipment [839) 98
Loss on disposatl of aircraft parts [note 2] [1,233) [1.1268)
Stock-based compensation expense 21,205 17,604
Issued from treasury stock - 17,705
Future income lax expense 46,635 35,341
Decrease in non-cash working capital (note #lal) 43,707 46,250
334,152 247324
Financing activities:
Increase in leng-term debt 418,581 256,385
Repayment of long-term debt 1132,559) {100.487)
Increase in other liabilities — B,47%
Issuance of shares — 21,094
Share issuance cosls (101 {215]
Increase in ather assets [28,139) [14,350]
Decrease in obligations under capital lease [480) [5.846)
Increase in non-cash working capital (1,671] (837)
256,322 164,223
Investing aclivities:
Aircraft additions 1438,904) 1660,947)
Aircraft disposals 3,822 404,583
Other property and equipment additions [41,124) 144,969)
Dther property and equipment disposals 1.611 894
14745971 (300,439%]
Increase in cash 117,877 111,108
Cash, beginning of year 259,640 148,532
Cash, end of year $ 377517 $ 259,640

Cash is defined as cash and cash equivalents. See note 9(b] for additional cash information.
See accompanying notes to consotidated financial stalements,
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

WestJet Airlines Ltd.

Years ended Decernber 31, 2006 and 2005
{Tabutar Amounts are Stated in Thousands of Dollars, Except Share and Per Share Data)

1.

40

Significant accounting policies:

lal Basis of presentation:

b

[e

la

le

These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of WestJet Airlines Ltd. [the "Corporation”)
and its wholly owned subsidiaries, as well as the accounts of four special-purpose entities, which are
utilized to facilitate the financing of aircraft, The Corporation has no equity ownership in the special-purpose
entities; however, the Corporation is the primary beneficiary of the special-purpose entities’ operations. All
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
Canada requires management to make estimates and assumptions, regarding significant items such as
amounts relating to depreciation and amortization, non-refundable guest credits, lease return conditions,
future income taxes, stock-based compensation expense, deferred sales and marketing costs, impairment
assessments of property and equipment, and the valuation of derivative financial instruments that affect
the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from
these estimates,

Cash and cash eguivalents:

Cash and cash eguivalents are comprised of cash and all investments that are highly liguid in nature and
have a maturity date of three months or less.

Revenue recognition:

Guest and charter revenue is recognized when air transportation is provided. Tickets sold but not yet used
are reported in the consolidated balance sheet as advance ticket sales.

The Corporation earns revenue from package holiday sales. Revenue from the air content is recognized when
air transportation is provided. Revenue from the land content is deferred and recognized on completion of
the holiday. Revenue from the land content is generated from providing agency services equal to the amount
paid by the guest for products and services less payment to the travel supplier and are reported 2t the net
amounts received, withoul any associated cost of revenue.

Cargo revenue 1s recognized when air transportation services are performed under the carge agreement.

The Corporalion earns revenue under the tri-branded credit card agreement which is included in other
revenue, Net retail sales revenue is recegnized at the time the transaction occurs, Revenue related to
account activations is deferred and recognized when the Corporation fulfills its obligations related to the

new activations.

Non-refundable guest credits:

Where appropriate, the Carporation issues future travel credits related to guests for flight delays, missing
baggage and other inconveniences as a gesture of good faith. These credits are non-refundable and expire
one year from the date of issue. The Corporation records a liability based on the estimated incremental cost
of 2 one-way flight in the peried the credit is issued. The utilization of guest credits is recorded as revenue
when the guest has flown or upan expiry.

Foreign currency:

Monetary assets and liabilities, denominated in foreign currencies, are translated into Canadian dollars at
rates of exchange in effect at the balance sheet date. Non-monetary assets and revenue and expense items
are translated at rates prevailing when they were acquired or incurred. Foreign exchange gains 2nd losses
are included in earnings.
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1. Significant accounting policies [continued):

[l Inventory:

Fuel and supplies are valued at the lower cost, determined on a firsi-in-first-out basis, and replacerment
value. Aircraft expendables and consurmnables are expensed as acquired.

Igl Deferred costs:
Sales and marketing expenses attributed to advance ticket sales are deferred and expensed in the period the
related revenue is recognized. Included in prepaid expenses and deposits are $10,878,000 12005 - $13,236,000

of deferred costs.

[E

Property and equipment:

Property and equipment are recorded at cost and depreciated to their estimated residual values. Aircraft
under capita! lease are initially recorded at the present value of minimum lease payments at the inception
of the lease.

Asset Basis Rate
Aircraft net of estimated residual value - Next-Generation Cycles Cycles flown
Live satellite television included in aircraft - Next-Generation Straight-tine 10 years/lease term
Aircraft net of estimated residual value - 200-series Flight hours Hours flown
Ground property and equipment Straight-line 5to 25 years
Spare engines and parts net of estimated residual value - Next-Generation Straight-line 20 years
Spare engines and parts net of estimated residual value - 200-series Flight hours Fleet hours flown
Aircraft under capital lease Straight-line Term of lease
Other assets under capital lease Straight-line Term of lease
Buildings ’ Straight-line 40 years
Leasehald impravements Straight-line Jerm of lease

Property and equipment is reviewed for impairment whepever events or changas in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.

Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset
to estimated undiscounted futura cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its estimaled luture cash {lows, an impairment charge is recognized by the amount by
which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of Lhe asset,

li] Maintenance cosls:

Maintenance and repairs, inctuding major overhauls, are charged to maintenance expense as they are
incurred. Maintenance reserves related to certain atrcraft leases are paid on a monthly basis over the term
of the lease,

Aircraft parts that are deemed to be beyond economic repair are disposed of and the remaining net book
values of these parts are included in mainlenance expense,

Recovery of costs associated with parts and labour covered under warranty are recognized as an offset to
maintenance expense.
ijl Capitalized costs:

Costs assecialed with asseis under development which have probable future economic benefit, which can be
clearly defined and measured and are costs incurred for the development of new products or technologies
are capitalized. These costs are not amortized until the assets are substantially complete and ready for its
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

WestJet Airlines Ltd.

Years ended December 31, 2004 and 2005
[Tabular Amounts are Stated in Thousands of Dollars, Except Share and Per Share Datal

1.

42

Significant accounting policies [continued):

[j)

{w

Capitalized costs [continued):

intended use, at which tirme, they are amortized over five to 10 years. Interest attributable to funds used to
finance preperty and equipment is capitalized to the related asset. Legal and financing costs for the loan
facilities are capitalized to other assets on the balance sheet and amortized on a straight-line basis over
the term of the related loan.

Costs of new route development are expensed as incurred.

Future income tax:

The Cerporation uses the liability method of accounting for future income taxes. Under this method, current
incorne taxes are recognized for the estimated income taxes payable for the current year. Future incorme
tax assets and liabilities are recognized for temporary differences between the tax and accounting bases of
assets and liabilities, calculated using the currently enacted or subslantively enacled tax rates anticipated
to apply in the period that the ternporary differences are expected to reverse,

Stock-basad compensation plans:

The Corparation uses the fair value method for valuing stock aptions. Under this method, as new options are
granted, the fair value of these options will be expensed on a straight-line basis over the applicable vesting
period, with an offsetting entry te contributed surplus. The fair value of each option grant is estimated
on the date of grant using the Black-5chotes option pricing model. Upon the exercise of stock options,
consideration received together with amounts previously recorded in contributed surplus is recorded as an
increase in share capital.

[ml Financial instruments:;

In

lo

Derivative financial instruments are utilized by the Corparation from time to time in the management of its
foreign currency, interest rate and fuel price exposures. The Corperation’s policy is not to utilize derivative
financial instruments for trading or speculstive purposes.

The Cerporation formally documents all relationships between hedging instruments and hedged items,
as well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. This
process includes linking all derivatives to specific assets and liabilities on the balance sheet or to specific
firm commitrnents or anticipated transactions. The Corporation also formally assesses, both at the hedge's
inception and on an ongoing basis, whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly
effective in affsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items. In the event that a derivative
financial instrument is not designated for hedge accounting, does not gualify for hedge accounting or the
event that the hedge is ineffeclive, changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments are recorded
in non-operating income of expense. .

Gains or losses relating 10 derivatives that are designated as hedges are deferred in olher assets andfor
other liabilities and recognized in the same period and in the same financial category as the carresponding
hedged transactions.

Per share amounts:

Basic per share ameunts are calculated using the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the
year. Diluled per share amounts are calculated based on the treasury stock method, which assumes that the
total proceeds obtained on the exercise of options and the unarertized portion of stock based campensation
would be used {o purchase shares at the average price during the period. The weighted average number of
shares outslanding is then adjusted by the net change.

Comparative figures:

Certain prior-period balances have heen reclassified to conform to current period's presentation.
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2. Property and equipment:

Accumulated Net book

2006 Cost depreciation value
Aircraft - Next-Generation $ 2,085,301 % 185,526 % 1,900,775
Ground property and equipment 153,894 45,854 B8,047
Spare engines and parts - Next-Generation 70,459 10,145 60,314
Buildings 40,028 4,825 35,203
Leasehold improvements 5714 4,579 2,335
Dther assets under capital lease 2,481 634 1.787
2,360,079 271,623 2,088,456

Deposits on aircraft 38,011 - 38,011
Assets under development 32,279 - 32,279
$ 2,430,349 % 271,623 $ 2,158,746

Accumulated Net book

2005 Cost depreciation value
Aircraft - Next-Generation % 1.619,350 $ 102,914 $ 1,516,936
Ground property and equipment 135,217 52,664 82,553
Spare engines and parts - Next-Generation 67,9460 8.02% 59,931
Buildings 39.636 3.825 35,811
Leasehold improvements 6,302 3.992 2310
Other agsets under capital lease 2.289 198 2.0%1
Spare engines and parts - 200-series 12,547 11,128 1,419
Aircrafl - 200-series 3.892 2,861 1,031
Aircraft under capital lease 19,475 19,475 -
1,907,168 ' 205,086 1,702,082

Deposits on aircraft 73,493 - 73.493
Assets under development 27,922 — 27922
$ 2,008,583 % 205,086 $ 1,803,497

During the year, property and equipment was acquired at an aggregate cost of $192,000 {2005 - $2,137,000) by
means of capital leases.

During the vear the Caorporation capitalized $6,84%,000 (2005 - $3,250,000] of interest related to aircraft financing.

Subsequent to year-end the Corporation announced the suspension of the aiRES project while an amendment
to the contract is negetiated. If the negotiation is unsuccessfut, the parties will each be in a posilion to proceed
with claims against each other. While the Corporation is committed 10 compteting the aiRES project, uncertainty
does remain, the outceme of which may impact the future recoverability of the project and may have a significant
impact on the financia! statements of future perods. As at December 31, 2006, $31,869,000 (2005 - $14,781,000)
is included in assets under development for costs related to the aiRES project.

Included in aircraft casts are estimated lease return costs for Next-Generation aircrafl totalting $1,107,000 12005
- $1,107.000) and associated accumulated arnortization of $329.000 (2005 - $233,000) for these aircrait under
operating leases. These amounts are being amortized on a straight-line basis over the term of each lease.

During the year, the Corporation recognized $60%,000 [2005 - $NIL) of costs previously capitalized for winglat
certification on the 737-600 series aircraft in maintenance expense as a result of the abandonment of the winglet
program on: these airerafl, In addition, the Corporation expensed $1,233,000 12005 - $1,126,000) of aircraft parts
deemed to be beyond economic repair which were also included in maintenance expense.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

WestJet Airlines Ltd.

Years ended December 31, 2006 and 2008
{Tabular Amounts are Stated in Thousands of Dollars, Excepl Share and Per Share Data)

2. Property and equipment [continued):

The Corporation has entered into agreements te sell certain spare engines and aircraft parts to an unrelated
third party. At December 31, 2006, these engines and parts have been taken out of revenue generating service
and are included at their net book value in current assets, as asseis held for sale. These transactions were

completed in early 2007.

3. Other assets:

2006 2005

Financing fees $ 65892 $ 50,010
Security deposits and other leaseholds 43,263 31,204
Hedge settlements 19,479 19,479
Other amounts 2,097 1,899
Accumulated amortization 19.014) (12,573
$ 11,715 % 90,019

Financing fees are related to the facilities for the purchase of the Boeing Nexi-Generation aircraft and hedge
seittements relate to certain leased Boeing Next-Generation aircraft. Amortization of financing fees totalling
$5,015,000 12005 - $3,673,000] has been inctuded in depreciation and amortization and amortization of hedge
seltlements totalling $1,427,000 {2005 - $1,391,000) has been included in aircraft leasing for the year ended
December 31, 2004.
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4. Long-term debt:

2006 2005
$1.70%,467.000 in 45 individual term loans, amortized on a straight-line basis over a
12-year term, repayable in quarterly principal instalments ranging from $474,000 to
$955,000, including fixed interest at a weighted average rate of 5.31%, maturing between
2014 and 2018. These facilities are guaranteed by the Ex-1m Bank and secured by 32 700-
series aircraft and 13 400-series aircraft. $ 1,393.439 $ 1,114,506
$35.000.000 in three individual term loans, repayable in monthly instalments ranging from
$1G4,000 and $166,000 including floating interest at the bank’s prime rate plus 0.88%
with an effective interest rate of 6.88% at December 31, 2004, maturing between 2008
and 2011, secured by three Next-Generation flight simulatars. 26,223 19,615
$12,000,000 term loan, repayable in monthly instalments of $108,800 including interest
at 9.03%, maturing April 2011, secured by the Calgary hangar facility. 10,426 10,767
$16,968,000 in 24 individual term loans, amortized on a straight-line basis over a five-year
term, repayable in quarterly principalinstalments ranging from $29,000 to $47.000including
floating interest at the Canadian LIBOR rate plus 0.08%, with a weighted average effective
interest rate of 4.35% at December 31, 2006, maturing between 2009 and 2011, guaranteed
by the Ex-bm Bank and secured by certain 700-series and 600-series aircraft. 11,699 10,462
$4,550,00C term loan, repayable in monthly instalments of $50,000, including floating
interest at the bank’s prime rate plus 0.50%, with an effective interest rate of 6.50% as at
December 31, 2006, maturing April 2013, secured by the Calgary hangar facility. 3.049 3.484
1,444,856 1,198,834
Less current portion 153,720 114,115
$ 1,281,136 $ 1,044,719

The net book value of the property and equipment pledged as collateral for the Corporaticn’s secured borrowings
was $1,964,139,000 as at December 31, 2004 (2005 - $1,549,107.000).

Held within the special-purpose entities, as described in ncte 1, are liabilities of $1,743,984,000 (2005 -
$1,392,629,000) and corresponding assets of $1,744,291,000 (2005 - $1,393,801,000), which are included in the
censolidated financial statements.

Future scheduled repayments of long-term debt are as follows:

2007 $ 153,720
2008 161,425
2009 145,593
2010 144,877
2011 157,465
2012 and thereafter 681,775

$ 1,444,856
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

WestJet Airlines Lid.

Years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005
[Tabular Amounts are Stated in Thousands of Dollars, Except Share and Per Share Datal

4.

&b

Long-term debt continued):

During 2004, the Corporation acquired 12 aircraft supported by loan guarantees from the Export-tmport Bank of
the United States [Ex-Im Bankl. In 2005, the Corporation ¢completed financing arrangements for US $386.1 million
for the purchase of seven aircraft delivered in 2005 and six aircrafl delivered between February and June 2004.
In 2006, the Corporation completed financing arrangements for US $191.1 million to support the acquisition of
six aircrait delivered between July and December 2006, As at Decernber 31, 2004, the Corporation has accepted
the 12 2006 aircralt deliveries under these [acilities and drew a total of CAD $409.6 million {US $360.6 miltion).

These facilities were drawn in Canadian dollars, in separate instalments, with five- and 12-year terms for tive
satellite television equipment and new aircraft, respectively. Each loan is amertized on a straight-line basis over
the respective terms in quarterly principat instalments, and interest is calculated on the eutstanding balance.

As at December 31, 2004, the Corporation has an unutilized 2nd uncancelled balance of a final commitment from
Ex-Im Bark totalling US $1 million for the purchase of live satellite television systems. The Corporation atso
has a total preliminary commitment from Ex-Im Bank for US $240.2 million for seven aircraft to be detivered
in 2007 and 2008,

The Corporation will be charged a commitment fee of 0.125% per annum on the unutilized and uncancelled
balance of the Ex-Im Bank facility, payable at specified dates and upon detivery of an aircraft, and is charged a
3% exposure fee on the financed portion of the aircralt price, payable upon delivery of an aircraft.

The Corporation has available two facilities with a Canadian chartered bank totatling $15,0600,000 {2005 -
$8,000,000] for letiers of guarantee, At December 31, 2006, letters of guarantee totalling $9,858,000 2005 -
%4 830.000] have been issued under this facility. These facilities are secured by a gereral security agreement,
an assignment of insurance proceeds and $1,858,000 af cash.

Other liabilities:

Included in other liabilities is $6,000,000 [2005 - $8,000,000) of unearned revenue related to the BMO Mosaik®,
AIR MILES®, Mastercard® credit card for future net retail sales and for bounty on newly activated credit cards.
During the year ended December 31, 2006, the Corporation recognized $2,000,000 12005 - $2,000,000] of this
unearned revenue, The remaining unearned revenue balance will be recognized during the next two years with
$3,000,000 aarned in 2007 and $3,000,000 in 2008.

At December 31, 20064, included in other liabilities are deferred gains from the sale and leaseback of aircraft
totalling $7,007,00¢ (2005 - $7,875,000), net cf amortization, which are being deferred and amortized over the
lease term with the amartization included in aircraft leasing, During the year ended December 31, 2004, the
Corporalion recognized amortization ef $868,000 {2005 - $604,000).

In 2006, the Corporation has also included in ¢ther lizbilities $1,107,000 (2005 - $1,107,000) pertaining to the
estimated lease return costs on its Next-Generation leased aircraft.
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6, Leases:

The Corparation has entered into operating leases and agreements for aircraft, buildings, computer hardware and
software licenses and satellite programming, as well as capital leases relating to ground handling equipment.
The obligations are as follows [see note 10 for additional commitments):

Capital leases

Operating leases

2007 §  Ad4 $ 102,375
2008 A 118,338
2009 L44 137,906
2010 698 141,627
2011 38 139,453
2012 and thereafter - 598,092
Total lease payments 2,068 $ 1,237,791
Less weighted average imputed interest at 5.29% 1229]
Net minimum lease payments 1,839
Less current portion of obligations under capital lease 1356]
Obligations under capitai lease $ 1,483
The Corporation has certain operating leases primarily related to aircraft that are denominated in US dollars.
The US-doltar amounts of these operating leases, which have been included at their Canadian-dotlar equivalent
above, are as follows:
2007 $ 76,430
2008 92,673
2009 114,343
2010 119,154
20 119,067
2012 and thereafter 500,035
$ 1.021,702
The Corporation has cornmitted to lease an additional 11 737-700 aircraft and two 737-B00 aircraft to be delivered
between 2007 and 2009, for terms ranging between eight and 10years, in US dollars. These amounts have been
included at their Canadian- and US-detlar equivalents in the above tables.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

WestJet Airlines Ltd.

Years ended December 33, 2006 and 2005
[Tabular Amounts are Stated in Thousands of Dollars, Except Share and Per Share Datal

7. Share capital:

la] Authorized:

Ib

Unlimited number of common voting shares:

The commen vating shares may be owned and controlled by Canadians only and shall confer the right to one
vole per common voting share at all meelings of shareholders of the Corporation.

Each issued and outstanding common voting share shall be converted into one variable voting share
automatically and without any further act of the Corporation or the holder, if such common voting share
becomes owned or controlled by a person who is not a Canadian.

Untimited number of variable voting shares:

The variable voting shares may be owned and controlled only by persens who are not Canadians and are
entitled 1o one vote per variabte voting share unless (i) the number of issued and outstanding variable voting
shares exceed 25% of the total number of all issued and outstanding variable voting shares and commen
voting shares [or any greater percentage the Governor in Council may specify pursuant to the Canada
Transportation Actl, or lii] the 1otal number of votes cast by or an behalfl of the holders of variable voting
shares al any meeting on any matter on which a vote is to be taken exceeds 25% [or any greater percentage
the Governor in Council may specify pursuant to the Canada Transportation Act] of the total number of votes
that may be cast at such meeting.

If either of the above-noted thresholds are surpassed at any time, the vote attached o each variable voting
share will decrease automatically withcut further act of fermality. Under the circurnstances described above,
the variable voting shares as a class cannot carry more than 25% (or any greater percentage the Gevernor
in Council may specify pursuant to the Canada Transportation Act] of the total voting rights attached to
the aggregate number of issued and outstanding variable voting shares and common voting shares of the
Carporation.

Under the circumstances described above, the variable voting shares as a class cannot, for a given
shareholders’ meeting, carry more than 25% [or any greater percentage the Governor in Council may specify
pursuant to the Canada Transportation Act] of the total number of votes that may be cast at the maeting.

Each issued and outstanding variable voling share shall be automatically converted inte one comman voting
share without any further intervention on the part of the Corporation or of the holder if (i} the variable voting
share is or becomes owned and controlled by a Canadian; or if [ii] the provisions contained in the Canada
Transportation Act relating to foreign ownership restrictions are repealed and not replaced with other simitar
provisions in applicable legislation.

Unlimited number af non-voting shares and
Unlimited number of non-voting first, second and third preferred shares:

The non-voting shares and the non-voting preferred shares are subject to limitations to be fixed by the
Board of Directors.

Issued and outstanding:

Dn August 30, 2005, the Corporation’s cemmon shares were restructured into two classes of shares: common
voting shares and variable voling shares [cotlectively, the “voting shares” or "shares”]. Each issued and
sulstanding common share which was not owned and controlled by a Canadian within the meaning of
the Canada Transportation Act was canverted into one variable voting share and the cormmon share was
cancalled. Each issued and outstanding comman share which was owned and contralled by a Canadian
wilhin the meaning of the Canada Transportation Act was converled into one common voting share and the
common share was cancelled.
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7. Share capital [comtinued):

[b] Issued and outstanding lcontinued):

2006 2005
Number Amount Number Amount

Common and variable voting shares:

Balance, beginning of year 129,575,099 $ 429,613 125,497,407 $ 390,469
Exercise of options 73,587 — 1,333,791 3389
Stock-based compensation

expense on stock options exercised - 1,642 - 488
Issued from treasury [see note 7le|) - - 2,743,901 35410
Share issuance cosls - {tal - 1215)
Tax benefit of issue costs — 3 — 72

Balance, end of year 129,648,688 $ 4317248 129,575,099 $ 429613

As at December 31, 2006, the number of comman voting shares and variable voting shares amounted to

124,495,951 (2005 - 119.378.637) and 5.152,737 [2005 - 10,196,462) respectively.

[c) Stock Qption Plans:

The Corporation has Stack Option Plans, whereby up te a maximum of 12,957 831 common and variable voting

shares may be issued to officers and employees of the Corporation subject to the following limitaticns:

[il  the number of voting sharas reserved for issuance to any one optionee will not exceed 5% of the issued

and outstanding common and variable voting shares at any time;

[iil  the number of voting shares reserved for issuance to insiders shall not exceed 10% of the issued and

outstanding common and variable vating shares; and

[iii]  the number of voting shares issuahle under the Steck Option Plans, which may be issued within a

one-year period, shall not exceed 10% of the issued and outstanding common and variable voting
shares at any time.

Stock options are granted at a price that equals the market value, have a term of four years and vest on

either the first, second or third anniversary from the date of grant.

Changes in the number of options, with their weighted average exercise prices, are summarized below:

2006 2005
Weighted Weighted
Number of average Number of average
oplions exercise price options exercise price

Stock options outstanding, beginning of year 11,428,718 $ 13.94 10,682,082 $ 12.37

Granted 5,980,660 11.82 4,474.184 14.46

Exercised 1433.129) 11.21 (3,506,625} 9.82

Cancelled £332.711) 13.1¢ 147,309 14.53

Repurchased - - [66,724) 11.9¢

Expired [1.597.337) 13,78 [6.890} 13.79

Stock options outstanding, end of year 15,044,201 $ 13.2% 11,428,718 $ 13.94

Exercisable, end of year 4846236 $ 13.623 3.920,623 $ 12.24
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WestJet Airlines Ltd.

Years ended Decernber 21, 2006 and 2005
|Tabular Amounts are Stated in Thousands ot Dollars, Except Share and Per Share Datal

7. Share capital {continued):

[e) Stock Option Plans (continued):

The following table summarizes the options outsianding and exercisable at Decernber 31, 2004:

Outstanding optians Exercisable options
Weighted

average Weighted Weighted
Range of Number remaining average Number average
exercise prices outstanding life [years) exercise Price exercisable exercise Price
$9.74-$11.28 2,283,529 0.44 $ 1.9 2,222,560 5N
$11.81-%13.80 5,944,711 33 11.84 49,045 12.12
$14.13 - $18.41 4,817,541 1.94 15.08 2,554,651 15.78
15,046,201 2.25 $ 13.21 4,846,236 $ 13.63

Under the terms of the Corparation’s Stock Option Plans, a cashless settlement alternative is available
whereby option halders can either [al elect ta receive shares by delivering cash to the Corporation or [b] elect
to receiva a number of shares equivaient to the difference between the market vatue of the options and the
aggregate exercise price. For the year ended December 31, 2006, option holders exercised 433,129 {2005 -
3,151,923) options on a cashless settlement basis and received 73,589 (2005 - %79,089) shares.

In 2005, certain executives holding total options of 66,724, at an exercise price of $11.99, offered the
Corperation an opportunity to purchase and cancel their eptions in consideration of payment by the
Corporation in cash for a fixed price of $320,000, The agreements were accepted by the Corporation and
the options were cancelled.

|d} Per share amounts:

The follawing table summarizes the shares used in calculating net earnings per share:

2006 2005
Weighted average number of shares outstanding - basic 129,585,403 128,031,694
Effect of dilutive employee stock options 124,321 392,408
Weighted average number of shares outstanding - diluted 129,709,724 128,424,302

For the year enged Decamber 31, 2004, a total of 12,823,662 (2005 - 8,672.329) options were not included in
the calculalion of dilutive potential shares as 1he result would be anti-dilutive.

{e] Employee Share Purchase Plan:

The Corporation has an Employee Share Purchase Plan |[ESPP] whereby the Corporation matches every
dollar contributed by each employee. Under the terms of the ESPP, employees may contribute up to a
maximurn of 20% of their gross pay and acquire voting shares of the Corporation at the current fair market
value of such shares.

The Corporation has the option to acquire voting shares on behalf of employees through open market
purchases ar to issue new shares frem treasury at the current market price. For the period January to Octeber
2005, shares under the ESPP were issued from treasury at the current market price. Subsequent to this
period and continuing throughout 2006, the Corporation elecled to purchase these shares through the open
market and will conlinue Lo review this optionin the future. For the year ended Dacember 31, 2006, $NIL (2005
- $35,410,000) of voting shares were issued from treasury, of which $NIL (2005 - $17,705,000] represented
the Corporation’s matiching contribution for employee contributiens, for which no cash was exchanged.
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7. Share capital lcontinued):

le] Employee Share Purchase Plan: [continued):
Current market price for voting shares issued from treasury is determined based on weighted average trading

price of the voting shares on the Taronto Stock Exchange for the five trading days preceding the issuance.

Shares acquired for the ESPP are held in trust for one year. Employees may offer to sell voting shares, which
have not beer held for at least one year, on January 1 and July 1 of each year, to the Corporation for 50% of
the then current market price.

The Corporaticn’s share of the contributions is recorded as compensation expense and amounted to
428,209,000 (2005 - $21,690,0001.
[f] Stock-based compensation:

The fair value of each option grant is estirmated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing
model. The following weighted average assumptions were used to determine the fair market value of options
granted during the years ended December 31:

2006 2005
Weighted average fair market value per option $ 429 $ 526
Average risk-free interest rate 4.2% 4%
Avarage volatility 4L2% 3%
Expected life lyears) 3.6 3.7
Dividend per share $ D0.00 $ 000
The Corporation has not incorporated an estimated forfeiture rate for stock oplions that will not vest. Rather,
the Corporation accounts for actual forfeitures as they occur,
Employee stock option compensation expense is included in flight operations and general and administration
expenses and tolalled $21,205,000 (2005 - $17,404,000, net of repurchase of $320,000 as noted in 7(c)}.

{g] Contributed surplus:

Changes to contributed surplus were as follows:

2006 2005
Balance, beginning of year $ 39,093 $ 21,977
Stock-based compensation expense 21,205 17,604
Stock oplions exercised [1.642] (488)
Bzlance, end of year $ 58656 $ 39.093

2004 | West et Annual Report 51
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WestJet Airlines Lid.

Years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 .
[Tabular Amounts are Stated in Thousands of Dollars, Except $hare and Per Share Datal

B. Income taxes:

The provision for income taxes differs from that which would be expected by applying the combined federal and
provincial stalutory rates.

A recanciliation of the difference is as follows:

2006 2005
Earnings before income taxes % 164,481 % 51,979
Income tax rate 34.21% 36.04%
Expected income tax provision 546,249 18,212
Add [deduct]:
Non-deductible expenses 1,440 1,219
Non-deductible stock-based cormpensation 7,249 6,208
Non-taxable portion of capital gains [128] [1.470)
Effect of tax rate changes (16,901} [1,426)
Large corporations tax and capital taxes 3192 6.059
Other [1.318) (828}
$ 49,805 $ 2797
The Corporation has included in its reconciliation an amount of $16,201,000 (2005 — $1,424,000] that reflects
the effect of tax rate changes. This balance includes a reduction to the Corporation’s future 1ax liability totalling
$11,333,000 (2005 - $NIL} as a result of the federal gavernment and various provinces, in which the Corporation
operates, enacting legistation during the second quarter of 2006 that reduced the federal and provincial statutory
income tax rates. This amount also includes for 2006 $5,568,000 12005 - $,626,000] of tax rate changes required
to reconcile the Corporations’ combined current federal and provincial statutory rates to the Corporation’s
anticipated future federal and provinciat tax rates.
The components of the net future tax liability are as follows:
2006 2005
Future income tax asset:
Share issue costs $ 581 $ 1,368
Non-capital losses 89,017 44,448
Deferred partnership loss 12,466 52,831
Future income tax liability:
Property and eguipment [251,347) {201,298
$ 149,283 $ (102,651)

The Corporation has recognized a benefit on $291.7 million of non-capital losses which are available for carry
forward to reduce taxable income in future years. These losses will begin to expire in the year 2014,

The non-capital losses recognized resuit from tax deductions taken in excess of taxable earnings. The Corporation
has the ability to adjust tax deductions to avoid losses from expiry.
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9. Cash flow information:

la] Change in non-cash working capital from operations:

2006 2003

Increase [decrease] in accounts receivable % [4.623) $ 4,792
Decrease [increase] income taxes recoverable 89 [11,055)
Decrease lincreasel in prepaid expenses and deposits 1,019 (6,253}
Increase in inventory [1,941) (877)
Increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities 21,105 B,167
Increase in advance ticket sales 21,293 45,459
Increase in non-refundable guest credits 7.694 6,110
Other non-cash items 1929) 153)
$ 43707 $ 46,290

[b

Supplemental cash flow information:

As at December 31, 2006, cash and cash equivalents includes short-term investments of $316,951,000
{2005 - $21%.030,000).

As at December 31, 2006, the Corporation had US-dollar cash and cash equivalents totatling US $32,019,000
{2005 - US $35,453,000).

As at December 31, 2004, cash and cash equivalents include US $5,279,000 (2005 - $4,470,000i and CAD
$1,858,000 {2005 - $NIL) of restricted cash. US $186,000 12005 - US $153.0001 is cash not yet remitted for
passenger facility charges.

Cash interest paid during the year was $467.077,000 (2005 - $54,488.000].
Cash taxes paid during the year were $3.081,000 (2005 - $10,151,000].

10. Commitments and contingencies:

la) Aircraft:
The Corporation has remaining commitments to purchase six 737-700s and one 737-800 to be delivered
over the course of 2007 and 2008.
The Corperation has an agreement with Live TV to install, maintain and operate live satellite television on
all atrcraft with the ability to cancel installing the system on future aircraft deliveries, subject to certain
applicable penalties. This agreement contains an exclusivity clause which expires on July 1, 2009.

The Corporation has signad an agreement with Bell ExpressVu for a seven-year term to provide satellite
programming. The agreement commenced in 2004 and can be renewed for an additional five years.

The remaining estimated amounts to be paid in deposits and purchase prices in US dollars relating to the
purchases of the remaining aircraft, live satellite television systems and winglets are as follows:

2007 $ 153,255
2008 101,330
2009 5343

$ 259,928
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

WestJet Airlines Ltd.

Years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005
[Tabular Amounts are Stated in Thousands of Dollars, Except Share and Per Share Dataj

10. Commitments and contingencies lcontinued}:

(bl Employee profit share:

The Corporation bas an employee profit sharing plan whereby eligible employees participate in the pre-tax operating income
of the Corporation. The profit share ranges from a minimum of 10% to a maximum of 20% of earnings before employee profit
share and incomne taxes. The amounts paid under the plan are subject to prior approval by the Board of Directors.

lcl Contingencies:

On April 4, 2004, Air Canada commenced a lawsuit against the Corporation, Air Canada claimed damages in the amount of
$220 million in an amendment to its Statement of Claim. On May 29, 2006, as a fult settlement, the Corporation agreed to pay
Air Canada’s investigation and litigation costs incurred of $5.5 million and accepted Air Canada’s request that the Corporation
make a donation in the amount of $10 million in the name of Air Canada and the Corporation to children’s charities across the
country, Air Canada accepted the Corporation’s apology and withdrew its claims in light of this settlement. All legal proceedings
between the parties have been terminated. These amounts and other settlemant costs totalling $15,600,000 have been paid
as at December 31, 2006, and have bean included in non-recurring expenses.

A Statement of Claim was also filed by Jetsgo Corperation in the Ontario Superior Courl on October 15, 2004, against the
Corporation, an officer, and a former officer [the "Defendants™). The principal allegations are that the Defendants conspired
together to unlawfully obtain Jetsga’s proprietary infarmation and to use this proprietary infarmation to harm Jetsqo and
benefit the Corporation. The Plaintiff is seeking damages in an amount to be determined plus $50 million, but the Plaintiff
has provided no details or evidence to substantiate its claim. On May 13, 2005, Jetsgo Corporation declared bankruplcy. As a
result, this action has been stayed and no further steps can be taken in the litigation unless a court order is oblained.

The Corparation is party to other legal proceedings and claims that arise during the ordinary course of business. It is the
opinien of management that the ultimate outcome of these and any outstanding matters will not have a materiat effect upon
the Corporation’s financial position, results of operations or ¢ash flows.
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11. Financiat instruments and risk management:

(al Fuel risk management:

(b

le

d

le

The Corporation periodically utilizes shori-term and long-term financizl and physical derivative instruments to mitigate its
exposure to fluctuations in jet fuel prices and accounts for these derivatives as cash flow hedges. For the year ended December
31. 2006, the Corporation recognized a net loss of $2,223,000 (2005 - net gain of $155.000] in aircraft fuel resulting from hedging
transactions. As at December 31, 2006, the Corporation has na outstanding jet fuel hedges.

Foreign currency exchange risk:

The Corporatien is expesed to foreign currency fluctuations as certain ongoing expenses are referenced to US-dellar
denominated prices. The Corporation periodically uses financial instruments, including foreign exchange ferward coniracts
and options, tc manage ils exposure.

The Corporation has entered into a contract to purchase US $2.5 million per manth at a forward rate of 1.11 for the payment
period from October 2005 to March 2007 to hedge a portion of the Corporation’s cormmitted US-dollar lease payments during
the same period. This contract has been designated as a fair value hedge for accounting purposes. The estimated fair market
value of the remaining cantract as at December 31, 2006, is a gain of CAD $349,000.

Interest rate risk:

The Corparation is exposed to interest rate fluctuations on variabte interest rate debt [see note 4].

Credit risk:

The Corporation does not believe it is subject to any significant cencentration of credit risk. Most of the Corporation’s receivables
result from tickets sold to individual guests through the use of major credit cards and travel agents, These receivables are
short term, generally being settled shortly aftar the sale. The Corporation manages the credit expesure relatad to financial
instruments by selecling counter parties based on credit ratings, limiting its exposure 1o any single counter party. and
monitoring the market position of the program and its relative market position with each counter party.

Fair value of financial instruments:

The carrying amounts of financial instruments included in the balance sheet, other than long-term debt, approximate their
fair value due to their short term to maturity.

At December 31, 2006, the fair value of long-term debt was approximately $1.5 billion (2005 - $1.2 billion]. The fair value of long-
term debt is determined by discaunting the future contractual cash flows under current financing arrangements at discount
rates which represent borrowing rates presently availabie o the Corporation for leans with similar terms and maturity.
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LEFT TO RIGHT: Don Bell. Executive Vice-President, Culture; Dr. Hugh Dunleavy, Executive Vice-President, Commercial Distribution; Clive Beddoe, Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer; Sean Durfy, President; Fred Ring, Executive Vice-President, Corporate Projects: Ken McKenzie, Executive Vice-President,
Operations: Bob Cummings, Executive Vice-President, Guest Experience and Marketing. NOT PICTURED IN PHOTO: Janice Paget, Vice-President, Controller and
Co-Chief Financial Officer; Derek Payne, Vice-President. Finance and Corporate Services and Co-Chief Financial Officer
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We would now like tg tell you.about
some importantieatias of this airline.
The most important one is our people
(or WestJetters as we like to call them).
You can easily locate them - they're
the ones with the smiles. The caring
treatment that WesiJetters provided to
our guests in 2006 goes a long way to
expltain the encouraging resuits that we

will be outlining in the pages ahead.

LILLIANE HRNCIRIK | CAROL ST. AMOUR

Payroll, Manager Payroli, Team Lead

MANAG E M ENT’S D ISCUSS'O N WestJet's 2006 financial overview telis a compelling story.

Favourable revenue growth, continued cost control and an

AN D A NA LYS | S O F increasing demand for our product preduced consistently strong

financial results throughout the year. In 2005, we generated an

F| NAN c IAI_ R ES U I_TS 11.2% operating margin, .8 points higher than in 2005, and one

of the best operating margins in the North American airline

2006 AT A GLANCE industry.

Our strong performance began in the first quarter of 2006, with
profits that surpassed any other first guarter in our history. The
momentum generated from the success of this period carried
through te the remaining quarters of the year where we also
realized record earnings. We completed the year with net
earnings of $114.7 million for the full year 2006,

FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION Certain information set forth in this document, including managemenl's assessmant of WestJel's fulure plans and cperations, conlains lorwand-
looking statements. These lorward locking stalements typically contain the words “anticipate,” “beliove,” “estimate” “intend,” “expect” “may,” "will, "should” or clher similar lerms. By Lheir
nature, forward-lecking slatements are subject Lo humerpus nsks and uncertainties. some of which are beyond Westjel's control. including the impacl of general economic conditions,
changing domestic and internalional industry condilions, volatility of fuct prices, lermorism, currency fluctuatiens, interest rates, competilion from other industry participants [including
new entrants, and generalty as Lo capacity lluctuations and pricing environmentl, labour matters, governmenl regulation, stock-market votatility and the abilily to access suflicient capital
trern internal and external sources. Readers are cautioned that management’s expectations, estimates. projections and assumptions used in the preparation of such information, altlhcugh
considered reasonable at the ime of preparation, may prove to be imprecise and, as such, undue reliance should not be placed on forward-looking statermnents. WestJet's aclual results,
performance or achievernents could differ materially (rom those expressed in, or implied by, these lorward-looking stalements. Additional information relating o WestJet, including Annual
Information Forms and financial statements, is localed on SEDAR at www.sedar.com. To supplement its consclidated financial statements presenled in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles {GAAPL, the Company uses various non-GAAP performance measures, including avatable scat mile [ASMI, cosl per available seat mile [CASM] defined
as operaling expenses divided by available seal miles, revenue per available seat mile [RASM| defined as lotal revenue divided by available seal miles, revenue per revenuc passenger
mile ["yietd") defined as total revenue divided by revenue passenger miles, operating revenues defined as the total of guest revenues, charter and other revenues and inleresl income,
operating margin defined as earnings from operations divided by tolal revenues, and lead factor defined as revenue passenger miles divided by available seat miles. These measures are
provided o enhance the user’s overall understanding of the Company's current linancial performance and are included (o provide investors and management with an allernative method
for assessing the Company’s operating resulls in @ manner that is focused on the performance of the Company’s ongeing operations and to provide a more consistent basis for cemparisen
between quarters. These measures are not in accordance with or an allerrative for GAAP and may be dilferent frem measures used by other companies.
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CHARMAINE ARSENAULT
Aircrait Maintenance Engineer

In 2006, we generated one of
the best operating margins

in the North American airline
industry, growing by 6.8 points
from 2005. Our focus on cost
control is fundamental to our
success. We continuously look
for ways to keep Westlet's
low-cost competitive advantage.

Our successful efforts to increase value for our shareholders
were realized through our improved earnings per share. For the
fourth quarter of 2006, diluted earnings per share increased
to arecord 21 cents, compared to one cent in the same period
in 2005. Diluted earnings per share for the entire year was 88
cents cornpared to 19 cents in 2005,

Our fourth quarter and year-end results can be attributed to
a healthy RASM performance, our continuous commitment to
cost control and increased productivity through efficient fleet
utilization,

Revenue per ASM for the fourth quarter increased to 13.9
cents, a slight change over 2005's 13.6 cent RASM, as expected
given our significant capacity increases. For the fult year 2004,
RASM was up to 14.2 cents from 13.0 cents in 2005. Throughout
the year, we have focused on RASM as a key measure for
assessing our airline’s strength. Our healthy 2006 RASM is
most impressive when looked at in conjunction with our full-
year capacity increases of 17.3% and load factor improvements
of 3.6 points.

In the fourth quarter of 2005, we increased our network capacity
by 23.3% to 3.3 billion ASMs, compared to 2.7 billion ASMs in the
same period in 2005, We also shifted 12% of our total capacity
into our transherder routas at the same time; this was almost
doubie the capacity shift that we performed in 2005 during the
same period. Year-end capacity increased to 12,5 bitlion ASMs
compared to 10.7 billion in 2005.

Even with 12 consecutive months of increasing seat capacity in
our retwerk, the demand for our product remained streng, as
tllustrated by our fourth quarter load factor increase o 75.5%
from 74.7% in the same period 2005 and our highest annual
toad factor o date of 78.2%, up 3.6 points from 74.6% in 2005.
Demand for our product was further illustrated by improvements
in fourth quarter yield, showing a slight improvement of 0.5%
increasing to 18.4 cents. Yield for the full-year 2006 increased
to 18.1 cents, an increase of 3.4% over 17.5 cents in 2005.

During 2004, we flew 11.2 million segment guests to destinations
within Canada and beyond our barders, an 18.5% increase over
that of 2005. These numbers are proof of our growing guest
base and the market’s ability to absorb the additional supply
of seats.

Our focus on cost control is fundamental to our success and is a
company-wide initiative. We continuously lock for ways to keep
WestJet's low-cost competitive advantage. As a result of our
peoptes’ efforts, we reduced our fourth quarter CASM by 4.1%
from the same guarter in 2005 and successfully maintained
our 2004 full-year CASM at 12.6 cents, a less than one per cent
increase over 12.5 cents in 2005. We are particularly pleased
that these full-year costs were achieved in the face of higher
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fuel prices that continued to place uncanirollable pressure on
our operating costs. Excluding fuel, our CASM in the last quarter
of 2006 decreased by 3.6% to 9.3 cents compared to 9.7 cents
in the fourth quarter of 2005. For the whole of 2006, cur CASM
excluding fuel remained consistent with 2005, at 9.2 cents.

We began 2006 with the strategically planned retirement of our
remaining 737-200 aircraft, leaving us with the youngest fleet
operated by any large North American commercial airtine. In
January 2004, our fleet consisted of 54 aircraft. We retired our
last three 200-series aircraft early in the year and continued
to expand our fteet with the addition of 10 737-600s and two
737-700s, bringing our tatal registered fleet at year-end 2006
to 63 Next-Generation aircraft.

These aircraft allowed us to further develop our route network

across Canada, the United States and to cur first international

destination, Nassau, Bahamas, in November 2006. By adding
these aircraft into our scheduled netwark, we increased our
capacity by 17.3%, as measured by available seat miles. Qur

- - - . 1
Annual Audited Financial Infoermation IN MILLIONS EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA]

growth stralegy relies on increasing our network capacity
through the addition of aircraft, as well as increasing
the utilization of our aircraft on a daily basis to maximize
productivity.

SELECTED ANNUAL AND
QUARTERLY INFORMATION

The tables below ["Annual Audited Financial Informaticn” and
“Quarterly Unaudited Financial Information”] set forth selected
data derived from our censolidated financial statements
for the three years ended and the eight previous quarters
ended December 31, 2004. These tables have been prepared
in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles and are reported in Canadian dollars. This information
should be read in conjunction with the consclidated financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2006, and related
notes thereto.

2006 2005 2004
Total revenues $ 177 $ 1393 $ 1057
Net earnings [loss} $ 15 $ 24 $ 07
Basic earnings [loss) per share $ 088 $ 019 $ 10.14)
Diluted earnings [loss] per share $ 0388 $ D019 $ (0.14])
Total assets $ 2,727 $ 2.213 $ 1877
Total long-term [iabilities™ $ 1,461 $ 1,180 $ 1.020
Shareholders™ equity % 804 $ 570 % 590

111 Long-term liabilties in¢tude current and long-term portions of long-term debt and obligations under captal leases and ather Labilties.

Quarterly Unaudited Financial Information (IN MILLIONS EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA}

Three Months Ended

Dec. 31, 2006 Sept. 30, 2006 June 30, 2006 Mar. 31, 2006
Total revenues $ 480 % 502 $ 425 $ 387
Net earnings $ 27 $ 53 $ 22 $ 13
Basic earnings per share $ o $ 041 $ 017 s 010
Dituted earnings per share $ 0 $ 041 $ 017 $ 0.0

Three Months Ended

Dec. 31, 2005 Sept. 30, 2005 June 30, 2005 Mar. 31, 2005
Total revenues $ 367 $ 406 $ 3% $ 2%
Net earnings (loss) $ 1 $ 30 $ 2 $ {10}
Basic earnings [loss) per share $  0;m $ 024 $ 002 $ {008
Diluted earnings [loss] per share $ 00 $ 023 $ 002 $ {0.08)
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Our business is seascnal in nature with varying levels of activity
throughout the year. We experience increased domestic travel
in the summer months (second and third quarters) and more
demand for transborder and charter sun destinations over the
winter period [fourth and first quarters]. With the introduction
of our first transborder destination in September 2004, we
have been able to somewhat alleviate the affects of seasanality
on our net earnings, In 2006, we focused on allocating our
netwoerk capacity to our domestic and transborder markets as
appropriate based on demand in the season.

In the quarter ended March 31, 2005, we reported a net loss of
$9.6 millicn as a result of the impact of tower fares throughout
the domestic airline system driven by intense competition
and extremely high fuel prices. This created a high-cost and
low-yield environment. Market rationalizaticn was reinstated
at the end of March 2005 when Jetsge ceased operations. This
raterially changed our operating environment and we began
to witness significant improvements in our yield.

YEAR 2006 COMPARED TO YEAR 2005
REVENUE

Three Months Ended

Twelve Months Ended

December 31 December 31
RASM [in cents) 2006 2005 % Change 2006 2005 % Change
Guest revenues 12.40 12.18 1.81% 12.44 11.31 9.99%
Charter and other 1.33 1.38 [3.62%) 1.61 1.68 [4.17%])
Interest income D13 0.08 62.50% 0.1 0.06 83.33%
13.86 13.64 1.61% 14.16 13.05 8.51%

Our 2004 fourth quarter operating revenues increased to $459.4
million, compared to $366.8 million in the same period 2005.
Full-year aperating revenues increased to $1.8 billion during
2006, a 27.4% increase over that of 2005. The increase in guest
revenues was driven by a fourth quarter capacity increase of
23.3% ta 3.3 billion ASMs and a full-year increase of 17.3%
to 12.5 billion ASMs. Our ability to fill these seats came from
marketing efforis, our ability te match our capacity to the
demands of our guests and our exceptional guest service that
continues to build brand loyalty and repeat business.

Qur charter and other revenues per ASM decreased slightly
for both the full year and quarter ended December 31, 2004,
primarily due to an increase in our scheduled transborder
operations during these perads relative to our charter network.
We also generated non-transportation revenues from interest
income. Interest incame during the year and fourth quarter 2004
increased as a result of our higher cash balance.

Ancillary revenues provide an opportunity to maximize our
profits threugh higher margin items while enhancing cur overall
guest experience. We gererate ancillary revenue primarily from
fees associated with guest itinerary changes, excess baggage
fees, buy-on-board food sales and headset sales. In 2006,
ancillary revenues grew by 67.6% over 2005 to $74.8 million.

A significant revenue initiative we undertook during 2006 was
the launch of a wholly cwned subsidiary of WestJet Airlines Lid.,

18

Westlet Vacations Inc. offering guests packaged vacation
options that may include hotels, car rentals, attractions and
insurance. WestJet Yacations leverages cur aircraft, schedule
and renowned guest experience while cperating in the same
low-cost rmanner. Fully operational in September, WestJet
Vacations surpassed forecasted expectations for Z2004.

During the year, we focused our strategy around seasonal
capacity adjustments. Shifting our capacity to higher-demand
markets, based on the seasenal demand for those routes, has
become an important part of our deployment strategy. Typically,
there is a natural decline in domestic travel during the winter
months, which fall within the first and fourth quarters of our
‘fiscal year. During these slower times, we capitalize on the
ability of cur sunny transborder destinations to attract leisure
travellers that want to escape the Canadian winter months. Our
ability te maximize fleet efficiency through diligent netwerk
management has directly contributed to our noteworthy
operating margin performance throughcut 2006.

Along with careful planning of our routes, fleet optimization
was another focus in 2006, and contributed to the overall
productivity of cur airline. During the year, we increased our
aircraft utilization by 5.3% te 11.9 operating block hours per
day compared to 11.3 operating block hours per day in 2005.
Increasing the utilization of our aircraft increases our revenue-
generating potential and allows us to gain cost efficiencies,

2006 t WestJet Annual Report




EXPENSES

Cost Per Available Seat Mile Icasm) In CENTS}

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Aircraft fuel 3.40 3.32 2.69 2.27 2.40
Airport operations 2.09 2.05 1.94 1.78 1.90
Flight operations and navigational charges 1.83 V.72 1.66 1.53 1.63
Sales and marketing 1.24 116 0.95 0.84 0.96
Depreciation and amortization™ 0.89 1.00 0.58 0.92 1.13
General and administration 0.64 0.67 0.70 0.70 0.92
Aircraft leasing 0.57 0.62 D.46 0.64 0.77
Interest expense 0.56 0.52 0.49 0.34 0.16
Maintenance 0.56 0.67 0.85 1.0 1.49
Inflight 0.54 0.50 0.49 0.47 0.59
Guest services 0.25 0.26 0.26 0.32 0.43

12.57 12.49 11.37 10.89 12.58
CASM, excluding fuel 9.17 2.17 8.68 8.62 10.18

1] For comparative purposes. the impairment loss ol $47.577.000. related 1 the early replacement of our 737-200 aircralt, included in depreciation ang amertizalien expense has been excluded

rom unit-cos1 calgulations for 2004

Cost Per Available Seat Mile (IN cENTS)

Three Months Ended Twelve Months Ended

December 31 December 31
CASM (in cents) 2004 2005 % Change 2006 2005 % Change
Aircraft fuel 3 3.48 (12.77%]) 3.40 332 2.41%
Airport operations 214 210 1.90% 2.09 2.05 1.95%
Flight operations and navigational charges  1.88 1.77 6.21% 1.83 1.72 5.60%
Sales and marketing 1.24 1.38 18.70%]) 1.24 1.16 6.90%
Depreciation and amortization 0.91 1.03 (11.65%) 0.89 1.00 [11.00%)
General and administration 0.66 0.73 [5.59%) 0.64 0.67 [4.48%]
Aircraft leasing 0.53 0.72 126.39%) 0.57 0.62 (2.046%)
Interest expense 0.58 0.55 5.45% 0.56 0.52 7.69%
Maintenance 0.53 0.5% {10.17%) 0.56 0.47 [16.42%)
Inflight 0.56 0.51 2.80% 0.54 0.50 8.00%
Guest services 0.24 0.28 {7.14%]) 0.25 0.26 (3.85%)
12.52 13.34 16.15%) 12.57 12.49 0.64%

Keeping costs low is a key component of our business model and
has played an important role in our ability tc generate industry-
leading operating margins during 2006. Part of cur competitive
advantage is our ability to operate with costs below that of our
competitors. We have achieved strong bottem-line performance
by centinually striving for efficiencies in our operaticns.

Our longer average stage length, which increased to 833 miles
from B0Z miles in 2005, has played a role in creating cost
efficiencies. Defined as the average distance of a {light between
takeoff and landing, average stage length has a significant
impact on our unit costs, As it increases, cost efficiencies
are gained and we achieve a lower average cost per mile.
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This is because our fixed costs of operations are shared over an
increasing number of miles flown.

On a stage length adjusted basis, we estimate our CASM should
have decreased by 2.1% to 12.2 cents per ASM. Increases in
costs were driven primarily by uncontrollable higher fuel costs,
airport operations and increases in certain direct fixed costs
impacted by new initiatives undertaken during the year. These
initiatives typically are intended to enhance our long-term
business objectives, such as incentive programs implermented
to increase travel agent and corporate sales and an enhanced
compensation structure under our new pilot agreement.




RICHARD PRIEBE | THERESA NORDMARK

Senior Financial Accountant Financial Reporting, Administrative Assistant

We successfully managed high
fuel costs through operating
efficiencies inherent in our
infrastructure. One of our most
significant cost advantages is
that we operate the youngest
fleet operated by any large North
American commercial airline.

20

AIRCRAFT FUEL

In 2006, the average price of oil increased by 17% over 2005
to WTI US $66.10 per barrel, which increased our fuel CASM by
0.2 cents during 2006, However, as a result of internat cost-saving
efforts and the strengthening Canadian dottar, our realized cost
of fuel per litre increased at a lower rate of 7.5%, to 68.9 cents
per litre compared to 64.1 cents in 2005. Similarly, our fuel
CASM increased at a stower pace, by only 2.4% tc 3.4 cents
from 3.3 cents in 2005,

We successfully managed high fuel costs through operating
efficiencies inherent in our infrastructure. Cne of our most
significant cost advantages is that we operate the youngest fleet
of any large North American commercial airling, comprised of
fuel-efficient Boeing Next-Generation aircraft. Furthermore,
we have implemented fuel conservation programs througheout
our operations to minimize the impact of increasing energy
costs. Our larger 700-series and 800-series aircraft are all
equipped with blended winglet technology that further improves
the fuel efficiency of these new aircraft. Along with increasing
the efficiency of our productive assets, our pilots and ground
handlers contribute to daily fuel cost-saving effarts to minimize
fuel consumption.

Our 3.9% longer average stage length in 2006 contributed to
increased fuel efficiency. Longer-haul routes typically achieve
higher fuel econemy as we are able to absorb the higher costs
of fuel for takeoffs and landings over a longer trip length.

White oil prices did decline in the last three months of 2006
from the elevated levels we experienced throughout the year,
prices in this period remained at abaut the same levels as that
of the fourth quarter of 2005. During the last quarter of 2006,
the price of fuel was WTI US $40.0% per barrel, which is only
slightly higher than the price in the same quarter of 2005 at
WTI US $60.03 per barrel. However, the fourth quarter of 2005
was weathering the effects of hurricanes Rita and Katrina which
impaired refinery utilization, and consequently the supply of
US Gulf Coast [USGC] jet fuel. In the fourth quarter of 2005,
the US-dollar price of USGC per barrel was 9.3% higher when
compared to the average price in the last three months of 2006.
As a resuli, our aircraft fuel cost per ASM was tower by 12.8%
to 3.2 cents during the fourth quarter of 2006 compared to the
same period in 2005. Similarly, our fuel cost per litre during
the fourth quarter of 2006 decreased by 13.1% over the same
period in 2005.

In 2007, we estimate our sensitivity to changes in jet fuel costs
is approximately CAD $7 million for every one-cent-per-litre
change in the price of jet fuel (e.q., $0.6% to $0.68}.
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AIRPORT OPERATIONS

Qur airport operations encompass costs associated with landing
and terminal fees, ground handling and onboard services, such
as buy-on-board food. Airport CASM increased 2.0% in 2006
to 2.09 cents from 2.05 cents. For the three months ended
December 31, 2004, the CASM far airport operations increased
by 1.9% over the same pericd in 2005.

In 2006, costs per departure increased 6.7% over 2005's costs,
primarily driven by our increased transborder flights; utilization
of larger aircraft which drove higher fees; and an increased
number of {lights flying into one of the busiest and most costiy
airports in the world, Toronto's Lester B. Pearson International
Airport.

Fee increases imposed by our airport and ground-handling
partners impacted us an average by approximately 6%, These
costs were further magnified by our expanding international
charter and transborder operations, where the number of
departures grew by 7.9% in 2006 over 2005 and are charged
higher rates and fees compared with our domestic operations.
Our cost per departure for transborder and charter operations is
approximately 263% higher than that of our domestic flights,

Despite higher fees and costs per departure, our airport CASM
grew at a lesser rate primarily as a consequence of the increase
in our average stage length.

Airport operations make up one of our largest costs, representing
approximately 17% of our total operating expenditures. As we
continue to expand our transborder and international network,
these expenses will continue to be significant to our operations.
in arder for us to praperly manage these costs, generatly
controlled by airport authorities, we continually lock for ways
we can improve productivity and reduce operational costs while
at the same time increasing the convenience to our guests.
We do this by seeking opportunities to automate our airport
operations, offering our guests coenvenient online check-in
services for destinations within Canada, as well as equipping
most of our airports with self-service kiosks,

The rise in unit costs for the quarter can be attributed to an
increase in our system-wide weighted average airport rates
and fees increasing by approximately 6%. Our transbarder and
charter activity incur higher airport fees than our Canadian
operations, and the higher terminal and landing fees asscciated
with operating our larger 700-series and 800-series aircraft also
contributed to higher unit costs.

We are encouraged by the slowing pace of airport rates and fee
increases that we witnessed in 2004, as well as this continuing trend
in 2007 - based on the fee schedule released in January 2007,
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FLIGHT OPERATIONS

Our flight operations are largely driven by the cost to compensate
our pilots, including salaries, training and stock option expense.
Qur CASM far flight operations increased by 18.6% during the
faurth quarter and 15.4% for the full year 2006, over the same
periods in 2005. The increase in these costs is primarily due 1o a
new pilot agreement designed ta improve our pilots’ compensation
structure and increase productivily, Approved in the beginning of
the year, this agreement allows our pilots to elect to receive a
certain amount of cash in lieuv of a selected portion of their stock
options. In addition to the operational benefits we derive from this
new agreement, we also benefit from the tax deductibility of the
elected cash cutlay, whereas we do not realize any tax benefits
from stock-based compensation expense.

In the first year of this new agreement, we incurred both 2 cash
expense, for the cash-elected portion under the new agreement,
as well as stock-based compensation expense related to the
options that were granted to all pilots in May of 2006 under
the terms of the old pilot agreement. As a result, in addition
to stock-based compensation expense, we incurred a cash
expense of $10.2 miltion and $3.8 million at year-end and in
the fourth quarter of 2006, respectively. Commencing in 2007,
we expect cur stock-based compensation expense te decrease
as a result of the lower number of options issued due to pilots
electing to receive greater cash compensation in the first year
of the new agreement. In 2006, we recognized $21.2 million in
stock-based compensation expense, an increase of 20.5% as
compared to $17.6 million in 2005.

NAVIGATIONAL CHARGES

Air navigational charges are predominantly driven by the size of
aircraft and distance flown, and are administered on a per-ilight
basis. On a per-departure basis, Nav Canada and FAA costs
rose 3.3% in 2006 over 2005, driven by higher fees associated
with operating larger Next-Generation 737 aircraft and our 3.9%
increase in average stage length. On a per-ASM basis, our year-
over-year navigational charges have declined by approximately
1%, primarily as a result of the growth in our netwerk capacity
outpacing the increase in our number of flights.

SALES AND MARKETING

Sales and marketing encompasses a wide variety of expenses
related to advertising and promotions, travel agency commissians,
corporate incentive programs, credit card fees, global distribution
system costs, the AIR MILES® reward miles program costs,
and live satellite television licensing fees. CASM for sales and
marketing expenses increased 6.9%, from 1.16 cents in 2005
to 1.24 cents in 2006.
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WE BRING PEOPLE TOGETHER with our 35-city North American and Caribbean netwerk.




in 2006, we increased our efferts to attract sales from corporate
customers. Business travellers are an important guest segment
for our airline as they are more likely to travel several times
throughout the year, they tend to purchase {ares closer to the
date of travel that have higher margins and are typically less
price sensitive than leisure travellers. In times of economic
uncertainty or a sharp decline in consumer cenfidence, the
amount of leisure travel typically declines while business travel
remains more stable. To increase our corporate sales, we offer
incentive programs that encourage corporations to reach
targeted purchase volumes in order to receive discounted fares.

Sales and marketing CASM for the fourth quarter of 2004
decreased by 8.7% when compared to the last three months of
2005, resulting from a decrease in advertising and promations
costs in the current period. In the later part of 2005, we initiated
our WestJet “Owners” campaign to refresh our brand awareness
across Canada. We are pleased with the pasitive respense we
have received from this campaign from both our WestJetters
and our guests.

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

In 2006, our depreciation and amortization expense per unit
decreased 11.0% to 0.8% cents, compared to one cent in 2005,
and declined by 11.7% in the fourth quarter of 2006 compared to
the same period in 2005. With the stronger Canadian dollar, our
depreciation expense, which is based on a dollar rate per cycle
determined using the cost of the aircraft net of residual value,
has declined. In addition, we incurred one-time adjustments
related to the early retirement of our 737-200 capital leases in
the fourth quarter of 2005.

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATION

General and administrative costs pertain to our acceunting,
treasury, audit and advisery services, information technolagy,
legal, “people” [human resources), procurement and logistics
and facilities teams. Also included in these costs are executive
compensation, professional fees and insurance.

In 2008, total general and administrative costs decreased 4.5%
over 2005 and geclined by 9.6% during the last three months of
2006 compared to the same quarter in 2005. Unit cost reductions
during these periods were driven primarily by reduced legal fees
incurred from the setllement of our lawsuit with Air Canada in
May 2006.
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Operational Performance

Our 2006 operational performance was among the
top five for North America®

+ Dn-time Performance B1.7% - ranking second in
North America

+ Completion Rate 99.5% - ranking second in North
- America

+ Baggage Handling: 4.44/1000 hags that did not arrive
with the guest at their destination - ranking fourth in
North America

*Out of 20 airlines in the .S, thal report,

AIRCRAFT LEASING

Our most significant infrastruciure cost is our aircraft. To support
our growth initiatives, we investigate various alternatives for
financing, with the intention of achieving optimal balance sheet
flexibility while realizing the benefits of low-cost financing.
Leasing is often an attractive alternative to debt-financed
aircraft for reasons such as alleviaticn of cbsolescence risk and
the significantly reduced upfrent cash outlay being required to
fund deposits on purchased aircraft.

Aircraft leasing costs, on a CASM basis, decreased 8.1% in 2006
compared to 2005, and also decreased by 26.4% in the fourth
quarter of 2006 versus the same quarter in 2005. The decline
in our aircraft leasing costs was driven primarity by the dilution
of these costs over a greater number of available seat miles. In
2006, we operated the full year with 18 Next-Generation aircraft
financed under operating lease arrangements, comprised of 13
737-700s and five 737-800s. In 2007 through to 200%, we have
committed to lease an additional 11 737-700s and twa 737-800s,
lor terms ranging from eight ta 10 years. in US dollars.

INTEREST EXPENSE

Owning newer aircraft dees carry higher ownership costs;
however, the benefits gained from operating such aircraft offset
these increased costs through higher productivity, improved fuel
efficiency and lower maintenance cests.

On a per-ASM basis, our interest expense increased by 7.7%
in 2006 1o .54 cents for the year, compared to 0.52 cents per
ASM in 2005. This increase is primarily due to the additicnal
$418.6 million in debt that we incurred in 2006 to support the
acquisition of 12 new Nexlt-Generation aircraft. All tong-term
debt related to the financing of our Next-Generation aircraft,
which accounis for %7% of our total long-term debt, is financed




on a fixed-rate basis in Canadian dollars at an average rate
of 5.3%. The fixed-rate nature of our financing eliminates the
risk of interest-rate fluctuations over the life of the debt. In
addition, the ability to finance the US-dollar purchase price of
these aircraft with Canadian-dollar debt eliminates cur foreign
currency exposure aver the term of the debt,

MAINTENANCE

Maintenance costs per ASM decreased 14.4% to 0.56 cents in
2006 from 0.67 cents in 2005. During the fourth quarter of 2005,
our maintenance CASM decreased by 10.2% to 0.53 cents over
the same period in 2005. The decrease in our unit maintenance
costs can be attributed to operating an overall younger fleet of
aircraft compared to 2005. in January of 2006, we retired the
last of our 200-series aircraft, {eaving us with a fleet comprised
of only new Boeing Next-Generation aircraft. At the end of 2006,
the average age of cur fleet was 2.5 years compared to 4.3 years
in 2005.

We realize significant unit cost reductions and increased
efficiencies when aperating these new aircraft compared to our
older 737-200 series aircraft. As a result of the increased seat
capacity of these aircraft, higher daily utilization capabilities
and their ability to fly longer distances, economies of scale are
realized with regards to fixed and cycle-driven maintenance
costs incurred on these aircraft.

While the retirement of our older 200-series arcraft in early
2006 dreve the decrease in our overalt unit maintenance
costs over the preceding year, we witnessed a slight increase
in maintenance cost per block hour on our owned 737-700s
because the warranties on some cof these aircrafl expired
during 2006. By the end of 2006, 31% of our owned Nexi-
Generation aircraft were no longer pretected under warranty.
Over the course of 2007, a further 11 aircraft will be coming off
of warranty.

Although we anticipate our unit maintenance costs will increase
as more aircraft come off warranty, the lower interest costs
we will reatize on these aircraft over the course of ownership
will mitigate this increase as their debt is being paid down on
a straight-line basis.

INFLIGHT

Inflight expenses consist of the wages, benefits and training
for our team of flight attendants. Cost per ASM increased
by 9.8% when cemparing the fourth quarter of 2006 to 2005,
and increased 8.0% in 2006 to .54 cents from 0.50 cents in
2005. Annual salary increases and the increase in our aircraft
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utitization, from 11.3 block hours in 2005 to 11.9 block hours
in 2004, drave an increase in this cost category. Furthermore,
the number of crew hours worked as a result of this greater
utilizalion increased our inflight CASM.

GUEST SERVICES

CQur commitment {0 guest service encompasses a strong fecus
on enhancing the overall experience of our guests at every point
of contact, from the time of beoking their flights to reaching
their final destination. Guest service expenditures include the
costs of our Sales Super Centre and our Customer Care team.

Our total 2606 CASM relating to guest service slightly decreased
by 3.9% to 0.25 cents over the full-year 2005 and declined by
7.1% during the fourth quarter of 2006 versus the same quarter
tn 2005. Operating on time is a critical compenent to our
guest experience. During 2004, we focused on implementing
processes to improve our on-time performance. As a result of
successful en-time performance improvement, we reduced our
costs related to compensating our guests for the consequences
of delayed flights, such as re-accommodations and meal-cast
reimbursements.

In 2006, our number of total guests delayed by more than two
hours decreased by 20% over 2005. Similarly, during the fourth
quarter of 2004, 26% fewer guests were delayed on the same
basis. Being able to improve these operating statistics while at the
same time moving 18.5% more guests in 2006 compared to 2005
ts a commendable accomplishment for our operations team.

In 2004, 81.7% of our flights arrived within 15 minutes of their
scheduled time, while 81.4% arrived within the same time frame in
the fourth quarter. Cur perfermance aver the previous year showed
great improvement where 67.9% of our flights arrived within 15
minutes of schedule in the fourth quarter and 76.3% for the full
year. While our operational team maintains a high commitment
to ensure our guests reach their destinations con time, we never
let this objective compromise our safety standards.

Our Sales Super Agents also strive to provide the highest
standard of customer service to our guests. In 2004, our Sales
Super Centre was named the Best Call Centre in the country
in an airline phone survey conducted by Canadian Business
Magazine's consumer reports department. The survey focused
on the quality of customer service in addition to phone wait
times. To supporl guest-focused service, we grade our agents
based on friendliness, knowledge and the ability to take control
of the call. We reward our agenis cn the quality of guest service
they provide 1o our guests through a perfermance-based pay
system which not only encourages excellent customer service
standards but also improves productivity.
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RESERVATIONS SYSTEM

In January 2007, we entered into an agreement with a service
provider to suspend the current aiRES contract in order to
negotiate an amendment to this contract for the successful
delivery of their aiRES reservation system, As at December
31, 2004, we had $31.9 million capitalized, related solely to the
aiRES project. If WestJet and the service provider can not come
to an agreement by May 31, 2007, the parties will each be in a
position to proceed with claims against each other, and there is
the potential of a ene-time write-off of this amount.

On December 22, 2004, we entered into a support agreement
with a service provider, effective through December 2008. This
support agreement will provide us with a supported upgraded
version of our current Open Skies reservation and distributian
system. Further, it will provide us with the functionality required
ta deliver our growth strategy and business plans during the
interim period while we seek to amend our agreement with
the service provider.

While we are committed to completing the aiRES project,
uncertainty does remain, the outcome of which may impact the
future recoverability of the project and have a significant impact
an the financial statements of future periods.

COMPENSATION

Our compensation philosophy is designed to align corporate
and personal success. We have implemented a compensation
plan that allows expenditures associated with labour to adjust
with the variability in our financtal success. Our compensation
strategy encourages employees to become owners in aur
company, which inherently creates a personal vested interest
in our accomplishments, Consequently, our pecple have the
opportunity to improve their compensation through our profit
sharing and employee share purchase plan.

A significant component of our compensation structure is the
employee share purchase plan {ESPP], which allows employees
to participate in our company’s success. Our ESPP is embraced
by our people, as evidenced by 81% of our eligible employees
participating in this program, at the end of 2006. WestJetters
can contribute up to 20% in the ESPP, on average they currently
contribute 13% of their base wage. In order to encourage
West Jetters to participate, we match every dollar contributed by
ernployees to purchase our shares. Dur matching expense in 2006
was $28.2 million, a 30.1% increase from 2005's $21.7 million.

The profit share system is a variable cost that is reduced and
adjusted in less profitable times. Conversely, in good years,
profit share will generously reward employees. Qur average
West Jetter received approximately 8.2% of their base pay as
profit share for 2006.
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GUY CHABOT
Captlain

In 2006, our Super Sales Centre
was named the Best Call Centre
in the country in an airline survey
conducted by Canadian Business
Magazine.
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ALISON BRITTON

Lompensatian Coordinatar

NANCY EATON-DOKE
Comgpensaticn Coordinator

Our compensation strategy
encourages employees to
become owners in our company
which inherently creates for
them a vested interest in our
accompllishments.

The profit share provision amounted to $20.3 million in 2006, a
236.2% increase over the $6.0 million in the previeus year, which
was directly attributable to our increased pre-tax margin.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE

On average, the Canadian deliar was stronger during 2006
compared (o 2005, ending the year at $0.86, relative 1o the US
dollar. WestJet's exposure to the US dollar primarily relates to
aircrafl lease payments, jet fuel, airport operations at eur U.S.
destinations and certain maintenance costs.

To minimize our risk in foreign-exchange movements related to
our US-dollar operating expenditures, we carry US-dollar cash
and cash equivalents to meet these abligations. On average, we
had a balance of approximately US $37 million in cash and cash
equivalents on hand throughout the year.

We estimate that for every $0.01 movement in the Canadian
dollar in relation to the US dollar (e.q., $0.84 to $0.85), our
pre-tax eperating expense would change by approximately
$5.4 million.

INCOME TAXES

Our operations span several tax jurisdictions, which subjects our
income Lo various rates of taxation. As such, the camputation
of the provision for income taxes involves judgments based
on the analysis of several different pieces of legislation and
reguiations.

Our effective consclidated income tax rate for 2006 was
approximately 30% of earnings before inceme taxes, which was
lower than expected. During the second quarter of 2006 the
federat government, along with several provincial governments,
substantively enacted corporate tax rate reductions. The
revaluation of cur future lax liability resulted in an approxmate
$11.3 million recovery of future income tax expense, The
federal government alse eliminated the large corporations’ tax,
effective Januvary 1, 2006, which helped reduce our 2006 cash
tax obligation. Overall, the reductions in tax rales were offset
by higher earnings which led to an increase in a total income
tax expense of $21.8 million as compared to 2005.
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FINANCIAL CONDITION
LIGUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Our notable financial performance in 2006 resulted from our
ongaoing efforts to build infrastructure, manage risk, prepare
for opportunities and secure our competitive advantage and
reputation in our industry’s rapidly changing envirenment.

In an industry highly sensitive to unpredictable circumstances,
such as increasing energy prices, maintaining a strong financial
position is imperative to our long-term success. Through our
cautious financial management, we have maintained one of the
maost favourable balance sheets in the airline industry.

We realized a significant growth in our cash position by the
end of 2006, completing the year with a cash balance of $377.5
million compared to $259.6 million in 2005, At year-end 2006,
our working capital ratio strengthened to 1.0 frem 0.8 in 2005.

Our cash position from the previous year was boosted by a
$336.2 million inflow from operations, an increase of $88.8
miilion over 2005. These results were driven by our strong
operating margins in 2006 that were generated frem our careful

route planning and centinued cost-containment efforts.

One of the major challenges that airlines face is the high cost
of capital. Having sufficient access to capital is eritical in order
to facilitate our planned growth. At the same time, we reguire
the flexibility and resources to take advantage of unforeseen
opportunities as they arise. In addition to having strong cash
liquidity, we have been successfut in financing our growth
through aircraft acquisitions financed by low-interest-rate
debt supperted by the Export-lmpert Bank of the United States
(Ex-Im Bank] coemmitments. To secure our future growth, we have
a preliminary commitment with Ex-Im Bank far US $240.2 million
for the purchase of seven atrcraft deliveries in 2007 and 2008.

During 2006, we acquired 12 aircraft supported by loan
guarantees from Ex-Im Bank. These loan guarantees from
the U.S. government represents approximately 85% of the
purchase price of these aircraft. In 2005, we cempleted financing
arrangements for the purchase of six aircraft, delivered
between February and June 2006, During 2006, we complated
financing arrangements for US $191.1 million supported by loan
guarantees from the Ex-Im Bank. This was for the acquisition
of five Boeing Next-Generation 737-5600 aircraft and one 737-
700 aircraft, and their related live satellite television systems.
By the end of 2004, we took delivery of all 12 aircraft under
these facilities and have drawn a total of CAD $409.6 million [US
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$360.6 milliont at an average fixed rate of 5.2%. This financing
activity brings the cumulative number of aircraft financed with
loan guarantees 1o 45, with an outslanding debl balance of $1.4
billicn associated with those aircraft. Al{ of this debt has been
financed in Canadian dollars at fixed rates ranging from 4.62% to
5.98%, thus eliminating all future foreign exchange and interest
rate exposure on these US-dollar aircraft purchases.

To facilitate the financing of our Ex-Im Bank supported aircraft,
we utilize four special-purpose entities. We have no equity
ownership in the speciat-purpose entities; however, we are
the beneficiary of the special-purpose entities’ operations. The
accounts of the special-purpose entities have been censolidated
in the financial statements.

In 2006, we spent $480.0 million related to capital investments
primarily for the planned acquisition of 12 new aircraft
throughout the year, under our purchase commitment with
Boeing. In addition to completed aircraft acquisitions, we have
also made upfront cash deposits tor progress payments an
future aircraft deliveries. By the end of 2006, our total cash
deposits held with Boeing totalled US $31.7 millicn. Other
capital expenditures relate primarily to information technelogy
and miscellaneous aircraft parts.

On February 26, 2007, we filed a notice with the Toronto Stock
Exchange [the "TSX"] to make a normal course issuer bid to
purchase outstanding shares on the open market. As approved
by the TSX, we are authorized to purchase up to 2,000,000
common vating shares or variable voting shares [collectively
“shares”] lrepresenting approximately 1.5% of our currently
issued and outstanding shares] during the period of February
28, 2007, to February 27, 2008, or until such earlier time as the
bid ts completed or terminated at the oplion of WestJet. Any
shares we purchase under this bid will be purchased on the
open market through the {facilities of the TSX at the prevailing
market price at the time of the transaction. Shares acquired
under the bid will be cancelled. We believe that, from time
to time, the market price of our shares may not reflect their
underlying value. At such times, the purchase of shares for
cancellation will be advantageous to shareholders by increasing
the value of shares remaining. The purchase of shares will alse
offset the dilutive affect of the issuance of shares pursuant to
the exercise of stock options.

As at February 28, 2007, we had 125,241,548 common voting
shares outstanding, 4,608,800 variable voting shares outstanding
and 14,189,654 stock options outstanding.
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CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS, OFF-BALANCE-
SHEET ARRANGEMENTS AND COMMITMENTS

Qur contractual obligations far each of the next five years, which
do not include commitments for gocds and services required in
the ordinary course of business, are indicated in the table below
(see "Contractual Cbligations”).

Contractual Obligations (THousanos} )

Total 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 Thereafter
Leng-term debt repayments $ 1446856 $ 153720 % 161425  $ 145593  $ 144877 § 157466 & 481,775
Capital lease obligations!” 2,068 LA [AAA 444 698 38 -
Operating leases™ 1,237,791 102,375 118,338 137,706 141,627 139,453 598,092
Purchase obligations® 301,517 177,776 117,543 6,198 — — —
Total contractual obligations $ 2,986,232 $ 434,315  $ 397,750 $290,141  $ 287,202 $ 294,957 $1,279.867

1] Includes weighted average imputed interest at 5.29% totalling $229.000.

12] Included in operating leases are US-dotlar aperating leases primarily related to aircratt, The obligations of these operaling leases in US dollars are: 2007 - $76,430,000: 2008 - $52.673.00C.
2009 - $114,343,000; 2010 - $119,154,000; 2011 - $119.067.000; 2012 and thereafler - $500.035.000.

13] Relales to purchases of aircralt, live satellite teievision systems and winglels.

We currently have 18 Next-Generation aircraft under operating
leases. We have entered into agreements with independent third
parties to lease 11 additional 737-700 aircrait over eight- and 10-
year terms in US dollars and two 737-800 aircraft over a 10-year
term, to be delivered throughout 2007 1o 2007. These amounts
have been included at their Canadian-dollar equivatent in the
table above. Although the current obligations related to our
aircraft operating agreements agreements are not recognized on
our balance sheet, we include these commitments in assessing
our overall leverage. Our debt-to-equity ratio, including off-
balance-sheet debt of $442.3 million, was 2.3 to 1 at the end
of 2006 compared to 2.5 to 1 at the end of 2005, which is weil
within our self-imposed range of acceptable debt-to-equity
ratios. Although we have increasing debt obligations from new
aircraft purchases, we have successfully maintained an enviable
debt-to-equity ratio that reflects cur ability to effectively manage
our balance sheet.

CONTINGENCIES

On April 4, 2004, Air Canada commenced a lawsuit against
WestJet. Air Canada claimed damages in the amount of
$220 million in an amendment to its statement of claim.
On May 29, 2006, as a full settlement, we agreed to pay Air
Canada’s investigation and litigation costs incurred totalling
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$5.5 million, and accepted Air Canada’s request that WestJet
make a donation in the amount of $10 million in the name of
Air Canada and WestJet to children’s charities across Canada.
Air Canada withdrew its claims in light of this settlement, All
legal proceedings between the parties were terminated. These
amounts and other setilement cosls totalling $100,000 have
been paid as at December 31, 2006, and have been included in
MON-Tecurring expenses,

A Statement of Claim was also filed by Jetsgo Corporation in the
Ontario Superier Court on October 15, 2004, against WestJet, an
officer, and a former officer {the "Defendants”]. The principal
allegations were that the Defendants conspired together to
unlawfully obtain Jetsgo’s proprietary information and to use
this proprietary information to harm Jetsgo and benefit the
Company. The Plaintiff is seeking damages in an amount to
be determined plus $50 million, but the Plaintiff has provided
no details or evidence to substantiate its claim. On May 13,
2005, Jetsgo Corporation declared bankruptcy. As a result, this
actien has been stayed and no further steps can be taken in the
litigation unless a court order is obtained.

We are party to other legal preceedings and claims that arise
during the ordinary course of business. It is the opinion of
management that the ultimate outcome of these and any
cutstanding matters will not have a material effect upon our
financial position, results of operaticns or cash flows.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Critical accounting estimates are defined as those that require
us to make assumptions about matters that are highly uncertain
at the time the accounting estimates are made, and could
potentially result in materially different results under different
assumgptions and conditions. For further discussion of these
and other accounting policies we follow, see Note 1 to our
consclidated financial statements,

We have identified the following areas that contain critical
accounting estimates utilized in the preparation of our financial
statements:

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

We make eslimates about the expected uselul lives, projected
residual values, lease-return conditions and the potential for
impairment of our property and equipment. In estimating the
lives and expected residual values of our fleet, we rely upon
annual independent appraisals, recornmendations frem Boeing
and actual experience with the same aircraft types. Revisions
to the estimates for our fleet can be caused by changes in the
utilization of the aircraft or changing market prices of used
aircraft of the same type. We evaluate our estimates and
potential impairment on all property and equipment annually
and when events and circumstances indicate that the assets
may be impaired.

NON-REFUNDABLE GUEST CREDITS

We also make estimates in accounting for our liability related
to cerlain types of non-refundable guest credits. We may issue
future travel ¢credits related to guest compensation for flight
delays, missing baggage and other inconveniences as a gesture
of good faith. These types of credits are non-refundable and
expire one year from the date of issue. We record a liability
based on the estimated incremental cost of a ane-way light in
the period the credit is issued. The utilization of guest credits is
recorded as revenue when the guest has flown or upon expiry.

DEFERRED SALES AND MARKETING CO5TS

We defer sales and marketing costs related to advanced ticket
sales, we estimate the amount to defer based on the propertion
of advanced ticket sales to total bookings on an annualized
basis. This amount is included on our balance sheet in prepaid
expenses.
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RIAZ VERJEE
Cuslomer Service Agent

Through our cautious financiat
management, we have maintained
one of the most favourable balance
sheets in the airline industry.
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WE LAUNCHED WESTJET VACATIONS, bringing aur high level of service to the packaged holiday market.




FUTURE INCOME TAXES

We use the liability method of accounting for future income
taxes, which requires a significant amount of judgment regarding
assumptions and the use of estimates. This can create significant
variances between actual results and estimates, including the
scheduling of our effective tax rate and the potential realization
of future tax assets and liabilities.

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION EXPENSE

We use the fair vatue methaod for valuing stock options. Under
this method, as new options are granted, the fair value of
these options will be expensed on a straight-line basis over
the applicable vesting period, with an oftsetting entry to
contributed surplus, The fair value of each option grant is
estimated on the date of grant using the Black-5choles option
pricing model. The Black-Scholes option pricing modet was
developed for use in estimating the fair value of short-term
traded options that have na vesting restrictions and are fully
transierable. In addition, epticn valuation medels require the
input of somewhat subjective assumptions including expected
stock price volatility.

FINANCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts of financial instruments included in the
balance sheet, other than lang-term debt, approximate their
fair value due to their short term to maturity.

At December 31, 2004, the fair value of long-term debt was
approximately $1.5 billion {2005 - $1.2 tillien]. The fair vatue
of long-term debt is determined by discounting the future
contractual cash flows under current finanging arrangements
al discounl rates which represent borrowing rates presently
available to us for loans with similar teems and maturity.

We are exposed to foreign currency fluctuations as certain
ongoing expenses are referenced to US-dollar denominated
prices. We periodically use financial instruments, including
foreign exchange forward contracts and options, to manage

our expasure.

We have enterad into a contract to purchase US $2.5 million
per month at a forward rate of .11 for the payment period
from Qctober 2006 to March 2007 to hedge a portion of our
committed US-dollar lease payments during the same period.
The estimated fair market value of the contract as at December
31,2006, is a gain of CAD $34%,000.

The CICA reteased new standards related to financial
instruments in April 2005 - Financial Instruments - Recognition
and Measurement, Section 3855, Hedges, Section 3865,
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Aircraft Utilization

Thraughout 2006, we increased productivity through
efficient fleet utitization. Aircraft utilization increased
5.3% to 11.9 operating bteck hours per day in 2006
compared to 11.3 operating block hours per day

in 2005. Increasing the utilization of our aircraft
increases our revenue-generating potential and

allows us to gain cost efficiencies,

Comprehensive Income, Section 1530, Financial Instruments -
Disclosure and Presentation, Section 3861 and Equity, Section
3251. These sections specify when a financial instrument or
non-financial derivative is to be recognized on the balance
sheet. These sections will require a financial instrument or
non-financial derivative to be measured at fair value er using
cost-based measures; establish how gains and losses are to be
recegnized and presented, including introducing comprehensive
income: specity how hedge accounting shouid be applied:;
establish new disclosures about an entity’s accounting for
designated hedging relationships and the methods and
assumptions applied in determining fair values.

We will adopt these new standards commencing January 1,
2007, and as at the date of the management's discussion and
analysis cannot reasonably estimate the full effect on our
financial statements.

CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Management is responsible for the establishment and
maintenance of a system of disclosure controls and procedures.
The Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer
have evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls
and procedures as of December 31, 2006, as defined under
the rules of the Canadian Securilies Administrators, and have
concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are
effective. Management is also respansible for the establishment
and maintenance of a system of internal controls over financial
reporting. Management has designed internal controls over
financial reporting effectively to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of our financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian
GAAP. There were no changes in our internal controls over
financial reporting during the most recent interim period that
have materially atfected or are reasonably likely to materially
affect our internal controls over financial reporting.
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RANDY DICKS
Flight Attendant

JILL FERRIS
Flight Attendant

Our financial achievements during
2006 are a direct result of the
hard work and commitment of
our exceptional WestJetters. The
dedication, motivation and strong
vision of our people have carried
us through a decade of successful
operations.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

During 2006, the Board of Directors continued to take steps
to ensure that good corporate governance practices were
employed by WestJet and the Board for the protection of all
stakeholders. These changes were largely related to the ongoing
review of “best practices,” compliance with regulatory changes
and the centinued review and updale of the existing goverpance
materials.

The Board of Directors has established three standing committees:
an Audit Committee, a Compensation Committee and a
Carporate Governance and Nominating Committee, The charters
of these committees are reviewed annually by the Board of
Directors. In addition, the Beard has an Independent Committee
of Directors to deal with the claims from Air Canada and Jetsgo.
This special committee was established to deal with litigation
and te separate the handling of the claims from management
to avoid any potential conflicts and to allow management to
concentrate its time and effarts on running the airline. Each
committee reports to the Board with their recommendations
for final approval.

Part of the Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee's
mandate s to assess the effectiveness of committees, the
composition of existing committees and the appropriateness
fer any new committees,

In 2006, the Board of Directors updated our Disclosure,
Confidentiality and Trading Policy, based on management’s
recommendations. In addition, management, in consultation
with external advisors, began the preparation of a mandate and
procedures for a Management Disclosure Committee, which
were presented te and approved by the Board of Directors at
its first 2006 meeting. This committee’s mandate is lo provide
assurance that relevant infermation is made known to the CEOQ
and Co-CFOs to allow for timely decisions aboul disclosures. The
Disclosure Committee also performs procedures and reviews to
pravide assurance that disclosures made to our security holders
or the investment cemmunity are reliable and made on a timely
basis as required by applicable laws and regulations.
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OUTLOOK

Qur financial achievements during 2004 are a direct result of
the hard work and commitment of our exceptional West Jetters.
The dedication, mativation and streng vision of cur people
have carried us through a decade of successful operations.
In 2007, we will continue to focus on increasing shareholder
value through the achievement of sustainable, capital efficient
and profitable long-term growth, The strength of our balance
sheet, the success of our seasonal deployment strategy and
our low-cost model will continue ta be the basis for our future
profitable growth, Heading into our secend year of our seasonal
depleyment strategy, first quarter gains will targely be realized
through capacity increases. With planned capacity growth of
19% in the first quarter of 2007, RASM to date for this period is
tracking with slight improvemnents over that of 2006.

March 9, 2007
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RUSS McIVOR
TAC Trainer

In 2007, we will continue to

focus on increasing shareholder
value through the achievement
of sustainable, capital-efficient
and profitable long-term growth.
The strength of our balance sheet,
the success of our seasonal
deployment strategy and our
low-cost model will continue

to be the basis for our future
profitable growth.
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EXPLANATORY NOTES

Moon

Consolidation - References to "WestJet,” "our Company,” “our”, "we" and "us” refer to WestJet Airlines
Ltd. and its subsidiarics, including the Westlet Partnership (the "Partnership") and the accounts of four
special purpose entitics, as a combined entity, cxcept where the context requires otherwise. We have no
equity ownership in the special purpose entitics; however, our Company is the primary beneficiary of the
special purposc entitics’ operations.

Currency — All currency amounts are stated in Canadian dollars, unless otherwisc noted.
Effective Time — All information is stated as at December 31, 2006, unless otherwise indicated.

Forward-looking Statements — Forward-looking statements are inherently uncertain and cannot be relicd
upon. Certain statements contained in this Annual Information Form, and in certain documents
incorporated by reference into this Annual Information Form, contain forward-looking statements. These
statements relate to future events or our future performance. All statements other than statements of
historical fact are forward-looking statements. The use of any of the words "anticipate,” “plan,”
"continue," "estimate,” "expect,” "may,” "will," "project,” "predict,” "potential,” "should," "believe" and
similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. These statemcents involve known
and unknown risks, uncertaintics and other factors that may cause actual results or events to differ
materially from those anticipated in such forward-looking statements. We belicve the expectations
reflected in those forward-looking statements are reasonable, but no assurance can be given that these
cxpectations will prove to be correct. Forward-looking statcments included in, or incorporated by
reference into, this Annual Information Form should not be unduly rclied upon. These statements speak
only as of the date of this Annual Information Form or as of the date specified in the documents
incorporated by reference into this Annual Information Form, as the case may be.

In particular, this Annual Information Form and the documents incorporated by reference contain
forward-looking statements pertaining to the following:

* Financial forecasts or projections; and
+ Managcement’s cxpectations, beliefs, intentions or future strategics.

Actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a
result of the risk factors set forth below and clsewhere in this Annual Information Form, and in certain
documents incorporated by reference into this Annual Information Form:

s Interest rates and Canadian and United States (“U.S8.”) currency fluctuations;
» Performance in cxisting and new markets;

»  Volatility in market prices for jet fuel;

» Extent and vigour of competition;

» Uncertainties associated with changes i legislation; and

e  Other factors discussed under "Risk Factors."

We do not undcertake to update any forward-looking statements, whether written or oral, that may be made
from time to time by or on behalf of our Company.




ABOUT US

Westlet is Canada’s lcading low-fare airline, providing safe, friendly and affordable air transportation to
and from 35 destinations across Canada, the United States and the Caribbean. We offer traveilers a
convenient, low-fare transportation alternative, while at the samc time delivering first-rate customer
service and guest satisfaction, By 2016, our vision is to be onc of the five most successful international
airlines in the world, providing guests a friendly and caring experience that will change air travel forever.
To achieve this vision, we ar¢ committed to enhancing the lives of everyone in Westlet’s world by
providing safc and friendly travel, and our continued focus on our customer and employee-centric
strategy.

We continuc to achicve success through:

* A strong corporate culture;

» A dedicated tcam that is committed to providing excellent customer service;

s A high-efficiency model and affordable airfarcs; and

e A ncw fleet of Boeing Next-Generation 737 aircraft with leather seats, increased legroom and an
in-scat entertainment system that provides 24 channels of live satellite television from Bell
ExpressVu, and four pay-per-view movic channels on 79 per cent of our flect.

Westlet was founded February 29, 1996 by a team of Calgary entreprencurs headed by Clive Beddoe. We
started with 220 employees and three aircraft flying to the five citics of Vancouver, Kelowna, Calgary,
Edmonton and Winnipeg. Today, we serve 23 Canadian cities, 11 U.S. citics, and recently added one
Caribbean destination to our network. In May 2007, we will begin scasonal non-stop scrvice to three new
destinations in Eastern Canada: Kitchener-Waterloo (Ontario), Saint John (New Brunswick) and Deer
Lake (Newfoundland and Labrador).

Westlet launched its subsidiary, Westlet Vacations Inc. ("Westlet Vacations™), in June 2006, offering a
one-stop shop for affordable, reliable and casy-to-book travel packages to all WestJet destinations.

We operate the newest fleet of any large, commercial airline in North America, comprised of 63 state-of-
the-art Boeing Next-Generation 737 aircraft with an average age of 2.5 years as at December 31, 2006.

INCORPORATION

Our Company was incorporated under the provisions of the Business Corporations Act (Alberta)
("ABCA") on June 27, 1994 as 616373 Alberta Ltd. Our Company’s name was changed to "WestJet
Airlincs Ltd." by Articles of Amendment dated May 30, 1995, On June 21, 1995, our Articles werc
further amended to alter our sharc capital, to delete the "private company” provisions and to affcct certain
other amendments to facilitate our offering of common shares (“Comumon Shares™) for sale to the public.
On August 30, 2005 we further amended our Articles to alter our share capital to create common voting
shares (“Common Voting Shares™) to be owned or controlled by Canadians and variable veting shares
{(“Variable Voting Shares™) to be owned and controlled by non-Canadians (Common Voting Shares and
Variable Voting Shares, collectively the "Voting Shares™) (sec “Capital Structure™ below).

Wc have four direct wholly-owned subsidiarics, Westlet Investment Corp., Westlet Operations Corp.,
Westlet Aircraft Acquisition Corp., and Westlet Vacations, all of which are incorporated under the
ABCA, and an indirect wholly-owned Alberta partnership, established under the laws of Alberta. Our
airline business 1s operated by the Partnership. ™

QOur principal business address is 5055 - 11 Street N.E., Calgary, Alberta, T2E 8N4 and our registered
-office is Suite 1400, 350 - 7th Avenue SW, Calgary, Alberta, T2P 3N9.
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OUR INDUSTRY AND COMPETITIVE ENVIRONMENT
Industry Overview

The North American airline industry has cxpericneed a convergence of several external factors over
recent years such as the threat of terrorism, the war in Iraq and the outbreak of Severe Acute Respiratory
Syndrome (SARS). The North American airline industry is highly sensitive to these events, as a small
change in demand can have a significant impact on financial results, In addition to being predisposed to
general economic conditions and international events, operations are highly susceptible to changes in fuel
prices, pricing actions taken by competitors, passenger demand and industry capacity. Sustained success
for an airline tends to be a function of quality of the business plan, ability to maintain a low-cost structure,
skill of management and adequacy of financing and operating cash flow.

The Canadian airline industry is characterized by vigorous competition, few barriers to entry, restrictive
taxes and fees on travellers, seasonality and geographic dispersion. Over the past two decades, the
Canadian government has gradually removed economic regulation of commercial aviation within Canada
while the industry has moved towards a morc open and competitive environment for domestic,
transhorder and international airline services, for both scheduled and leisure charter operations.

The deregulation of the industry has allowed for a reduction in the barriers to entry for new competitors.
Currently, no regulatory barriers exist to prevent a licensed Canadian carrier from serving any Canadian
or transborder city-pair market. Additionally, competitors face no government-imposed restrictions
regarding prices, aircraft types or frequency of routes. Despite the reduccd regulatory barriers to entry, the
high-risk nature of the airline industry tends to deter new cntrants. Airlines inherently have high fixed
costs relative to revenue carned.

Competition

Within the Canadian domestic market, we compete with scheduled airlines such as Air Canada, Jazz,
small regional carriers and, to a lesser degree, charter airlines.

The Canadian domestic market is highly seasonal due to the severe winter conditions that dissuade
consumers from travelling during certain months. The peak operating season occurs during the summer
months from April to September, as well as over the Christmas holiday scason. In order to aileviate the
impact of scasonality on operations and to exploit the short supply of low-fares between Canada and the
U.S., we began low-fare transborder secrvicce bctween destinations in the U.S. and Canada in
September 2004. Competition in the transborder market comes primarily from Air Canada, as well as
major U.S. airlines such as American Airlines, Northwest Airlines and Alaska Airlines.

Airlines also compete with surface transportation alternatives in short-haul markets, and to a lesser degree
in medium- and long-haul markets. Surface transportation primarily consists of automobile, bus and rail
transportation. When travellers choose their preferred mode of transportation, price 1s often a factor that
influences their decision and is a competitive factor when contending with surface transportation
_alternatives. Other factors considered by the traveller include frequency, speed, convenicnce of
scheduling, facilities, safety and customer service.

Trends
Cost control and technology

Cost reduction remains a key priority, and airlines must continue to reduce costs and invest in solutions
that allow them to streamline their operations in order to compete effectively. Airlines are striving to
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reduce fundamental operating costs through automation of processes, such as implementing self-serve
initiatives such as on-line check-in and self-serve kiosks.

Usc of the Internct as a booking tool also provides airlines with cost savings with respect to the
distribution of their product. Internet bookings cost significantly less than bookings through a travel agent
or a reservation centre. The attractiveness of using the Internet as the most desirable sales channel is
cxpected to continue to grow as it is cost cffective for airlines, and travellers appreciate the case with
which they can shop and compare pricing.

Three-year Development and Events

2004

High fuel prices were a significant element that impacted our costs throughout 2004. Compounding the
impact of the high price of fucl was the higher operating cost environment, resulting from increased
landing, terminal and airport improvement fecs.

Duc to the high cost to hedge fucl, many airlines, including ours, did not have cxisting fucl hedges in
place to offset escalating fuel prices. Many airlines with cxisting fuel hedges reversed these positions to
frece up cash flow. High costs, in addition to over capacity in the market, culminated in another year in
which airlines struggled to attain profitability. Domestic capacity was cstimated to have increased by six
per cent for 2004 over 2003 and up 32 per cent since 2000, Coupled with the high-cost environment, over
capacity in the market continued to place pressure on our profitability. Despite these challenges, we grew
our airline by 30 per cent, maintained a load factor of 70 per cent and reduced our costs in many arcas as
we adapted to these new market conditions.

in 2004, Canadian airport authoritics continued to increase airport improvement fees by as much as 25 per
cent, Although airport improvement fees are not a direct cost to airlines, they have a destimulative effect
on air travel as they increase the ultimate price paid by the consumer. Additionally, atrports increased
landing fees and terminal charges to recover airport rent charged by the Government of Canada. Nav
Canada, which provides domcstic navigation scrvices, also increased charges due to a reduction in air
1raffic.

With continuing cost pressures from high fucl prices, airport fces and reats, navigational charges and low
yicld due to overcapacity in the market, we took the initiative to slow our growth by accelerating the
replacement of our 737-200s. After achicving 36 consecutive quarters of profitability, we realized our
first quarterly loss in the last quarter of 2004, The majority of this loss was due to the impairment loss of
$47.6 million related to the 737-200 fleet replacement.

With the accelerated retirement of our older 737-200 aircraft from our flect, we realized cconomic
benefits from operating a younger flect made up of a single aireraft type with lower maintcnance costs
and more efficient fucl consumption. As well, by operating a flect of a single aircraft type, we gained
cfficiencies in crew training, crew scheduling, and maintenance.

In addition to the carly retirement of our 737-200 aircraft, 2004 marked a milestonce in our history as we
announced plans to introduce Bocing Next-Generation 737-800s, with 166 scats, and Boeing Next-
Generation 737-600s, with 119 seats, into our fleet. We reccived three 737-600s and five 737-800s in
2005. These aircraft are all the same type, differing in size only.

The introduction of these new aircraft sizes into our fleet enabled us to more efficiently allocate capacity
to meet the demands of various routes while maintaining a common aircraft type, thereby reducing our
ovcerall costs of operating a specific route. Our larger aireraft suits high traffic domestic routes in the




-5-

summet and sun destinations in the winter months. The smaller 737-600 aircraft compliments our routes
and schedules with lower overall demand.

We launched scheduled and seasonal scrvice to the U.S. in September 2004, with service to Los Angeles
and New York, followed by the introduction of service to Phoenix, San Francisco, Ft. Lauderdale, Tampa
and Orlando. These U.S. cities were originally served from either Toronto and/or Calgary, with service to
some of these cities from Vancouver added in December 2004 and January 2005, The commencement of
transborder service was a significant accomplishment for us and continues to be a substantial growth
opportunity for us.

On September 30, 2004, Air Canada emcrged from bankruptcy protection as Ace Aviation Holdings Inc.
("Air Canada”) with a new corporate structure. Air Canada became a holding company, with scparate
operating subsidiaries covering their passcnger operations, cargo operations, ground handling services
and maintenance/technical serviees, amongst others. During its 18-month restructuring phase, Z1P was
folded, and Air Canada’s farc structures were simplificd. As part of its emergence from protection under
the Conpanies Creditors Arrangement Act (CCAA), Air Canada reduced its operating costs in the areas
of wages, salarics, aircraft leascs and debt payments,

2005

Difficult circumstances persisted in the North American airline industry throughout 2005. Fuel prices
remainced high, devastating hurricanes damaged the fuel infrastructure and impacted supply, and more
airlines sought bankruptey protection. These strenuous conditions were further compounded in early 2005
when one of our competitors introduced deeply discounted fairs to the market. The continuation of these
factors created a high-cost and low-yield environment that placed a strain on our operations. However,
through our constant efforts and our proven low-cost structure, these challenges served to demonstrate our
resilicncy to constantly changing market conditions as we successfully completed the year with a net
profit of $24 million.

In early 2003, our revenues were significantly strained as we had to compete with irrationally low fares
that were offered by our competitors. In particular, Jetsgo Corporation (“Jetsgo™) continued to offer farcs
at levels too low to cover the costs of providing air service, including airfares as low as $1. To remain
competitive, all major Canadian carriers had to lower airfares below sustainable levels for many months
during the year.

On March 11, 2005, Jetsgo ccased operations. Jetsgo requested and received protection from the Quebec
Superior Court under the CCAA until April 11, 2005. Approximately two months after Jetsgo ceased
operations it formally declared bankruptcy.

Following Jetsgo’s withdrawal from the market, farcs returned to sustainable levels sufficient to cover our
costs and generate a profit for our stakcholders. We ceased offering defensive seat sales to compete
effectively. We experienced positive results in our yield and load factors by the end of 2005, which
increased year over year to 17.5 cents per revenue passenger mile from 16.8 cents per revenue passenger
mile and to 74.6 per cent from 70.0 per cent, respectively.

The improvement in our yiclds and load factors during 2005 was achicved while we continued to grow
our airline. We successfully deployed additional capacity in the market over the 12 months of 2005 by
growing our network 19 per cent on an available-seat-mile basis. We simultancously improved our yields
and load factors in both the last quarter of the year, and on an annual basis. This accomplishment is
particularly apparcnt in the improvement in our yicld in the last three months of the year, which increased
by 12.3 per cent compared to the same period in 2004, while our cumulative yields for the first three
quarters of 2005 increased by merely 1.2 per cent compared to the first nine months of 2004,
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Although rational pricing practices returned to our industry, we were confronted with new challenges
brought about by devastating hurricanes in 2005. These hurricanes caused refinery damage and disrupted
U.S. fuel distribution operations, which resulted in reduced fuel supply. Meanwhile, the demand for fuel
remained strong, causing an increase to the price of jet fuel cquivalent to $130 a barrel. To mitigate the
increased price of jet fucl caused by the hurricanes, we entered into a series of short-term hedging
agreements from October 2005 to March 2006.

These hurricanes not only forced us to deal with higher than expected fuel costs, but they also disrupted
our transborder market of Florida and our charter operatiens to the Mcexican Riviera.

As with any new city we add to our system, we closcly monitor the results after we introduce our service
into the market and make improvements to our nctwork where necessary. Our transborder flights have
generally performed well during the winter. However, to maintain strong year-round transborder service,
we needed to improve our distribution within the U.S.. Subsequent to ocur introduction of transborder
flights in 2004, we discontinucd service 1o New York due to the inability to secure additional slots at
LaGuardia, which prevented us from growing this market into a viable routc at that time. We also
discontinued our service to San Francisco and San Dicgo, and added scheduled flights to Las Vegas,
Honolulu, Maui and Fort Mycrs, and seasonal service to Palm Springs.

2006

The year began with the retirement of the last of our 200-scrics aircraft, which was part of our
commitment to increase fleet efficiencies and control maintenance costs. With this final retirement, we
became the operator of North America’s most modern fleet of any large commercial airline.

Throughout 2006, we locked for ways to improve our product and launch sustainable initiatives for future
profitability, We achieved this through the launch of Westlct Vacations, specializing in custom-made air
and hotel packages to all Westlet destinations. By partnering with trusted companies, this exciting
initiative enables us to offer products and services that will meet the needs of our guests and enhance their
vacation experiences, while favouring our operational cost margins.

Our success throughout 2006 was not without turbulence. We were reminded of industry difficulties when
another Canadian competitor withdrew scheduled service in the face of rising costs. Fluctuations in fuel
prices were a challenge for all industries that have a large portion of their costs rooted in the price of oil.
We are fortunate that our low-cost structure, the higher value of the Canadian dollar, and our fuel cfficient
fleet offset the instability of jet fuel costs throughout the ycar.

On May 29, 2006, we scttled a disputc with Air Canada, ending all legal proceedings between the
companies, As a result of the settlement, we paid $5.5 million of Air Canada’s litigation costs and
donated $10 million in the name of Westlet and Air Canada, to children’s charities across Canada.

Throughout 2006, we continucd work on our new rescervation system, However, as of January 10, 2007
we suspended implementation of the new system and are currently negotiating the terms of our agreement
while we upgrade to a newer version of our current reservation system which will be fully supported until
December 31, 2008. Our business plan 1s, and will remain, on track as we add functionality to the system
we are currently using.

Our tenth year of operations was highlighted by significant growth, four quarters of record net carnings,
improved load factors, industry-lcading on-time performance and a scries of stratcgic initiatives designed
to increase our value proposition in a competitive industry. We gencrated a pre-tax operating margin of
11.2 per cent, one of the best in the North American airline industry.
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We reccived the award for Canada's Most Admired Corporate Culture for the second year in a row; a
testament to the hard work and dedication of our dedicated Westlet employees ("Westletters™) who were
instrumental in making 2006 our most memaorable year to date.

DESCRIPTION OF OUR BUSINESS
Our Strategy

Our mission: To enrich the lives of cveryone in Westlet's world by providing safe, friendly, and
affordable air travel.

Our vision: By 2016, Westlet will be one of the five most successful international airlines in the
world providing our guests with a friendly and caring experience that will change air
travel forcver.

To accomplish this mission and vision, our strategy is 1o offer travellers a high-value product through
prudent cost control, high-frequency service and friendly customer service, while offering low fares that
stimulate air traffic.

Every Westletter is keenly aware of our focus and each WestJetter works toward meeting these objectives
on a daily basis. Because profit share is available to all employees and 81 per cent of Westletter’s are also
WestJet shareholders, the personal success of our people is directly tied to our Company’s success. This
helps nurture a corporate culture that is focuscd on safety, exccptional customer service and cost
containment.

Create a high-value, affordable product

In addition to competition within the airline indusiry, we alse compete with other forms of travel, such as
automobile, bus and rail. Consequently, we strive to create a product that is of better value and scrvice
compared with our competitors and competing forms of transportation.

In the transportation sector’s highly competitive environment, our objective is to attract travellers on our
flights by offering a high quality product at an affordable price. This is accomplished through a
commitment to attaining an industry-leading, low-cost structure, while focusing on our corporate culture,
high-quality customer scrvice and investment in product cnhancements.

Our commitment to customer scrvice is to make every effort to ensure our guests have an outstanding
cxperience when flying with Westlet. Customers are referred to as guests to help ensure cach person who
flies with us feels welcome. Our goal is to provide friendly and caring service to our guests at every point
of interaction.

In addition to an emphasis on providing high-quality customer service, we initiated value-added inflight
cnhancements such as onboard live satellite television that will eventually be on every scat of our Next-
Generation aircraft, enhanced legroom, leather scats and a buy-on-board food-service program.

Control costs by maintaining a low-cost structure

To achieve industry-leading low costs, we aim to capitalize on the productivity of our assets. To
accomplish this, we adhere to the following principles:

. Align cmployec goals with our Company’s goals;
. Use a single aircraft typc;
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. Rejuvenate our flect with new fucl-efficient aircraft while retiring older less-cfficient
aircraft;

. Maintain high aircraft utilization;

. Ensure a balance between a commercial route structure and cfficient operations with
uncompromised safety; and

. Invest in technology.

Undertake sustainable growth opportunities

Our plan for sustainable growth 1s to continue to provide excellent value for leisure travellers, offer a
convenient schedule to attract greater numbers of business travellers, and remain open to opportunities for
partnerships with other air carriers.

Qur success in the airline industry will continuc as we strive to profitably grow our operattons throughout
Canada, the U.S. and beyond. We will achicve this by:

+ Adding new cities within our route network;
s Increasing frequencies between existing citics; and
¢  Adding new non-stop routes between markets in our system.

Utilizing our low-cost structure and original point-to-point service to stimulate traftic, new markets will
offer future growth opportunities for many years. In addition to growth, travel to warm destinations in the
U.S. offers an offset to weaker domestic demand in winter months. We believe there is profitable demand
for transborder service from many of our Canadian markets to numcrous U.S. destinations.

While a large potential exists for profitable service to more transborder destinations, we continue to
examine adding new destinations and routes in Canada. We believe that domestic markets exist that can
support new scrvice, cither by over-flying traditional hubs or matching demand with capacity on
underscrved routes.

Provide an exceptional guest experience

Qur exceptional customer scrvice 15 well known within the airline industry, and our people are known for
being friendly, helpful and committed to going above and beyond for our guests.

Our Competitive Strengths
In accordance with our strategy, we successfully built an operating structure that allows us to be Canada’s

leading, low-fare airline with transborder flights to tourist and business destinations in the U.S. We
established our competitive strengths and busincss model by:

Devceloping a strong corporate culture;

Investing in our pcople;

Committing to our guests and stakcholders;

Maintaining a low-cost structure;

Continuously improving our product;

Ensuring that we have an appropriate flect of aircraft; and
Prudently managing our balance sheet.




Corporate Culture and Guest Service

Our strong corporate culture is onc of our fundamental competitive advantages. We strive to maintain an
innovative culture where Westletters are committed to, and passionately pursue, our goals, mission and
vision. We also foster a umique culture of caring and compassion for our guests and fellow Westletters
that sets us apart from cur competitors.

We aim to cnsure our people are satisfied, skilled, committed and motivated; this, in turn, creates a more
favourable working environment and an above-average guest experience. This is accomplished, in part,
through the implementation of compensation policies intended to align the intercsts of our cmployeces
with those of our Company and our sharcholders.

We have developed a strong corporate culture that distinguishes us from our competitors and makes us
known in the Canadian airline industry as the low-fare airlinc that is committed to customer service. In
February 2006, we placed first in customer scrvice and Clive Beddoe, our Chairman and CEO, was
named onc of Canada’s most respected CEOs in the Ipsos-Reid’s 11" Annual Canada’s Most Respected
Corporations survey. In February 2007, we also achieved top five status in North America in threc key
measures: on-time performance, completion and baggage handling based on results of 20 airlines in North
America that report operational performance.

Westletters

Our commitment to our people is as important as our commitment to our guests and stakeholders. We
believe our most valuable asset is our people, and our unique team of Westletters is what sets us apart.
Accordingly, we aim to ensure our employces’ work experience is fun, challenging and rewarding. As the
industry continually changes and poscs new challenges and opportunities, the dedication of Westlcetters 10
our Company and our guests is unwavering.

Competitors may be able to replicatc our technologies, products and low-cost infrastructure; however, it is
much more difficult to assemblc a tcam that can rival our highly-motivated people. The quality of
customer scrvice provided by our employces influences the relationship between our Company and our
gucsts, which causes many guests to return after experiencing the fun, friendly, casual atmosphere and the
high level of customer service provided by our people.

Well coached and highly-motivated employees are critical to the development and execution of our
stratcgy, especially in our highly-competitive environment, For this rcason, the ability to attract, train,
motivate and retain the right individuals is important, Westletters are ambassadors, and in order to
provide guests with the highest level of customer service, we ensure they appropriatcly reflect our high
standards. To this end, we foster a culture of empowerment and encourage people to find solutions to the
issues at hand. This allows them to make decisions to ensure each guest has an outstanding experience
when flying with us.

In order to maintain a high level of customer service, we only add people to our team who will enhance
the guest cxperience by being positive, passionate, friendly, fun and innovative about the quality of
service they provide. Qur recruitinent team, in conjunction with many arca specialists and managers
throughout our Company, helped expand our team in 2006. As of February 28, 2007, we employ 6,047
people, or approximately 5,038 full-time equivalent employees.

Compensation

In order 10 attract and retain the right people, we designed a unique compensation philosophy that allows
Westletters to align their personal success with that of our Company and shareholders. In addition to a
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base salary, our compensation is enhanced through profit sharing incentives and an Employce Share
Purchase Plan (the "ESP Plan") that allows our people to share in profitability and any increase in our
Company’s share valuc.

By being able to sharc in our success, employces arc motivated to improve our overall performance and
are truly engaged in the business. During periods of suceessful corporate performance, employees benefit
through profit sharing and stock appreciation; however, during periods of lower corporate performance,
compensation plans automatically yicld a lower overall compensation and a lower fixed cost to our
Company.

As the airline industry is highly susceptible to the state of the cconomy, including high fuel prices,
competitive pressures and the adverse impact of cvents such as terrorist attacks, this compensation
structure has provided us with a competitive advantage, especially during difficult ttmes. Traditionally it
is in these difficult times that airlines have becen hampered by restrictive higher fixed-cost labour
agreements. It is in these same times that our compensation plans provide a natural incentive to
Westietters to work to ensure that the challenging environment is overcome. We believe that this
philosophy, which is unique in the Canadian airline industry, has been a significant contributor to our
success to date.

Base salaries
Basc salanies for our employees, other than pilots, are reviewed annually to align with external market
salaries and are further reviewed through internal job evaluations. Employees are also eligible for annual

merit increases basced on performance. Pilots” salarics are reviewed cvery three years,

Emplovee share purchase plan

We believe that having employces as sharcholders is fundamental to our success and growth, and
therefore we provide our people with an opportunity to acquirc an ownership interest in WestJet. Under
the ESP Plan, employees can contribute up to a maximum of 20 per cent of their gross salary to purchase
our shares. For every dollar an employee contributes to the ESP Plan, we match with one dollar. Shares
under the ESP Plan vest to the employee after one year. As at December 31, 2006, approximately 81 per
cent of our people were participating in the ESP Plan, on average contributing 13 per cent of their salary
towards the purchase of shares.

Profit sharve

Another means for employees to participate in corporate performance is through profit sharing. Profit
sharc is paid bascd on a percentage of our pre-tax operating income and may range between 10 per cent
and 20 per cent of earnings before employee profit share and income taxes. The amounts paid for profit
share are subject to prior approval by the Board of Dircctors. In 2006, total profit sharing amounted to
$£20.3 million, which represented, on average, approximately 8.2 per cent of an employce’s cligible
carnings within the year.

Stock option plans

We have stock option plans, wherecby up te a maximum of 12,957,831 common and variable voting
shares may be issuced to officers and certain employecs subject to the following limitations:

(i)  the number of common voting shares reserved for issuance to any one optionee will not exceed five
per cent of the issued and outstanding common and variable voting sharcs at any time;
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(ii)  the number of common voting shares reserved for issuance to insiders shall not excced 10 per cent
of the 1ssucd and outstanding common and variable voting shares; and

(iii) thc number of common voting sharcs issuable under the Stock Option Plans, which may be issued
within a onc-year period, shall not e¢xceed 10 per cent of the issued and outstanding common and
variable voting sharcs at any time,

Stock options arc granted at a price that equals the market value, have a term of four years and vest on
cither the first, second or third anniversary from the date of grant.

In June 2006, our pilots signed a new threc-year agreement, allowing us to maintain ocur low-cost
structure through greater productivity of our pilot group. Under the new agreement, pilots have the choice
of opting to reccive cash in lieu of options as part of their compensation arrangement.

Pro-Active Communication Team

The Pro-Active Communication Tcam ("PACT") was formed in 1999 by non-management WesUetters
with the support and encouragement of management. Since then they have acted as the recognized
employee organization throughout our Company, representing the interests of all non-management
positions. PACT represents its membership by taking a pro-active approach to resolving issues and the
nceds of employces, balanced with fostering our culture and vision. These objectives are enhanced
through the use of interest based collaboration with our management tcams. As a reflection of our
commitment to the well-being and work expericnce of all of our employees, a PACT rcpresentative,
nominated by members of PACT, is regularly proposed by management to our sharchelders to sit on the
Board of Directors of our Company to ensurc employees' interests are considered in corporate decisions.

Social Policy

We provide a friendly, safe, equitable and rewarding work environment for our employees. We attract and
retain outstanding professionals, provide them with continuous learning, encourage performance
cxcellence, achicve diversity and develop lcaders at all levels.

As a fundamental principle of employment, and in recognition of the Canadian Human Rights Act, we
recognize that all persons are equal in dignity and human rights without regard to race, religion, colour,
sex, sexual orientation, marital and family status, disability, age, convictions for which a pardon has been
granted, or national or ethnic origin. We are committed to the objectives of the Employment Equity Act
and report annually to the govemment authoritics on the representation of those designated groups within
our Company.

On-Time Performance

An important component of high-quality, customer service is guests arriving at their destination at the
scheduled time. One of our key objectives is to maintain on-time flight operations in a safe and cfficient
environment, On-time performance, an important measure of the reliability of an air carrier, cnsures
guests are not inconvenienced and that costs associated with delayed flights, such as guest compensation
for hotel stays, meals and other incidentals, are mimmized.

In 2006, we ranked among the top-five airlines in the three key operational performance measures for the
industry, as follows:

(1) On-time performance - the percentage of domestic scheduled flights that arrive within 15 minutes
of the scheduled arrival time or carlier.
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(2) Completion ratc - the percentage of scheduled domestic flight legs flown, calculated as the
number of domestic scheduled flight legs operated divided by the number of domestic scheduled
flight legs.

(3) Baggage ratio - the number of delayed/lost baggage files per every 1,000 gucsis flown

We are one of only two North American airlines to achieve a top-five ranking for ycar-end results in all
three categories, with an on-time performance of 81.7 per cent; a completion rate of 99.5 per cent and a
baggage ratio of 4.64. Our emphasis on these measures is an indication of our commitment to making our
guest’s experience stress-free from start to finish.

To expedite the turnaround time of aircraft in between flights to assist with on-time performance, we
generally do not outsource the cleaning of our aircrafts between flights. Rather, inflight crews and other
employees who may be flying onboard groom the aircraft to cnsure that it is completed in the most
efficient and timely manner, This also saves us the costs of having to pay a third party to perform these
services,

We also have an Operations Control Centre that operates 24 hours a day to assist with on-time
performance goals by minimizing ground time through efficient flight, crew, and weight and balance
planning. This centre aiso provides aircraft movement control and monitoring. If poor weather conditions
or mechanical issucs force an unexpected change in the schedule, the centre works in conjunction with
our Customer Carc department to make alternate plans to ensure gucsts arc rc-accommodated with as
little inconvenience as possible.

Product and Services
In today’s market, with price ofien being equal, the consumer’s decision-making process focuses on other

aspects of the travel experience, such as the quality of product and customer relationships. From a total-
product perspective, we offer:

) Above-average, on-time operational performance relating 1o arrival time and baggage
handling; -

. In-scat cntertainment system providing 24 channels of live satellite television from Bell
ExpressVu and four pay-per-view movie channels currently on 79 per cent of our fleet;

. AIR MILES® reward miles for online bookings;

. Comfortablc cabin featuring leather seats and a generous scat pitch;

. Two self-serve check-in options ~ kiosks at major airports and web check-in (both allow
for dedicated self-serve baggage drop counters at all Canadian airports),

. Buy-on-board food products;

. Multiple sales channels for bookings — website, Sales Super Centre, airport counters or
travel agents; and

. Westlet lounges, now open at our airports in Calgary, Ottawa and Winnipeg with

Vancouver opening soon and arc available to our guests for a fec. These lounges are
operated by a third party and are at no cost to WestJet.

In addition to providing low fares and exceptional customer service on a continual basis, we believe it is
important to pursuc other means to increase the value of our flights in order to differentiate our product
and sustain a competitive advantage.
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In 2003, we entered an agreement with the AIR MILES" Reward Program that allows guests to carn AIR
MILES™ reward miles when booking flights online. This was followed by the introduction of live satellite
television and onboard food for sale on certain flights in 2004,

In 2005, we continued to make our guests’ travel experience more convenient by introducing web check-
in and dedicated baggage-drop counters in all of our Canadian airports. These new service enhancements
cnablc our guests 1o enjoy a speedier check-in process and reduce the operating costs of our airlinc.

As we continuc to utilize the increased range capabilities of Next-Generation aircraft and flights become
longer in length, we will continue to develop value-added products aimed at making our gucsts more
comfortable during their journey.

Routes and Scheduling

We began operating scheduled, short-haul, point-to-point flights in Western Canada in 1996. In
December 1999, we made a decision to expand our route network into Eastern Canada in order Lo take
advantage of the lack of low-fare capacity on long-haul routes in the Canadian airline market. Qur
average stage length has more than doubled since 1999 when we cxpanded into Eastern Canada from 383
miles to 833 miles in 2006 because of increased, longer-haul, coast-to-coast and transborder flying and
the ability of our new Next-Generation 737 aireraft to fly greater distances.

Similar to the opportunities that existed when we commenced domestic service to Canada’s eastern and
western provinees, the opportunity existed for successful route expansion across the border to the U.S.
and intemationally. In comparison to the U.S., Canada generates somewhat modest domestic air travel.
With the grcater range capabilitics of our Next-Generation aircraft, we can fly longer distances and
efficiently serve destinations that were previously beyond our non-stop range. For us to further expand
opcerations and fully utilize the increased operational capabilities of our growing fleet of Next-Generation
737 aircraft, we aim to continue our expansion and capitalize on the greater traffic oppertunities available
in the Canada/U.S. transborder and international markets.

Because winters in Canada are often harsh, the Canadian domestic airline market is highly scasonal and
vulnerable to periods of weak demand during the country’s coldest months. These times of lower
domestic travel by Canadians presented us with an opportunity te utilize excess capacity by intreducing
flights to warmer destinations in the U.S. and internationally to maximize profitability on a year-round
basis.

To offsct the seasonality of the Canadian domestic market, and to capitalize on an opportunity to bring
low-farc service o underserved markets, we introduced transborder service in 2004. By January 2007, we
served 11 U.S. destinations and added our first intcrnational destination to Nassau, Bahamas. During the
fourth quarter of 2006 approximatcly 22.4 per cent of our capacity was allocated to our transborder and
charter service.
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The route structurc of an airline is onc of the most significant factors of its marketing strategy. Travellers
often use criteria such as non-stop service, time of day and frequency when selecting an airline. We strive
to design a route structure that meets the needs of our guests and provide low-fare capacity that stimulates
demand. We continuc to add non-stop routes 1o our network to increase the travel convenience for our
gucsts and to provide the most cost-effective means to take our guests to their destination. We supplement
non-stop routes or provide service in markets that we do not offer non-stop scrvice, by providing through
flights or conncction scrvices for our guests. To maximize our aircraft utilization, we look for
opportunitics to operate our flect in the cvening, when the aircraft would otherwise be idle to serve
markets that may not be as time scnsitive or may be better served by evening flights.

Through our route structure and attractive low fares, we anticipate traffic will be stimulated from guests
who would not otherwise travel or those guests who would select another airline. We estimate when we
enter a new market the net effect is an increase in traffic for that market, essentially stimulating travellers
to travel with us.

As our fleet expands with new Next-Generation aircraft of varying sizes, we can cstablish additional
profitable routes within Canada, to the U.S and internationally. We can also offer increased frequency,
non-stop routes and improved connectivity on our current routes.

Currently, we operate three different sizes of Bocing 737 Next-Generation aircraft which include the
Boeing 737-600 with 119 scats, the 737-700 with 136 scats and the 737-800 with 166 seats. This allows
us to better match capacity to demand while maintaining essentially a single type of fleet. The benefits of
our current fleet, versus the older 737-200 flect go beyond fuel efficiency and maintenance as these
aircraft offer greater range capabilities and improve connectivity options.

Route Opportunitics

An important strategy for us is our Transborder operations and shifting of capacity to sun destinations in
winter months. Leisure markets to southern United States and charter flying have offset natural
seasonality in domestic travel. These markets will continue to provide significant growth opportunitics,
through several strategics. For example;

» Increased frequency to existing sun destinations in Southern U.S,;
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» Adding new routes to sun destinations in both the U.S. and Caribbean;
* Adding new routes to business destinations in the U.S.

Fares

We offcr low fares while maintaining a high-quality distinguished product comprised of friendly service
and a comfortable and cntertaining flight expericnce. Fares are based on one-way travel in order to avoid
penalizing guests for not booking a round-trip flight or a Saturday night stay. Scats must be paid for at the
time of reservation and are non-refundable, allowing us to avoid having to overbook our flights. Guests
may cancel or change their itinerary for a nominal fee in addition to any difference in fare.

Our revenue-management process amms to maximize profitability through a balance between maximizing
passenger revenues with optimal load factors. This is accomplished by offering multiple fare levels.
Historically, lower fares are offered to guests who book well in advance, with the price of airfare
increasing as the aircraft approaches capacity. To stimulate demand, and in responsc to competitors’
pricing, lcmporary seat sales are offered in the marketplace and can feature fares lower than those booked
further in advance of the travel date. Our last minute/walk-up fares are typically our highest, although
they are generally lower than our competitors and offer very good value for money, especially for the
busincss traveller.

Live Satellite Television

To enhance our product value and differentiate ourselves further, we began installing live satellite
television in the seatbacks of our Boeing Next-Generation 737-700 and 737-800 aircraft. We estimate our
737-600s will be equipped with this technolegy by the end of 2007. Guests travelling on our aircraft
equipped with live satellite television cnjoy up to 24 channels of live satellite tclevision from Bell
ExpressVu. The system also has four pay-per-view movie channels guests can access from the comfort of
their own seat. From children’s shows, sports, business, learning channels to movics, cach guest can
select the channel they arc most interested in viewing.

Live satcllite television is a low-cost solution for us to offer entertainment options to our guests. It
enables the delivery of a wide variety of content for our guests, and is a differentiation over our primary
competitors. Our competitors are installing an in-scat screen system however the content is not “live™; it
is stored on servers in the aircraft. Live television system is lower to maintain than a stored content
system as there 1s minimal content development, management and system upload.

We have sceured an exclusivily agreement, subject to certain conditions, with the live satcllite television
system hardware provider ("LiveTV"), This agrcement allows us to be the only airline to offer the
LiveTV system within Canada and is currently sccured to the end of 2009.

Inflight Food and Beverage Services

Currently, we offer complimentary snacks and non-alcoholic beverages on all of our flights. On longer
flights, we scll alcoho! and food products to our guests. This program continues to be enhanced with new

and different products and revenue from this program is steadily increasing.

Loyalty Program

We offer guests the opportunity to collect AIR MILES™ reward miles on bookings made onlinc at
westjet.com pursuant to an agreement with Loyalty Management Group. Guests carn onc reward mile for
every $20 spent when they, or their travel agent, book online at westjet.com (excluding taxes and airport
improvement fees).
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We belicve the AIR MILES® Reward Program is one of the most valuable loyalty programs that currently
exist in Canada as it provides the greatest flexibility in reward redemption chotccs for our guests. At the
same time, the program allows us to reward our guests without incurring the higher costs associated with
designing, implementing, operating and maintaining our own loyalty program.

Tri-branded credit card

Together with BMO Bank of Montreal and The Loyalty Group (creators of the AIR MILES® Reward
Program), we created a unique BMO Mosaik™" AIR MILES® MasterCard™* credit card for personal and
small business customers. The BMO Mosaik™ AIR MILES"™ MasterCard™ with the Gold Westlet AIR
MILES" Reward Option allows us to increase our brand awarcncss by partnering with two strong,
well-known brands while at the same time providing enhanced opportunities for consumers to carn and
redeem AIR MILES” reward miles.

Reservation System

Throughout 2006, we continued work on our new reservation system. In January 2007, we entered into an
agrcement with a service provider to suspend the current aiRES contract in order to negotiate an
amendment to this contract for the successful delivery of their aiRES reservation system. As at December
31, 2006, we had $31.9 million capitalized, rclated solely to the aiRES project. 1f our Company and the
service provider can not come to an agreement by May 31, 2007, the parties will cach be in a position to
proceed with claims against each other and there is the potential of a one-time write off of this amount.

On December 22, 2006, we entered into a supporl agreement with our current service provider, cffective
through December, 2008, This agreement will provide us with a supported upgraded version of our
current Open skics reservation and distribution system. Further, it will provide us with the functionality
required to deliver our growth strategy and business plans during the interim period while we seek to
amend the above mentioncd agreement.

Distribution

As with every other aspect of our operations, we continually seck ways to reduce our distribution costs.
We use a ticketless reservation system 1n order to enhance convenience and reduce costs for our guests.
The ticketless environment allows gucsts to experience quick and cfficient check-in procedures at the
airport and eliminates the high costs associated with the printing, distribution and tracking of tickets.

We utilize various distribution channels to sell our product. Guests can purchase flights by booking on
westjet.com, calling the Sales Super Centre (call centre), and booking through a travel agent or at any one
of our airport counters.

Internet — westjet.com

The Internet is growing in popularity with guests and travel agents as a convenient booking method. The
Internet also is our lowest-cost distribution channel. The increased focus on the Internet as a means of
distributing our product allows us to continue to lower our distribution costs, track utilization and build
individual rclationships with our gucsts in a way previously unavailable.

Since we introduccd the ability to book reservations on westjet.com in the summer of 1998, the trend for
guests and travel agents to utilize the Internet to purchase our flights has grown substantially.
Approximately 67 per cent of our bookings were completed through the Intemet in 2006, and we
anticipate our current infrastructure will allow us to continue to grow online bookings.
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Our French-speaking guests and travel agents can book flights on a French-language version of
westjet.com. We provide French content for arcas such as Travel Tips, About Us, Contact Us, Groups,
Cargo, Gift Certificates, Partners and Booking on our website. This French website provides enhanced
information and services, and builds our brand awarcness with our French-speaking guests. We have
created a separate booking engine for people with vision loss and are committed to making our website
more accessible.

Sales Super Agents

Our Sales Super Centre serves guests seven days a week, 21 hours a day. Sales Super Agents are
comunitted to providing a unique, hassle-free, remarkable expericnce to all guests who call. The
importance of providing consistent high-quality customer service is emphasized in our training and
compensation of Sales Super Agents. Agents are cvaluated based on the quality of customer scrvice
provided, not on sales volume, 1o ensure guests receive the highest level of customer service.

Travel Agents

We work very closely with our travel agent partners and regard the travel agency community as a key,
strategic component that helps us achieve continual success.

While most airlines reduced or eliminated travel agent base commissions, we continue to recognize and
support our travel agent partners by paying commissions. We pay a ninc per cent commission on
bookings made through global distribution systems and our Agent WEBLink. We also pay commissions
on the purchase of gift certificates. In addition, we occasionally offer incentives that may include bonus

commissions or AIR MILES® reward miles.

We enhanced our independent, travel agency websile, Agent WEBLInk, by adding options such as credit
tracking and multiple uscr accounts allowing customized agent profiles. We encourage travel agents to
boaok online by offering a nine per cent commission on Internet bookings and a five per cent commission
on call centre bookings, thercby reducing our costs related to travel agent bookings.

Our travel agency sales team has grown to include more local sales representatives throughout Canada.
Qur sales force works at improving travel agent relationships through extensive participation in trade
associations, educational forums and familiarization trips. We demonstrate our continued support of the
travel agency community by participating in numerous initiatives such as tradc shows and local events
held coast to coast. Further incentives include discounted travel agency farcs and contests such as our
casyLIFE ‘Bums in Scats’ promotion.

WestJet Vacations Inc.

In June 2006, we launched our wholly-owned subsidiary, Westlet Vacations, which specializes in
custom-made air and hotcl packages that leverages our Company’s cxisting scheduled network and offers
the same outstanding, customer-friendly, fun-loving travel experience our guests have come to expect
from our airline. We have partnered with a wide selection of well known and trusted companies ta offer
products and services that will meet our guests’ vacation necds.

Our relationship with Transat A.T. Inc. ("Transat") is an important consideration for Westlet Vacations.
Each company offers a completely different product catering to separate market segments. For example,
Transat offers an all inclusive product while Westlet Vacations offers a “build your own™ product. In
addition, each company specializes in different geographical arcas,
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Web Check-in

In 2005, we introduced our new web check-in program to deliver even faster customer service. Guests can
check in on westjet.com up to 24 hours prior to departure time for domestic flights and select their seat
onlinc. This new service gives our guests a convenient alternative to the traditional counter check-in and
makes our check-in process easier, faster and more cost-effective.

Marketing and Advertising

QOur marketing and advertising strategy builds and maintains our brand promise to deliver a quality
product and experience in a fun, fricndly and guest-focused way.

We use several mediums to advertise our brand to both the consumer and the travel trade. Consumer
advertising mediums include print, radio, television, outdoor, ¢-marketing, point-of-sale signage, digital
video boards, clevator TV, news networks and speciality newspapers. Trade advertising involves
dedicated messaging to travel agents in magazines and online mediums.

Additional marketing initiatives are undertaken with our partners including AIR MILES®, Bell
ExpressVu™, Pepsi, rental car companies, hotel chains and tourist attractions and destinations. Marketing
initiatives vary with cach partner and can include direct mail, e-markcting campaigns, joint advertising,
and joint promotions.

Qur promotional activities are used to aid distressed or new routes, build brand and product awareness,
increasc sales in a shoulder period (we develop proprictary promotions in this instance), and/or support
key partnerships. Our promotional activities include partnerships with major-market radio, television,
print, record labels, national chain restaurants and retailers, event promoters and major tourist attractions
to reach potential guests and support our advertising objectives throughout Canada and the U.S.

Fleet

Flect performance is critical for an airline to be successful and particularly important in an environment of
high fucl costs, navigational and landing charges. A comer stonc to our business plan is to operate a fleet
comprised of three variants of one aircraft type, the Bocing 737 aircraft. Operating a umiform fleet
minimizes training, staffing and maintenance, and provides for better aircraft utilization. Selected for its
opcrational success rate and ability to accommodate quick turn times on the ground, the Boeing 737
aircraft is the preferred aircraft of many successful low-cost carriers.

We started operating flights with Boetng 737-200 aircraft, which were instrumental to the success of our
airline for many years. As our Company grew, and with planned expansion acrass Canada, we began to
look for opportunitics to update our fleet. In 2000, we began the process of upgrading our older fleet of
Boeing 737-200 aircraft to a modern fleet of Bocing Next-Generation aircraft. The Next-Generation
aircraft design offers many bencfits over the 737-200 classic design such as longer-range capabilities and
improved fuel efficiency.

Until August 2004, our fleet plan consisted of only new orders of 737-700 aircraft. As we continuc
expanding into new markets and city pairs, a critical component to success is to match demand with
capacity. Since the population distribution of Canada is spread over large distances between major cities,
and somc high-density short- to medium-haul markets exist, a flect of all 136-seat aircraft does not suit
Canada’s demographics. Consequently, we opted to vary the aircraft sizes in our fleet by ordering two
other variants of the 737, the 737-600 with 119 seats and 737-800 with 166 seats. These varying aircraft
sizes arc all within the Boeing 737 family, allowing us to maintain all of the benefits of a single-type
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fleet, while at the same time allowing us to improve the utilization and scheduling of our fleet by
matching the diverse demand of our different routes with a complementary aircraft size.

We originally planned to phase out our older 737-200 aircraft through to 2008 as we replaced them with a
new fleet of Next-Generation aircraft. The continuing cost pressures from high fuel prices, airport fees
and rents, navigational charges and low yield due to the competitive environment led us to revisit our
growth plans in 2004. At that time, we decided to increase our focus on efficiency in operations, lowering
unit costs and enhancing customer service by offering a consistent product through operating a uniform
fleet. In December 2004, our Board of Directors approved a plan, which was finalized in early 2005, to
accelerate the replacement of our entire fleet of 737-200 aircraft over a period ending early in 2006 to
operate a fleet comprised exclusively of Next-Generation 737 aircraft. The change in our aircraft-
replacement plan required an impatrment analysis to be performed on our 200-scries aircraft, related
rotable parts, equipment and flight simulator. This analysis resulted 1 an impairment loss of $47.6
million, which was recorded in our operating results in 2004.

In January 2006, we retired our last 737-200 aircraft from operating service, which marked a significant
milestone for our Company. With the retirement of these aircraft, we became the operator of North
Amecrica’s most modern fleet. We gain significant advantages by opcrating such a young fleet, such as
lower maintenance costs, increascd fuel savings and longer-range capabilitics. As at December 31, 2006,
our opcrating fleet and aircraft commitments consists entircly of Boeing 737 aircraft as summarized
below:

Leased Firm orders
Average
Total Ape Operating
Aircraft Flect (years) Owned Capital  Operating Owned lease
737-600 13 0.7 13 - - - -
737-700 45 32 32 - 13 6
737-800 5 1.6 - - 5
Total 63 25 45 - 18 7 11

As at December 31, 2006, the remaining estimated amounts to be paid in deposits and purchase prices in
US dollars relating to the purchases of the remaining aircraft, winglets and live satellite television are as
follows: US $153,255,000 (2007), US $101,330,000 (2008), US $5,343,000 (2009), for a total of US
$259,928,000. Of this total amount, $240,000,000 is likely to be financed through Ex-Im Bank
- guarantees.

In 2007, we finalized term sheets with Singapore Aircraft Leasing Enterprise (SALE) for three Boeing
Next-Generation 737-700 aircraft and one 800-series aircraft to be delivered in 2009.

Blended Winglet Technology

In the fall of 2003, we became the first North American carrier to install Blended Winglet technology on
the Boeing 737-700 aircraft. Winglets are extensions to the tip of the wings that curve upwards at 90
degrees to the wing which enhance fuel efficiency. The current high-fuel-cost environment has created
significant strcss on our costs, as jet fuel is an integral part of our operations. By upgrading our fleet with
Blended Winglets, we have invested in a long-term means to reduce our operating costs and decrease the
impact of increcasing fuel prices. Some of the bencfits of winglets include:
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. Increased fucl efficiency from increased lift
. Reduced engine maintenance costs
. Reduced overall cmissions

At year-cnd 2006, our entire Next-Generation fleet, excluding the 737-600s, were equipped with Blended
Winglets, All future aircraft delivered from Boeing, other than 737-600s, will have the Blended Winglets
installed at the factory, which will ¢climinate the need to remove the aircraft from revenue service while
the Blended Winglets are installed.

The 737-600s were cxcluded from this retrofit program as their average stage length flown is much
shorter and as a consequence they were unable to gain adequate benefit from this technology. In
performing a re-assessment of our initiatives to install winglets on our 737-600 aircraft, we considered
factors such as the resulting payback period on our upfront investment, as well as the operating
efficiencics we have experienced on our 737-700s and 737-800s already cquipped with winglets. From
this data, we have determined that due to the shorter stage length that our 600-scries aircraft will fly, the
benefits of installing winglets on these smaller aircraft will be less significant than on our 700- and 800-
series, which has led us to discontinue this program on this series of aircraft.

Flight Simulators

Fleet commonality is important when considering flight training. All Boeing Next-Generation 737 aircraft
types can be trained on the same Next-Gengeration 737 simulator.

As we hire new pilots and retrain current 737-200 pilots, the need for proper in-house training facilitics
became increasingly important. With three in-house flight simulators, we avoid the high cost of sending
pilots to external training facilitics, whilc managing the proccess of training our pilots internally to cnsure
the highest standards of safety are maintained.

Aircraft Financing

Since we began to expand our fleet with Next-Generation aircraft, we have been successful in sceuring
low-cost financing to support our growth.

To finance our first 10 Next-Generation aircraft, we cntered into an agreement with GE Capital Aviation
Service {GECAS) to leasc 10 737-700 aircraft under 14-ycar US dollar operating lcase arrangements in
"February 2000.

In 2002, we achieved an important milestone by completing financing arrangements with the ING Group,
supported by loan guarantces from the Export-lmport Bank of the United Sates ("Ex-lm Bank™), for US
$478 mullion for the purchase of the first owned 15 Boceing Next-Generation 737-700 aircraft received by
year-cnd 2003,

During 2003, with the support from Ex-Im Bank guarantees, we completed financing arrangements for
US $358 million arranged by ING Capital LLC and including ING Bank of Canada, Fortis Capital Corp.,
and Sociéte Générale (Canada), for the purchase of 11 additional 737-700 aircraft for delivery throughout
2004.

As we focus on maintaining low operating costs we continually investigate the benefits of leasing versus
purchasing atrcraft. In deciding the most desirable financing method, we assess several factors such as
cost of financing, flexibility and availability of aircraft.
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Leasing aircraft provides certain advantages over owning. Leasing allows for 100 per cent financing of an
aircraft versus only 85 per cent of the purchasc price of an aircraft financed under Ex-1m Bank supported
debt. In addition, leasing eliminates market risk associated with the residual value of the aircraft. We will
be able to maintain a medern fleet by acquiring new aircraft without taking on the burden of keeping or
disposing of obsolete aircraft, Aircraft can be returned at the end of the Iease without regard for its book
valuc or the expense of disposal, as the risk of obsolescence and market value risk belong to the lessor.
Leases can also finance most incidental costs incurred in acquiring aircraft. These costs include delivery
charges, interest charges on advance payments, sales taxes and installation costs. Such costs are not
usually financed under traditional long-term debt financing.

In carly 2005, we completed US-dollar operating leasc arrangements for cight Boeing Next-Generation
aircraft under a scries of sale and leaseback transactions, These included three 737-700s and five
737-800s delivered between January and June 2005.

In 2005, with the support from Ex-Im Bank guarantees, we completed financing arrangements for US
$386 million for delivery of 13 aircraft delivered between July 2005 and June 2006.

In 2006, we completed financing arrangements for US $191.1 million to support the acquisition of six
aircraft delivered between July and December 2006. In carly 2007, we finalized term sheets to lease three
additional 737-700s and one 737-800 for delivery between July and December 2009,

Ex-Im Bank-supported financing has provided us with the ability to expand our fleet while adhering to
our low-cost philosophy and maintaining a strong financial position. It has also provided us with several
advantages, including the ability to obtain competitive interest rates, diminish the effects of foreign-
currency fluctuations and increase our attractiveness lo lenders that may otherwise be hesitant to offer
financing in the airline industry.

With Ex-Im Bank loan guarantecs, we have been successful in securing Canadian-dollar facilities for US-
dollar aircraft purchases and associated live satellite television systems. This significantly reduces the
foreign-exchange fluctuations we would otherwise be exposed to for these aircraft, as the majority of our
revenue is in Canadian dollars. Prior to cach delivery, however, we arc exposed to fluctuations in the
Canadian/US cxchange rate as the aircraft are paid for at the date of delivery in US funds.

In addition to managing the foreign exchange exposure related to our debt facilitics, we have also taken
advantage of today’s historically low interest-rale cnvironment. With the support of Ex-Im Bank
guarantces, we locked in the interest rate for all 45 aircraft reccived by December 31, 2006 at rates
between 4.6 per cent and 6.0 per cent.

Each of our Ex-lm Bank-supported facilities have five- and 12-year terms for live satellite television
cquipment and new aircraft, respectively. Each loan is amortized on a straight-line basis over the
respective term in cqual quarterly principal instalments, with interest calculated on the outstanding
principal balance.

As at February 28, 2007, we are committed to lease an additional 13 737-700 and three 737-800 aircraft
to be delivered between 2007 and 2009, for terms ranging between eight- and 10-years in US dollars. To
assist with the financing of future aircraft purchase commitments, we have also reccived a preliminary
commitment from Ex-Im Bank for US $240 million for seven aircraft to be delivered in 2007 and 2008.
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Safety

We have invested in the latest aircraft equipment that increases safety, systems rcliability and aircrafi
efficiency. Through the use of technological safety advancements and advanced training for pilots,
inflight crew and flight support staff, we excecd the safety requircments of our aircraft operations.

We are committed to providing the highest level of safety in flight operations. With a growing nctwork
and expanding fleet, safety rcmains a top priority.

The Next-Generation 737, with its industry-leading technology, is the ideal aircraft for our operations. In
addition to the obvious economic benefits of operating the aircraft, there are many safety enhancements
that the aircraft provide with their high level of technology. The Next-Generation 737 incorporates
leading-cdge technology intended to enhance safety and flight-crew efficiency. One {feature that we have
sclected to implement in order to enhance safety is the Required Navigational Performance (“RNP™).
RNP combincs the virtucs of Global Positioning Systems and automated flight management to allow the
aircraft to follow complex lateral and vertical approach paths to any runway. The on board Flight
Management Computers (“FMC™) use satellite positioning and incrtial reference units to navigate safe,
repeatable paths. The aircraft’s auto flight system follows the navigation solution from the FMC to fly an
invisible path down the middle of the channel. Using RNP, a commercial jetliner can navigate through a
tight corridor in the sky during landing or takeoff in extreme weather conditions, flying around obstacles,
such as mountains and hills that no onec on the plane can sce.

This technology provides us with time and fuel savings, improved on-time performance, greater
operational flexibility and increased safety. We are the only carrier in the world with a system-wide
deployment of RNP procedures. To date, we have introduced over 120 procedures into airports across
Canada.

Maintcnance

Our Transport Canada-approved maintenance programs emphasize safety and aircraft reliability. These
programs help ensure that our aircraft will be safe, reliable and, to the extent possible, incur less ongoing
maintcnance costs.

We maintain the highest standards of safety and havc an in-housc reliability program that monitors
aircraft engine and component performance. In addition, we obtain service information directly from
Boeing and other original equipment manufacturers to obtain the necessary mnformation to enhance
exisling maintenance programs.

We gencrally perform our own line maintenance. When external agencies do perform maintenance on our
aircraft, wc ensure thcy arc approved by Transport Canada. Maintenance performed by external
companics is typically complcted at the contractors’ own maintenance facilities,

QOur maintenance program for our Next-Generation 737 aircraft meets all requircments of the Bocing
Maintenance Planning Documcent and any additional Transport Canada requiremcnts. This program
completes all the required maintenance checks with the bencfit of a known scheduled mamtenance
timeframe, which is beneficial for long-term planning.

Since we retired the last of our 737-200 aircraft in January 2006, our opcrating fleet is comprised
exclusively of new Next-Generation aircraft. New aircraft require little maintenance and are also under
warranty for several years. Accordingly, during the carlier ycars, a new aircraft is expected to incur
minimal maintenance costs. Qur expertise in operating and maintaining Boeing 737s, coupled with the
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cost-savings associated with operating new aircraft, help us operate one of the most cost-cffective and
safcty-conscious maintenance programs in the industry.

Along with our maintenance program, we have designed an inventory program intended to reduce the
time for aircraft service interruptions caused by required maintenance and parts replacement. An
inventory of consumable parts and rotable spares, including spare engincs and auxiliary power units at
certain locations in the route nctwork, ensure the quick availability and replacement of those parts. The
level of inventory required at cach location is determined based on prior history for parts demand and
forecasted future parts replacement.

Fuel Management

Consistently high fuel costs have significantly impacted our operating results. Our average cost of fuel
over the past five years is as follows:

Average cost % of operating

per liter costs
2002 36.6 cents 19.1
2003 39.2 cents 20.8
2004 49.2 cents 237
2005 64.1 cents 26.6
2006 68.9 cents 270

" Excluding impairment loss of $47.6 million.

Fuel costs contribute to an incrcasing portion of our operating costs. In the past, the price of fucl has
fluctuated widely; however, over recent years prices have been relentlessly high, and have adversely
impacted our level of profitability. We are primarily exposed to three separately priced jet fucl products:
LA Jet, NY Jet, and USGC Jet. In 2007, we cstimate our sensitivity to changes in jet fuel costs is
appreximatcly CAD $7 million in pre-tax, pre-profit sharc carnings, for cvery onc-cent per litre change in
the price of jet fuel (e.g. $0.69 to $0.68).

However, in 2006, we cstimate for every $0.01 movement in the Canadian dollar in relation to the US
dollar (c.g. $0.83 to $0.82), our fuel cxpensc would change by approximately $3.5 million in pre-tax, pre-
profit share carnings, assuming the price of fuel remained constant, Historically, increases in fuel cost
have had a positive impact on the Canadian dollar and have muted a significant portion of the increased
cost to the airline.

The scnsitivity of our operations to changes in fuel prices has motivated us to implement both long- and
short-term stratcgics to control these costs. An important long-term stratcgy we have implemented is
cmbedded within our cost structure, In 2005, we made the decision to accelerate the retircment of our
older, less fuel efficient Boeing 737-200 aircraft and moved towards cxclusively operating Boeing Next-
Generation 737s by carly January 2006. The retirement of our last Boeing 737-200 from scrvice on
January 8§, 2006 has allowed us to operate the most modern fleet in North America, at which time had an
average age of 2.0 years. In order to maximize the cost cffectivencss of our fleet, we invested in Blended
Winglets, which have been installed on all of our 737-700 and 737-800 aircraft.

We further enhance the cost cfficiencies of operating our aircraft through economical operating
procedures such as tankering and the use of ground power units where possible.
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Tankering consists of carrying extra fuel to avoid fucling the aircraft at more cxpensive airports. This
procedure is cffective in cases where the incremental savings are not offsct by the cost of carrying exira
fucl. Routc and profile of flight are considerations when estimating costs associated with carrying extra
fucl. Significant savings have resulted from our ability to take full advantage of the materially lower
Alberta fuel costs and fuel tax rebates on transborder routes.

Where possible, the procedure of using ground power units reduces use of fuel-burning auxiliary power
units onboard cach aircraft. The ground power unit and auxiliary power unit provide cleetricity to run the
aircraft air conditioning and clectrical systems while parked at an airport. It has been determined that the
ground power units are morc cconomical to utilize in certain circumstances.

Infrastructure

Our real estatc infrastructure is comprised of three types of facilities: office space for administrative
functions, hangar space for aircraft maintenance and airport terminal space for the airport operations.
Facility needs are assessed bascd on fleet growth and aircraft destinations, maintenance requirements and
planned expansion of operating departments.

With respect to office spacc, we currently occupy approximately 200,000 square feet in Calgary for all
administrative staff. Office space needs arc driven by the amount of administrative staff hired in all
dcpartments, which has traditionally grown based on fleet growth. Plans have been developed for a future
consolidation of office spacc next to the cxisting hangar in Calgary, which will be implemented subject to
costs, fleet and hiring growth.

We operate hangar facilities in Calgary, Edmonton, Winnipeg, Hamilton and Toronto. The capacity of all
of the hangar facilities we currently own or lease can accommodate approximately 14 737 aircraft. Our
future needs for additional hangars will be based on our flect growth and the amount of activity in any
given city.

We also maintain check-in, maintenance, Air Supply and minimal administrative office space at each
airport leased from local airport authoritics. Terminal space requirements are typically addresscd when
cvaluating a destination city and/or growth at an existing city, and our needs arc accommodated by the
airport authorities to the best of their ability.

Function Location Size (ft) Owned/Leased
Deerfoot Office Calgary, Alberta 65,000 Leased
Office (Airport Corporate Centre) | Calgary, Alberta 37.000 Leased
IT, Retail, Training & Offices Calgary, Alberta 34,000 Leascd
Technical Training Centre Calgary, Alberta 14.000 Leased
Inventory Management Calgary, Alberta 10,000 Leased
Training/Busingss Recovery Calgary, Alberta 13,000 Lcascd
Hangar/Office Calgary, Alberta 189,000 Owned
Hangar Edmonton, Alberta 37,000 Leased
Hangar/Qffice Winnipeg, Manitoba 15,000 Leased {ad hoc)
Hangar Toronto, Ontario 95,000 Leased
Hangar/Office/Flight Supplics Hamilton, Ontario 51,000 Owned

Business Recovery Centre/Training Centre

Our Business Recovery Centre is equipped with the necessary technology to operate as a backup facility
for our Sales Super Centre, Internct operations, Operations Control and Dispatch, and maintenance
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operations. This allows us to continue regular operations should any of our primary systems supporting
these operations fail or otherwise become unavailable.

To utilize the facility efficiently and to alleviate the costs associated with having the facility on standby,
we use the Business Recovery Centre as our primary training factlity. In the event of a business
interruption in one of our other facilitics, training would be postponed and the centre would be used for
rccovery purposcs.

Charter

We currently provide Canadian domestic charter service on an ad hoc basis and international charter
service, on both a scheduled and ad hoc basis. These flights generally operate during off-peak hours to
ensure that our scheduled scrvices are not impacted while simultancously maximizing available capacity.

Our charter operation allows us to enhance the productivity of our aircraft and provides us with a source
of predictable revenucs. We earn a fixed amount of charter revenue on a per-chartered-flight basis.
Revenues are not associated with the number of scats sold. This pre-determined revenue amount is
generally adequate to provide us with a reasonable margin after covering the fixed costs related to a
particular route, such as fuel, landing fees and navigationat charges.

In August 2003, wc entered into a two-year agreement with Transat (the "Transat Charter Agreement™)
that allows Transat and its two main tour operators, World of Vacations and Air Transat Holidays, to
charter a number of our state-of-the-art Next-Generation Boeing 737 aircraft and crews for specific routes
from several Canadian citics. During the second quarter of 2005, we rencwed the Transat Charter
Agreement through to October 2007, building on the success of the earlicr two-year agreement. Our
strong relationship with Transat continued to be profitable throughout 2006 and in February 2007 we
further renewed this agreement through 2010.

Cargo

We offer cargo scrvices to and from every city in our Canadian network. As cargo services currently
comprise only a small portion of our business, it is more cost efficient to contract a third party to operate
this facet of our business. ELS Marketing Inc. handles the sales, accounting and necessary staff training
for our cargo service.

Our cargo service is expanding at approximately the same pace as the growth of our Company. We
generated $10.4 million in additional revenue during 2006 from our cargo operations compared with $8.2
million in 2005.

Insurance

We carry adequate levels of insurance at amounts regarded as sufficient to protect our Company. The
policies in place provide aviation and non-aviation related coverage to cur Company, our guests and the
general public.

Following the cvents of September 11, 2001, insurcrs worldwide served notice that coverage for aircraft
damage and for liability claims resulting from war and terrorist activities were cancelled. This coverage
was later partially reinstated, at a cost, to the himits in force prior to September 11, 2001; however, the
third party bodily injury and damage to property coverage are now subject to a limit of US $150 milhion
per occurrence and in the aggregate.
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In addition to the limits that we purchase, the Canadian government, similar to governments around the
world, continues with its indemnification of Canadian airlines for third-party war risks liability in cxcess
of the sub-limits purchased. We are unable to predict the certainty of insurance coverage provided by the
government extending past December 31, 2007, whether reasonably priced and comparable coverage
would be provided commercially, and what impact this will have on the future performance of our
Company.

Environment

We proactively maintain our standard as a leader of environmental policy in the airline industry through
corporate and individual responsibility. As well as adhering to all of the local, national and international
standards, we take a hands-on accountability approach where no guidelines exist to ensure that we remain
responsive to current environmental issues and to prevent new environmental concerns from arising.

We are affiliated with a Vancouver group, Offsctters. This group has a wcbsite that links to westjet.com.
When flights arc booked on westjet.com that come to us via this link, WestJet pays Offsctters two per
cent of the base fare. This money is used to offsct carbon emissions through identified measures such as
planting trees.

We strive to use and develop technologies that are environmentally sound. Besides improving range and
fuel savings, our use of Blended Winglet technology on our 737-700 and 737-800 aircraft offer excellent
environmental benefits including reduced noise and emissions.

We also recycle and support the usc of recyeled materials where possible. Employees are also advised and
encouraged te make health conscious and environmentally sound decisions. This is ensured through
proper training and the adequate funding nceded to maintain a high standard of environmental
responsibility.

To date, environmental laws and regulations have not had a matenal adverse effect on our business or our
financial condition; however, changes in such government laws and regulations are ongoing and may
make environmental compliance increasingly expensive, We are not able to predict future costs which
may be incurred in order to comply with future environmental regulations.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
Constraints

Under Canadian law, non-Canadian ownership of airline voting shares is limited to 25 per cent of
outstanding shares. To reduce inconveniences in buying and selling WestJet Common Shares and to
cnsure our continuous compliance with the requirement to qualify as Canadian, we introduced a variable
voting share structure into our capital structurc, which was approved by sharcholders at a special meeting
held on August 30, 2005.

Common Voting Shares may only be owned and controlled by Canadians. Any Common Voting Share
owned or controlled by a person who is not a Canadian is, or must be converted to a Variable Voting
Share. Variable Voting Shares may only be owned or controlled by non-Canadians. Therefore, any
Voting Share owned or controlled by a person who is not Canadian, is, or must be converted to a Variable
Voting Share.
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The holders of Vartable Voling Shares and Common Voting Shares vote together at any meeting of
sharcholders and no separate meeting is held for these classes of shares, unless it is to address a matter
specific to a class.

We have adopted certain by-laws and procedures to address monitoring and enforcement of ownership
requirements cstablished by the Canada Transportation Act and our Articles. In particular, our
shareholders approved By-Law No. 2005-1 which sets out general powers of the Board of Directors to
cnact procedures regarding the issuance, transfer and holding of voting shares, power to require
declarations regarding ownership status of persons holding voting shares and various enforcement
provisions regarding Canadian ownership. In addition, we have adopted certain monitoring procedures to
cnsure compliance with our Articles and by-laws and the maintenance of ownership levels required under
the Canada Transportation Act. These monitoring procedures establish that registered owners and non-
registered owners (through brokerages and cligible depositories) must effect conversion of Common
Voting Sharcs to Variable Voting Shares or vice versa when the status of ownership or control changes
between Canadian and non-Canadian holders, Thesc procedures also cstablish that our transfer agent will
make periodic inquiries of intermediaries holding voting shares for non-registered holders to ensure
compliance with share holding ownership requirements.

General

Our capital structure consists of an unlimited number of Common Voting Shares, an unlimited number of
Variable Voting Shares, an unlimited number of Non-Voting Shares, issuable in series (the "Non-Voting
Shares™), an unlimited number of First Prefcrred Shares, issuable in serics (the "First Preferred Shares"),
an unlimited number of Sccond Preferred Shares, issuable in series (the "Second Preferred Shares™) and
an unlimited number of Third Preferred Shares, 1ssuable in series (the "Third Preferred Shares") (the First
Preferred Shares, Second Preferred Shares and Third Preferred Shares are collectively referred to as the
"Prcferred Shares”).

As at Fcbruary 28, 2007, 129,850,348 Voting Sharcs arc issucd and outstanding, consisting of
125,241,548 Commeoen Voting Shares as fully paid and non-assessable, and 4,608,800 Variable Voting
Shares as fully paid and non-assessable. No Non-Voting Shares or Preferred Shares have been issued.
There are no current plans to issue Non-Voting Shares or any class or scries of Preferred Shares.

Common Voting Shares

Exercise of Voling Rights

The holders of Common Voting Shares will be entitled to receive notice of, and to attend and votc at all
meetings of our shareholders, except those at which helders of a specific class are entitled to vote
scparately as a class under the ABCA. Each Common Voting Share shall confer the right to one vote at all
shareholder mectings.

Dividends

Subject to the rights, privileges, restrictions and conditions attached to any class of Westlet shares
ranking prior to the Common Voting Sharcs, holders of Common Voting Shares are entitled to receive
any dividends declared by our directors at the times and for the amounts that the Board of Dircctors may,
from time to time, determinc. The Common Voting Sharcs, Variable Voting Shares and Non-Voting
Shares shall rank equally as to dividends on a sharc-for-share basis. All dividends declared shail be
declared in equal or equivalent amounts per share on all Common Voling Shares, Variable Voting Shares
and Non-Voting Shares then outstanding, without preference or distinction.
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Rights in the Case of Liquidation, Winding-Up or Dissolution

Subject to the rights, privileges, restrictions and conditions attached to any class of shares ranking prior to
the Common Voting Shares, in the case of liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of our Company, the
holders of Common Voting Shares, Variable Vating Shares and Non-Voting Shares shall be cntitled to
receive our remaining property and shall be entitled to share cqually, share for share, in all distributions of
such assets.

Conversion

Each issued and outstanding Common Voting Share shall be converted into onc Variable Voting Share,
automatically and without any further act of Westlct or the holder, if such Common Voting Share is or
becomes owned or controlled by a person who is not a Canadian.

In the event that an offer is made to purchase Variable Voting Shares and the offer is one which is
required, pursuant to applicable securities legislation or the rules of a stock exchange on which the
Variable Voting Shares arc then listed, to be made to all or substantially all the holders of Variable Voting
Shares, cach Common Voting Share shall become convertible at the option of the holder into one
Variable Voting Share at any time while the offer is in effect until one day after the time prescribed by
applicable securities legislation for the offeror to take up and pay for such shares as are to be acquired
pursuant to the offer. The conversion right may only be exercised in respect of Common Voting Shares
for the purpose of depositing the resulting Variable Voting Shares pursuant to the offer, and for no other
reason, including notably with respect to voting rights attached thereto, which are deemed to remain
subject to the provisions concemning the voting rights for Common Voting Shares notwithstanding their
canversion, Our transfer agent shall deposit the resulting Variable Voting Shares on behalf of the holder.

Should the Variable Voting Shares issued upon conversion and tendered in response to the offer be
withdrawn by the sharcholders or not taken up by the offeror, or should the offer be abandoned or
withdrawn, the Variable Voting Shares resulting from the conversion shall be automatically reconverted,
without further intervention on the part of Westlet or on the part of the holder, to Common Voting
Shares.

The Common Voting Shares may not be converted into Variable Voting Shares, or vice-versa, other than
in accordance with the conversion procedure sct out in the Articles of Amendmenit.

Constraints on Share Ownership

The Common Voting Shares may only be owned and controlled by Canadians.
Variable Voting Shares

Exercise of Voting Rights

Each Variable Voting Share entitles the holder to reccive notice of, to attend and vote at all meetings of
our sharcholders, except thosc at which the holders of a specific class are entitled to vote scparately as a
class under the ABCH.

Variable Voting Shares will carry one vote per sharc held, except where (i) the number of outstanding
Variable Voting Shares exceeds 25 per cent of the total number of all issued and outstanding Variable
Voting Shares and Common Voting Shares (or any greater percentage the Governor in Council may
specify pursuant to the Canada Transporfation Act (the “Acf™)), or (it) the total number of votes cast by or
on behalf of the holders of Variable Voting Shares at any mecting on any matter on which a vote is to be
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taken exceeds 25 per cent (or any greater percentage that the Governor in Council may specify pursuant
to the Acr) of the total number of votes that may be cast at such meeting.

If either of the above-noted thresholds is surpassed at any time, the vote attached to each Variable Voting
Share will decrcase automatically without further act or formality. Under the circumstances described
above, the Variable Voting Shares as a class cannot carry more than 25 per cent {or any greater
percentage that the Governor in Council may specify pursuant to the Acf) of the total voting rights
attached to the aggregate number of our issucd and outstanding Variable Voting Sharcs and Commoen
Voting Shares. Under the circumstances described above, the Variable Voting Shares as a class cannot,
for a given shareholders’ mecting, carry more than 25 per cent (or any greater percentage that the
Governor in Council may specify pursuant to the Acr) of the total number of votes that may be cast at the
mecting.

Dividends

Subject to the nghts, privileges, restrictions and conditions attached to any other class of our shares
ranking prior to the Variable Voting Shares, the holders of Variable Voting Shares are entitled to receive
any dividends that arc declared by our directors at the times and for the amounts that our Board of
Directors may, from time to time, determinc. The Variable Voting Shares shall rank cqually with the
Common Voting Shares and the Non-Voting Shares as to dividends on a share-for-share basis. All
dividends shall be declared in equal or equivalent amounts per sharc on all Variable Voting Shares,
Common Voting Shares and Non-Voting Shares then outstanding, without preference or distinction.

Rights in the Case of Liguidation, Winding-Up or Dissolution

Subject to the rights, privileges, restrictions and conditions attached to the other classes of our shares
ranking prior to the Variable Voting Sharcs, in the case of liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of
Westlet, the holders of Variable Voting Sharcs, Common Voting Shares and Non-Voting Shares shall be
entitled to receive our remaining property and shall be entitled to sharc cqually, share for share, in all
distributions of such assets.

Conversion

Each issucd and outstanding Variable Voting Sharc shall be automatically converted into onec Common
Voting Share, without any further intervention on the part of Westiet or the holder, if (1) the Variable
Voting Share is or becomes owned and controlicd by a Canadian; or if (ii) the provisions contained in the
Act relating to forcign ownership restrictions are repealed and not replaced with other similar provisions
in applicable legislation.

In the event that an offer is made to purchase Common Voting Shares and the offer is one which is
required, pursuant to applicable sccuritics lcgislation or the rules of a stock exchange on which the
Common Voting Shares are then listed, to be made to all or substantially all the holders of Common
Voting Shares in a given province of Canada to which these requircments apply, cach Variable Voting
Share shall become convertible at the option of the holder into one Common Voting Sharc at any time
while the offer is in effect until onc day after the time prescribed by applicable sccuritics tegislation for
the Offeror to take up and pay for such shares as are to be acquired pursuant to the offer. The conversion
right may only be exercised in respect of Varable Voting Shares for the purposc of depositing the
resulting Common Voting Shares pursuant to the offer, and for no other reason, including notably with
respect to voting rights attached thercto, which are deemed to remain subject to the provisions concerning
voting rights for Variable Voting Shares notwithstanding their conversion. Qur transfer agent shall
deposit the resulting Common Voting Shares on behalf of the holder.
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Should the Common Voting Shares issued upon conversion and tendered in responsc to the offer be
withdrawn by shareholders or not taken up by the Offcror, or should the offer be abandoned or
withdrawn, the Common Voting Shares rcsulting from the conversion shall be automatically reconverted,
without further intervention on the part of Westet or on the part of the holder, into Variable Voting
Shares.

Variable Voting Shares may not be converted into Common Voting Shares, and vice-versa, other than in
accordance with the conversion procedure set out in our Articles of Amendment.

Constraints on Share Ownership

Variable Voting Shares may only be owned or controlled by non-Canadians.
Non-Voting Shares

The Non-Voting Shares may be issued, from time to time in one or more serics, cach scries consisting of
such number of Non-Voting Shares as determined by our Board of Dircctors who may also fix the
designations, rights, privileges, restrictions and conditions attaching to the sharcs of each serics of Non-
Voting Sharcs. There are no Non-Voting Shares issued and outstanding,

Dividends

The Non-Voting Sharcs, the Common Voling Shares and the Variable Voting Shares shall rank equally as
to dividends on a share for sharc basis.

Rights in the Case of Liquidation, Winding-Up or Dissolution

Subject to the rights, privileges, restrictions and conditions attaching to any other class of our shares
ranking prior to the Non-Voting Shares, in the case of liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of our
Company or other distribution of our asscts among our sharcholders for the purpose of winding-up its
affairs, the holders of Non-Voting Sharcs, Common Voting Shares and Variable Voting Shares shall be
entitled to receive the remaining property of our Company and shall be entitled to share equally, share for
share, in all distributions of such assets.

Constraints on Share Ownership

Except as provided in the ABCA, the holders of Non-Voting Shares are not entitled to vote.
Conversion
Except as described below, the Non-Voting Sharcs shall not have any conversion rights attached thereto.

In the event that an offer is made to purchase Common Voting Sharcs or Variable Voting Shares, as the
casc may be, and the offer is onc which is required, pursuant to applicable sccurities legislation or the
rules of a stock exchange on which the Common Voting Shares or Variable Voting Shares, as the casc
may be, arc then listed, to be made to all or substantially all the holders of Common Voting Shares or
Variable Voling Sharcs, as the case may be, in a province of Canada to which the requirement applics,
cach Non-Voting Share shall become convertible at the option of the holder into one Common Voting
Share or Variable Voting Share, as the case may be, at any time while the offer is in cffect until one day
after the time prescribed by applicable securitics legislation for the Offeror to take up and pay for such
shares as arc to be acquired pursuant to the offer. The conversion right may only be exercised in respect
of Non-Voting Sharcs for the purpose of depositing the resuiting Common Voting Shares or Variable
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Voting Shares, as the casc may be, pursuant to the offer, and for no other reason, including notably with
respect to voting rights attached thereto, notwithstanding their conversion, The transfer agent shall deposit
the resulting Common Voting Shares or Variable Voting Shares, as the casc may be, on behalf of the
holder.

If (i) Common Voting Shares or Variable Voting Shares, as the case may be, resulting from the
conversion and deposited pursuant to the offer arc withdrawn by the holder or arc not taken up by the
Offeror; or (ii) the offer is abandoned or withdrawn by the Offcror or the offer otherwise ¢xpires without
such Common Voting Shares or Variable Voting Sharcs, as the case may be, being taken up and paid for,
the Common Voting Shares or Variable Voting Sharcs, as the case may be, resulting from the conversion
will be re-converted into Non-Voting Shares and a share certificate representing the Non-Voting Shares
will be sent to the holder by the transfer agent. Common Voting Shares or Variable Voting Shares, as the
casc may be, resulting from the conversion and taken up and paid for by the Offcror shall be re-converted
into Non-Voting Shares at the time the Offeror is required under the applicable securities legislation to
take up and pay for such shares.

In the event that the offeror takes up and pays for the Common Voting Shares or Variable Voting Shares,
as the case may be, resulting from conversion, the transfer agent of Westlet shall deliver to the holders
thercof the consideration paid for such shares by the offeror.

There will be no right to convert the Non-Voting Shares into Common Voting Shares or Variable Voting
Shares, as the case may be, in the following cascs:

a. the offer to purchase Common Voting Shares or Variable Voting Shares, as the case may be, is not
required under applicable sccurities legislation or the rules of a stock cxchange on which the
Common Voting Shares or Variable Voting Sharcs, as the case may be, are then listed to be made to
all or substantially all holders of Common Voting Shares or Variable Voting Shares, as the case may
be, who are in a province of Canada to which the legislation applics, that is, the offer is an "exempt
take-over-bid" within the meaning of the foregoing securities legislation; or

b. an offer to purchase Non-Voting Shares is made concurrently with the offer to purchase Common
Voting Shares or Variable Voting Shares, as the case may be, and the two offers arc identical in
respect of price per share, percentage of outstanding shares for which the offer is made, and in all
other material respects, including in respect of the conditions attaching thereto. The offer to purchase
the Non-Voting Shares must be unconditional, subject to the exception that the offer for the Non-
Voting Sharcs may contain a condition to the effect that the offeror not be required to take up and pay
for Non-Voting Shares tendered in response to the offer if no shares are purchased pursuant to the
contemporaneous offer for the Common Voting Shares or the Variable Voting Sharcs, as the case
may be.

The conversion of Non-Voting Sharcs to Common Voting Shares or Variable Voting Shares, as the case
may be, as contemplated above is subject to certain procedures and formalitics, which are more fully
described in Westlet’s Articles and “Special Operating Procedures For Monitoring Share Ownership”,
full particulars of which can be viewed on SEDAR at www.scdar.com.

Preferred Shares

Issuable in Classes and Series

We may issuc Preferred Shares from time to time in any class and in any serics as the Board of Directors
may determine. The Board of Directors may also fix the designations, right, privileges and conditions
attaching to the Preferred Shares of each class and senies. The holders of Preferred Shares arc not entitled
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to vote, except as provided for in the ABCA.
Priority

The Preferred Shares of cach class and each series shall, with respect to the payment of dividends and
distribution of assets in the event of liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of our Company, whether
voluntary or involuntary, or any other distribution of our asscts among our sharcholders for the purpose of
winding-up our affairs, rank on a parity with the Preferred Sharces of every other serics in its class and
shall be entitled to preference over the Common Sharcs, the Non-Voting Shares and any other shares of
any other class ranking junior to such class of Preferrcd Shares. The First Preferred Shares rank in priority
to the Second Preferred Shares and the Third Preferred Shares, and the Sccond Preferred Shares rank in
priority to the Third Prefcrred Shares.

DIVIDEND POLICY

No dividends have been paid or declared on any of our shares since the date of our incorporation nor are
any dividends contemplated in the foreseeable future. Qur dividend policy i1s based on our results of
opceration, our financial position, our financing requirecments for future growth and any other factors our
Board of Directors may deem relevant in the circumstances. The potential for payment of dividends will
be reviewed periodically.

MARKET FOR SECURITIES

Qur Common Voting Sharcs and the Variable Voting Shares are traded on the Toronto Stock Exchange
under the symbols "WJA" and "WJA A" respectively. The following table lists the high and low market
priccs and trading volume of our Common Voting Shares and Variable Voting Shares for the periods
inclicated.

Commen Voting Sharcs Variable Voting Shares
Period High Low Volume High Low Volume
($) ® %) (8)
2007
January 15.09 14.11 26,316,445 15.35 13.28 218,970
February 16.09 14.28 15,097,175 16.96 14.00 133,233
2006
January 13.55 12.00 11,790,492 13.59 12.26 529,049
February 12.87 10.35 9,964,679 12.91 10.17 161,372
March 11.50 10.34 7,915,255 11.39 10.07 154,378
April 11.91 10.70 8,618,925 11.92 10.01 23,166
May 12.24 10.65 11,844,341 12.30 10.65 19,801
June 11.50 10.50 6,658,869 11.91 10.00 19,201
July 11.25 10.23 7,312,884 11.04 10.26 14,624
August 10.85 9.18 8,497,677 10.35 9.51 41,252
September 10.59 9.69 11,359,802 10.47 9.60 28,164
October 12.55 991 22,573,337 12.41 9.78 66,260
November 13.94 12.01 19,025,266 14.00 §2.15 41,579

December 15.09 13.34 14,467,459 15.17 13.20 72,740
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The following tables and notes set out the names, province and country of residence, positions with our
Company, principal occupations and particulars of cach of the directors and exccutive officers of our
Company as at December 31, 2006. Unless otherwise specified, all of the individuals noted below have
been engaged in their stated principal occupations, or in other executive capacitics with the organizations
by which they are currently engaged, for the past five years.

Directors

Name, City, Province

and Country of
Residence

Position or
Office
with WestJet

Number of
WestJet
Securities
owned or
over which
control or
direction is
exercised as
at March 14,
2007

Principal Occupation During
Past Five (5) Years

Clive J. Beddoe
Calgary, Alberta
Canada

Hugh Bolton'" #H*
Edmonton, Alberta

Canada

Brett Godfrcy'

Clayfield, Queensland

Australia

Ronald G. Greenc® ™™

Calgary, Alberta
Canada

Murph Hannon
Calgary, Alberta
Canada

James Homeniuk'®

Calgary, Alberta
Canada

(2}

Chairman and
Chief Executive
Officer and
Director since
June 1995

Director since
September 2005

Director since
August 2006

Director since
June 1995

Director since
December 1996

Aircraft
Maintenance
Engineer and
Director since
April 2003,

6,167,865
Common
Voting Shares

5,000
Common
Voting Shares

NIL Common
Voting Shares

5,352,675
Common
Voting Shares

897,645
Common
Voting Shares

22,49
Common
Voting Sharcs

Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of WestJet and Chairman,
The Hanover Group of Companics

Non-exccutive Chair of the board
of EPCOR Utilities Inc. and
Chairman of Matnkon Inc.

Chief Executive Officer of Virgin
Blue Airlines in Australia.

President and Chief Executive
Officer, Tortuga Investment Corp.,
a privite investment company

President, Murcon Development
Ltd., a private investment
company and President, Canadian
Hydrodynamics Ltd., a private oil
and gas data services company

WestJet Aircraft Maintenance
Engincer
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Name, City, Province Position or Number of Principal Occupation During
and Country of Office WestJet Past Five (5) Years
Residence with WestJet Securities

owned or

over which

control or

direction is
exercised as
at March 14,

2007
Allan Jackson P Director since 6,020 President and Chief Executive
Calgary, Alberta, July 2003 Cominon Officer, Arci Ltd., a private real
Canada Voting Sharcs cstate investment company and
Jackson Enterprises Inc., a private
holding and consulting company
Wilmot L. Dircctor since 3,406,371 President, Marjad Inc., a private
Matthews! ¥ Scptember 1996 Common investment company
Toronto, Ontario Voting Shares
Canada
Larry Pollock! "™ Director since 11,975 President and Chief Executive
Edmonton, Alberta Scptember 1999 Common Officer, Canadian Western Bank
Canada Voting Shares and Canadian Western Trust
Arthur Scace!" 9™ Director since 15,000 Non-executive Chairman of The
Toronto, Ontario September 2005 Common Bank of Nova Scotia; prior to
Canada Voting Sharcs January 1, 2004, partner of
MeCarthy Tétrault LLP (Barristers
and Solicitors)
() Member of Audit Committee, which committee is required pursuant to the ABCA.
) Member of Compensation Committee.
3) Member of the Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee.
(4) Member of Independent Committee.

(5) Lead Director since March 22, 2004,
(6) Nominee of P.A.C.T. to serve as non-management nominee for Board of Directors.
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Name, City, Position or Office Principal Occupation During Past Years of
Province and with WestJet Five (5) Ycars Airline
Country Experience
of Residence
Sean Durfy President President, Westfet, since September 3
Calgary, Alberta 2006; prior thereto, Executive Vice-
Canada President, Sales, Marketing and
Airports, Westlet, since December
2004; prior thercto, President, Enmax
Encrgy Corporation
Janice Paget Vice-President, Co-Chief Financial Officer, Vice- 9
Calgary, Alberta Controller, Co- President, Controller, Westlet, since
Canada Chief Financial January 2005; prior thereto, Director,
Officer Controllership, Westlet
Derck Payne Vice-President, Co-Chief Financial Officer, Vice- 8
Calgary, Alberta Finance and President, Finance and Corporate
Canada Corporate Scrvice Services, Westlet, since December
Co-Chief Financial 20035; prior thereto, Director,
Officer Treasury, WestJet
Donald Bell - Exccutive Exccutive Vice-President, Culture, 13
Calgary, Alberta Vice-President, Westlet
Canada Culture
Frederick (Fred) Executive Exccutive Vice-President, Corporate 6

Ring
Calgary, Alberta,
Canada

Vice-President,
Corporate Projects

Projects, Westlet, since January 2006;
prior thereto, Exccutive Vice-
President, People, Westlet
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Name, City, Position or Office Principal Qccupation During Past Years of
Province and with WestJet Five (5) Ycars Airline
Country Experience
of Residence
Bob Cummings Executive Vice- Executive Vice-President, Guest 2
Calgary, Alberta President, Guest Experience and Marketing, WestJct
Canada Experience and since September 2006; prior thereto,
Marketing Vice-President, Marketing, WestJct
since March 2008, prior thereto,
Vice-President, Marketing, Enmax
Hugh Dunlcavy Executive Vice- Executive Vice-President, 20
Calgary, Alberta President, Commercizl Distribution, Westlet
Canada Commercial since September 2006; prior thereto,
Distribution Vice-President, Revenue, Westlet
since January 2005; prior thereto,
Vice-President, Sales and Support,
Lufthansa Systems since January
2003; prior thereto, Senior Director,
Commercial, Air Canada
Ken McKenzie Executive Vice- Exccutive Vice-President, Operations, 25
Calgary, Alberta President, Westlet since September 2006; prior
Canada Operations thereto, Vice-President, Operational
Development, Westdct, since
December 2005, prior thereto,
Dhrector, Regulatory Affairs, Westlet,
since April 2005; prior thereto, Chief
Pilot, Regulatory Affairs, Air Canada,
Jazz
Matthew Handford Executive Vice- Executive Vice-President, People, 2
Calgary, Alberta President, People Westlet since January 2006; prior
Canada thereto, Vice-President, People,
Westlet, since June 2005; prior
thereto, Worldwide Vice-President of
Human Resources, Crystal Decisions
Shawn Christensen Corporate Director, Legal Services, Westlet 5
Calgary, Alberta Secretary since April 2002; prior thereto,

Canada

lawyer at a Calgary law firm

In January 2007, Matthew Handford, Exccutive Vice-President, Pcople, resigned from his position. On
March 1, 2007, Vito Culmone joined our tcam as Executive Vice-President, Finance and Chief Financial

Officer.

Directors and exccutive officers of Westlet, as a group, own, directly or indirectly, or excrcisc control or
direction over, 16.9 million (13.0%) of our Voting Shares. Information as to securities beneficially owned
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or over which control or direction is exercised, not being within our knowledge, has been supplicd by the
respective individuals.

Conflicts of Interest

We have three term loans outstanding with a Canadian chartered bank whose President and Chief
Executive Officer is a director of WestlJet. The loans were negotiated on an arm's length basis and are
priced at competitive market rates. A dircctor of Westlet is also a director and Chairman of the loans
committee of this same Canadian chartered bank.

There are potential conflicts of interest to which some of the directors and officers of our Company will
be subject. In connection with our operations, seme of the directors and officers are engaged in or
associated with and will continue to be engaged in or associated with service and supply busincsses
whosc services and products may be utilized by us from time to time. At present, these relationships are
immaterial. Conflicts, if any, will be subject to the procedures and remedies as provided for under the
ABCA, subject to internal review by the Audit Committee.

Committces of the Board

The Board of Directors has established three (3) standing committees: an Audit Commitice, a
Compensation Committee and a Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee. The Board has also
cstablished the Independent Committec of Dircctors as a special committee to deal with litigation
commenced by Air Canada and Jetsgo. The creation of the Independent Committec scparated the
handling of those claims from management to allow management to concentrate its time and efforts on
running the airline. Each committee reports to the Board with their recommendations for final approval.

Audit Committee Disclosure
General

The Audit Committee has a Charter, which addresses the purpose, composition, meeting requirements and
responsibilities and duties (documents/reports review, auditors’ independence, financial reporting process,
process improvement and ethical and legal compliance matters) of the committee. The Audit Committec
will review the adequacy of the Charter on a regular basis and propose to the Board any ncccssary
changes from time to time. The Charter of the Audit Committee is attached to this Annual Information
Form as Appendix “A.”

In 1999 and 2000 the Audit Committee was involved in the establishment of our Internal Audit function
which continues with a customer-oriented and valuc-added approach to our operating departments in
evaluating their operating processes and systems of internal control. Audit reports are prepared and
distributed to management and the Audit Committee, and the Internal Auditor also meets with the Audit
Committec quarterly. The Internal Auditor conducts an Entcrprise/Process Risk Assessment annually to
identify and prioritize audit areas for the ycar,

Composition of the Audit Committce

The members of the Audit Committee are Wilmot Matthews, Larry Pollock, Arthur Scace and Hugh
Bolion. The Audit Committec met five (5) times during 2006,

The members of the Audit Commitice arc independent (in  accordance with  Multilateral
Instrument 52-110) and are financially literate. The Committee meets at least quarterly. The purposc of
the quarterly meetings is to review and subscquently recommend, to the full Board, the Audit
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Committee's approval of financial statements, to discuss the analysis of financial information provided by
management, to review accounting policics and estimates, and to monitor actual financial performance
from planned performance.

Relevant Education and Experience

Mr. Wilmot Matthews, the Chairman of the Committee, is a Chartered Accountant who was also a Vice
Chairman of Nesbitt Burns Inc. before his retirement in 1996. He has served on numercus audit
committecs in addition to that of our Company, including as Chairman of the audit committee of
Renaissance Encrgy Ltd. and for numerous years as a member of the audit commmittee of Burns Fry Ltd.
He is also a former member of the audit committee of Husky Energy Lid.

Mr. Larry Pollock, presently the President and Chief Exccutive Officer of a Canadian Schedule 1 Bank,
has been in the financial services industry since 1968. He has cxtensive experience as an analyst and
commercial loan underwriter and has served on the audit committees of Allianz Insurance and Trafalgar
Insurance of Canada, subsidiarics of Allianz of Germany, He has been on our Audit Commitiee for five
ycars.

Mr. Arthur Scace, presently the non-exccutive Chairman of The Bank of Nova Scotia, 15 also an ex-
officio member of the Audit and Conduct Review Committee of the Bank of Nova Scotia. He has served
on the boards of numerous public companies, including The Canada Life Assurance Company, Gerdau
Ameristeel and various companies within The Brompton Group of Companies. He is a former Chairman
of McCarthy Tetrault LLP, Barristers and Solicitors in Toronto. He has B.A.s from the University of
Toronto and Oxford University; an M.A. from Harvard University, an LL.B. from Osgoode Hall, and
Honorary Doctorates from The Law Socicty of Upper Canada, York University, the University of Trinity
College and the University of Toronto.

Mr. Hugh Bolton is a Chartered Accountant and Fellow of the Alberta Institute of Chartered Accountants,
and the former Chairman, CEQ and partner in Coopers & Lybrand Canada, Chartered Accountants. He
has an undergraduate degree in economics from the University of Alberta. Mr. Bolton is currently the
non-executive Chair of the board of EPCOR Ulitics Ine. and lead dircctor of Matrikon Inc. He is also a
board member of Canadian National Railway Company, Teck Cominco Limited and TD Bank Financial
Group.

Pre-Approval of Policies and Procedures

The Audit Committec reviews any proposcd related party transactions, annual external appraisals of
aircraft valucs and residual valucs as well as the adequacy of our accounting estimates for amortization.

Audit fees and fces paid to the audit firm for non-audit scrvices arc reviewed by the committee quarterly.
Nen-audit services to be provided to us by our auditors must be pre-approved by the Audit Committee.

Independent Auditor Service Fees

The Audit Committec annually revicws the appointment of our cxternal auditors and makes
recommendations to the Board regarding our auditors’ appointment and remuneration. The Audit
Committee meets quarterly with the external auditors, including a private session without management
present, The committee receives reports, reviews audit findings, approves audit plans and is appraised of
future reporting developments from our cxternal auditors. KPMG LLP services as our independent
auditors. In aggregate, fees paid, and payable, to KPMG LLP for the years ended December 31, 2006 and
2005 respectively, were $787,825 and $761,200.
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Audit Fees

The aggregate fees billed by our external auditors in each of the last two fiscal years for audit services,
including annual audits, quarterly reviews and other services related to the audit, were $617,500 in 2006
and $524,000 in 2005.

Audit Related Fees

The aggregate fees billed in each of the last two fiscal years for assurance-related services by our external
auditors that are reasonably rclated to the performance of the audit or review of our financial statements
that are not reported under "Audit Fees" above were $76,000 in 2006 and $8,500 in 2005 related to the
audits of Airport Improvement Fee schedules.

Tax Fees

The aggregate fees billed in cach of the last two fiscal yecars for professional services rendered by our
external auditors for general tax compliance, tax advice and tax planning were $44.590 in 2006 and

$122.300 in 2005,
All Other Fees

The aggregate fecs billed in cach of the last two fiscal years for products and services provided by our
cxtcrnal auditors other than scrvices reported above were 349,735 in 2006 and $106,400 in 2005 rclating
to French translation services for financial disclosure materials and review of internal control
documentation.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

We did not ¢nter into any material contracts within the maost recently completed financial year, or before
the most recently completed financial year which are matenal and are still in effect.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

There are no outstanding legal proceedings that are material to our Company or to which we are a party or
in respect of which any of our properties is subject, nor are any such proceedings known to be
contemplated, other than:

1) A Statement of Claim was filed by Jetsgo Corporation in the Ontario Superior Court on October
15, 2004, against Westlet, an officer, and a former officer (the “Defendants™). The principal
allegations arc that the Defendants conspired together to unlawfully obtain Jetsgo's proprietary
information and to usc this proprietary information to harm Jetsgo and benefit the Defendants.
Jetsgo is secking damages in an unspecified amount to be determined prior to trial plus $50
million for spoliation, punitive and excmplary damages. Jetsgo has provided no details or
evidence to substantiale its claim. On May 13, 2005, Jetsgo sought bankruptcy protection. The
action was stayed as a result and no further steps can be taken in the litigation unless a court order
1s obtained.

On March 12, 2007, counsel for Jetsgo filed a Request for Status Hearing with the Ontario
Superior Court. A status hearing has been scheduled for April 25, 2007. Counsel for Jetsgo has
advised it will be secking an Order to Continue, the effect of which weuld be to lift the stay and
permit the trustee in bankruplicy to continue the lawsuit.




- 40 -

We are party to other legal proceedings and claims that arise during the ordinary course of business. It is
the opinion of management that the ultimate outcome of these and any outstanding matters will not have a
material cffect upon our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

INTEREST OF MANAGEMENT AND OTHERS IN MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS

There were no material interests, direct or indirect, of our directors and senior officers, nor of any
nominecs for director or any sharcholder who beneficially owns more than 10 per cent of our shares, or
any known associate or affiliatc of such persons in any transaction since the commencement of our last
completed financial year, or in any proposed transaction which has materially affected or would
matcrially affect us or any of our subsidiarics.

INTERESTS OF EXPERTS

No person or corporation is named as having prepared or certified a statement, report or valuation
described or included in a filing, or referred to in a filing, made under National Instrument 51-102 by our
Company during, or relating to, our most recently completed financial year, and whose profession or
business gives authority to the statement, report or valuation made by the person or corporation, other
than KPMG LLP, our auditors.

KPMG LLP is independent in accordance with the auditor’s rules of professional conduct of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Alberta.

RISK FACTORS

Investment in our Common Voting Sharcs and Variable Voting Shares involves certain risks, including,
but not necessarily limited to, the risk factors listed below. Owners and prospective purchasers of our
sccuritics should carefully consider, in addition to the other information in this Annual Information Form,
the following risk factors inherent in and affecting our business before making an investment deciston.

Management performs a risk assessment on an annual basis to ensure that significant risks related to our
Company have been reviewed and assessed by management.

Any major safety incident involving our aircraft or similar aircraft of other airlines could materially
and adversely affect our service, reputation and profitability.

A major safety incident involving our aircraft during operations would requirc us to incur potentially
substantial repair or replacement costs of the damaged aircraft and a disruption in service. We could also
incur potentially significant claims relating to injured guests and others along with a negative impact to
our rcputation for safety, adversely affecting our ability to attract and retain guests. We have implemented
an Emergency Response Plan ("ERP") in the cvent of an incident occurring,.

On November 4, 2003 the Montreal Convention came nto force in Canada by an amendment to the
Carriage by Air Act (Canada). The Montrcal Convention introduced updates and modernized the Warsaw
Convention of 1929, a set of international rules governing liability of an air carrier. The Montreal
Convention has expanded an air carrier's liability exposure. Under the Warsaw system, an air carrier's
liability was limited to approximately US $75,000 (unless the air carrier acted with intent or recklessly).
The Montreal Convention established a two-tier system for determining an air carrier's liability for the
death or injury of passengers in the event of an accident. Under the first tier of the system, an air carrier is
strictly liable for death or injury to passengers up to approximately US $145,000, but may be subject to
additional damages unless the air carrier can show that it did not act negligently. Undcr the second ticr, a
carricr can defend against any claim above that amount.
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We carry adequale insurance similar 10 other scheduled airlines operating in the North American market.
While we believe our insurance is adequate, there can be no assurance that such coverage will fully
protect us against all losses that we might sustain. In the aftermath of the September 11, 2001 terrorist
attacks, the availability of insurance for airlines decreased while the costs of such insurance increased.
There is no assurance that we will be able to obtain insurance on the same terms in which we have in the
past.

There is a risk that the Government of Canada may not continue to provide indemnity for third party war
risk coverage, which it currently provides to certain scheduled carriers, including us. In the event that the
Government of Canada does not continue to provide such coverage, such coverage may or may not be
available to us in the commercial markets and the costs and impact of such costs is as yet undetermined.

The London aviation insurance market has announced its intention to introduce a new standard war and
terrorism exclusion clausc to apply to aircraft hull, sparcs, passenger and third party liability policies that
will exclude claims caused by the hostile use of a dirty bomb, clectromagnetic pulse device or bio-
chemical materials.

We are dependent on the price and availability of aircraft fuel. Continued periods of high fuel costs
and/or significant disruptions in the supply of fuel, could adversely affect our results of operations.

Our business is inherently dependent upon jet fuel to operate, and therefore, we are impacted by changes
in jet fuel prices. Our fuel costs constitute one of the largest single expense categories, representing 27.0
per cent of operating costs in 2006 and 26.6 per cent of operating costs in 2005. A significant change in
the pricc of aviation fuel will materially affect our results of operations. We monitor hedging
opportunitics to mitigate the cffects of increasing fuel prices. Currently, we have no hedges in place. In
2007, we cstimatc the sensitivity of our cxposurc to changes in fuel costs (price per litre of jet fuel} to be
approximately CAD $7 million in pre-tax carnings for every $0.01 per litre change in the price of jet fuel.

Fuel prices will continue to be susceptible to political cvents, weather conditions, refinery capacity and
other factors that can affcet the supply of fucl and we cannot predict near- or long-term fuel prices. In the
event of a fucl-supply shortage or significantly higher fucl prices, a curtailment of scheduled service
could result. There can be no assurance that increases in the price of fuel can be offsct by higher fares or
fucl surcharges. The higher costs to travellers may de-stimulate air travel.

Depending on hedging programs, a significant increase in the price of jet fuel could result in a
disproportionatcly higher increase in our average total costs in comparison to our competitors using more
effective hedging programs.

Our failure to implement our growth strategy could have a material adverse effect on our financial
condition and resualts of operations.

QOur growth strategy involves increasing the number of markets served and increasing the frequency of
flights to the markets we already scrve. During the initial phases of implementing service in a new
market, we are more vulnerable to the effects of fare discounting in that market by competitors alrecady
operating in that market or by ncw competitors entering. There can be no assurance that we will be able to
identify and successfully cstablish new markets.
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The airline industry is intensely competitive. Reduced market growth rates can create heightened
competitive pressures, impacting the ability to increase fares and increasing competition for market
share.

Conventional airline profits are sensitive to the gencral level of economic activity, taxes, interest rates,
demographic changes, price levels, telecommunications usage, special circumstances or events occurring
in the locations served, and to external factors such as foreign exchange rates and international political
events. A significant portion of an airline's costs such as labour, aircraft ownership and facilities charges
cannot be easily adjusted in the short-term to respond to market changes.

The airline industry is highly competitive and particularly susceptible to price discounting because
airlines incur only nominal costs to provide services to passengers occupying otherwise unsold seats, We
primarily compete with a major Canadian airtine and its subsidiaries in our domestic market and the
major Canadian airline and numecrous U.S. carriers in the transborder market. We face significant
competition from other airlines that are serving most of our existing and potential markets. Other airlines
regularly meet or price their fares below our fares, potentially preventing us from attaining a share of the
passenger traffic necessary to maintain profitable operations. Our ability to meet price competition
depends on our ability to operate at costs lower than our competitors or potential competitors over the
medium to long term.

In addition, consumers are able to more effectively shop for travel services through internet websites and,
particularly, wholesale travel sellers to more effectively compare pricing information. The growth and
competitiveness in internet distribution channels have pushed air carriers to more aggressively price their
products, which, in effect, reduces yield and may have an impact on our revenue and profitability as more
and more consumers focus on this distribution network.

With the aggressive competitive nature of our industry, we turn inwards to realize cost efficiencies and
competitive advantages. Our culture remains a competitive advantage in the face of increased
competition. In addition, we continually monitor our cost structure and seek opportunities to reduce costs
further where possible.

The failure of critical systems whiclt we rely on could harm our business,

We depend on automated systems to operate our business, including our computerized airline reservation
system, telecommunication systems, aircraft maintenance system and website. Our website and
reservation system must be able to accommodate a high volume of traffic and deliver important and
accurate flight information. Any disruption in these systems could result in the loss of important data,
increase expenses and generally harm our business. We have secondary systems which will mitigate to
varying degrees any primary system failures.

Throughout 2006, we continued work on our new reservation system. In January 2007, we entered into an
agreement with a service provider to suspend the current aiRES contract in order to negotiate an
amendment to this contract for the successful delivery of their aiRES rescrvation system. As at December
31, 2006, we had $31.9 million capitalized, related solely to the aiRES project. If our Company and the
service provider can not come to an agreement by May 31, 2007, the partics will cach be in a position to
proceed with claims against cach other and there is the potential of a one-time write oft of this amount.

While we arc committed to completing the aiRES project, uncertainty does remain, the outcome of which
may impact the future recoverability of the project and have a significant impact on the financial
statements of future periods.




-43 -

On December 22, 2006, we entered into a support agreement with our current service provider, cffective
through Dccember, 2008, This support agreement will provide us with a supported upgraded version of
our current Open skies reservation and distribution system. Further, it will provide us with the
functionality required to deliver our growth strategy and business plans during the interim period while
we seek to amend the above mentioned agreement.

As a company that processes, transmits, and stores credit card data, we are subject to compliance with
certain requirements cstablished by credit card companies. Non-compliance with these requirements
whether through system breaches or limitations may result in substantial fines or temporary or permanent
exclusion from one or more credit card acceptance programs. The inability to process one or more credit
cards could have a material impact on guest bookings, revenue, and profitability of the Corporation.

Government intervention and regulations, or rulings, or decisions rendered imposing additional
requirements and restrictions on operations could increase operating costs and disrupt our operations.

The airline industry is subject to extensive laws relating to, among other things, airline safety and
security, provision of services, competition, environment and labour concerns. Government entities such
as Transport Canada, Competition Burcau, the Canadian Transportation Agency. and other domestic or
foreign government entitics may implement new or different laws, regulatory schemes or render decisions
or rulings, or changes in tax policy, that could have an adverse impact on the airline industry in general by
significantly increasing the cost of airlinc operations, imposing additional requirements on operations, or
reducing the demand for air travel, and could have a material adverse effect on our business. operaticnal
results and financial condition.

Laws relating to data collection on passengers and employces for sccurity purposcs and counter-balancing
privacy legislation have increased costs of operation. Any material changes to add additional
requircments on collecting data , processing data and filing with, or otherwise reporting to, government
agencies may materially impact the business of WestJet as to time and costs, and therefore its results of
opcrations.

The increase in security measures and clearance times required for passenger travel could have a material
adversc effcct on passenger travel demand and the number of passengers carried by WestJet. Reduction
in passenger numbers will impact negatively on WestJet's revenucs and results of operations.

Interruption in the provision of goods and services from significant third party suppliers could have a
material adverse affect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

We secure goods and services from a number of third party suppliers. Any significant interruption in the
provision of goods and services from such suppliers, some of which interruptions would be beyond our
contro! could have a material adverse affect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Qur reliance on Boeing for aircraft or General Electric for engines makes us susceptible to any problems
connected with Boeing aircraft or General Electric engines or components, respectively, including
defective materials, mechanical problems, or negative perception in the travelling community. In addition,
labour action at Boeing, General Electric or key suppliers could delay delivery of new aircraft or parts,
impacting negatively on our operating and expansion plans.

1f Boeing were unable to adhere to its contractual obligations in meeting scheduled delivery dates for our
owned and leased aircraft, we would be required to find another supplier for aircraft or engincs to fulfill
our growth plans. Acquiring aircraft from another supplicr would require significant transition costs. In
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addition, aircraft and engincs may not be available at similar prices or received during the same scheduled
delivery dates, which could adversely affect our business, results of opcrations and financial condition.

We have a relationship with Loyalty Management Group, the supplier of Air Miles® and the operator of
the Air Miles® Reward Program. Any disruption or failure by the provider of Air Miles to fulfill iis
obligations to us or our customers who collect Air Miles under the Air Miles Reward Program could have
a material adverse affect on customers' future decisions to book with us and, as a consequence a material
adverse affect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

We derive significant operations and utilization cfficiencies through our charter operations. In particular,
the charter relationship with Transat may be considered to be material. Any disruption in the relationship
with Transat or Transat's failure or inability to fulfill its contractual obligations with us pursuant to the
Transat Charter Agrecment could have a material adverse effect on our business, results from operations
and financial condition,

Inability to retain key personnel could harm our business.

Our success will depend, in part, on members of our management and key personncl. If any of these
individuals become unable to continue in his or her present role, we may have difficulty replacing these
individuals, which could adversely affect us.

Our business is labour-intensive and requires large numbers of pilots, flight attendants, mechanics and
other personnel. Qur growth and general turnover requires us Lo locate, hire, train and retain a significant
number of new employees cach year. There can be no assurance that we will be able to locate, hire, train
and retain the qualified employees that we need to meet our growth plans or replace departing employees.
If we are unable to hire and retain qualified employees at a reasonable cost, this could adversely affect our
business, results from opcrations and financial condition.

Qur financial results are affected by foreign currency and interest rate fluctuations.

We are exposed to US dollar currency fluctuations due to US dollar payment obligations associated with
fuel purchases, aircraft lease and purchase payments, and maintenance expenditures such as spare parts,
and rcpair and overhaul of engines and rotable components. Since our revenues are received primarily in
Canadian dollars, we arc cxposcd to fluctuations in the Canada/US exchange rate with respect to these
payment obligations.

We arc cxposed to fluctuations in the Canadian/US exchange rate relating to the purchases of the
remaining Next-Generation 737 aircraft. The purchases of the aircraft arc financed by funds drawn in
Canadian dollars; however, the aircraft are paid for in US funds at the date of cach aircraft delivery. As a
result, we are exposed to foreign currency fluctuations prior to cach delivery date. This exposure is
mitigated by fixing rates in advance of delivery at appropriate times and where rates are not yet locked in,
or aircraft deliveries arc spread out over time, cffectively achieving an average rate of cxchange as the US
dollar exchange rate is locked in at each scparate delivery point. Additionally, the ability to draw these
funds in Canadian dollars significantly reduces our risk to foreign currency fluctuations as the majority of
our revenue is in Canadian dollars.

We arc also exposed to fluctuations in the Canadian/US exchange rate related to US aircraft lcase
payments,

We arc also exposed to general market fluctuations of interest rates as we have future aircraft purchase
commitments which will be financed at prevailing market rates. This exposure is mitigated by fixing
rates.
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Terrorist attacks or military involvement in unstable regions may harm the airline industry.

After the terrorist attacks of September 11, 2001, the airline industry expericnced a substantial decline in
passenger traffic and revenue, and increased sccurity and insurance costs. The heightencd concern of
potential terrorist attacks and additional terrorist attacks cause a further decreasc in passenger traffic and
yields, and increase sccurity measures and related costs. These cvents adverscly impact the airline
industry and our operations, and should such an attack occur in Canada, the adverse impact could be very
significant.

Qur operations are affected by a number of external factors beyond our control such as weather
conditions, and special circumstances or events occurring in the locations we serve,

Delays or canccllations duc to weather conditions and work stoppages or strikes by airport workers,
baggage handlers, air traffic controllers and other workers not employed by us could have a material
adverse impact on our financial condition and results of operations. Delays contribute to increased costs
and decreased aircraft utilization, which negatively affects profitability.

Cur business is dependent upon its ability to opcrate without interruption at a number of key airports,
including Toronto Pearson International Airport and Calgary International Airport. An interruption or
stoppage in service at a key airport could have a matcrial adverse impact on our business, results from
operations and financial condition.

A health epidemic may decrease the demand for air travel,

A health epidemic occurring in the U.S. or Canada, or a World Health Organization travel advisory
primarily relating to North American cities or regions. could have a significant adverse cffect on the
number of passcngers travelling on Westjet and, therefore, our financial results and our business.

Governmental fees increases de-stimulate air travel

Air navigation fees in Canada have been increasing significantly in recent years, and if they continue to
increase at similar rates, they could have a negative impact on the business and our financial results.

Airport authoritics continue to implement or increase various user fees which impact travel costs for
passengers, including landing fees for airlines and airport improvement fees. Airport authorities generally
have the unilateral discretion to implement and adjust such fees. The combined increased fees, and
increases in rents under various lease agreements between airport authoritics and the Government of
Canada, which in many instances are passed through to air carriers and/or air travellers, but ultimately, air
travellers, may negatively impact travel of all sorts, and most particularly discretionary travel,

Our maintenance costs will increase as our fleet ages.

The average age of our fleet as at December 31, 2006 is 2.5 years. These aircraft require less maintenance
now than they will in the future. We have incurred lower maintenance cxpenscs on these aircraft becausc
most of the parts on these aircraft are under multi-year warrantics. Qur maintcnance costs will increasc
significantly as our flect ages and warrantics expirc. At December 31, 2006, 14 of cur owned aircraft have
comg off of their warranty period, with and additional 11 coming off of warranty in 2007.
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Our business is labour-intensive; risk of unionization could materially increase costs and affect our
unigue corporate culture with adverse operational and financial consequences.

We operate with lower personnel costs than the major cstablished airlines, principally due to lower base
salarics, greater productivity and flexibility in the utilization of personnel. There can be no assurance that
weg will be able to realize all of these advantages for any extended period. Many airline industry
employees are represented by labour unions. We arc unable to predict whether any of our employees will
clect to be represented by a labour union or other collective bargaining unit. If untonization of our
eimployees were to occur, our costs could materially increase and our corporate culture could change with
adverse operational and financial consequences.

We have significant financial obligations and will incur significantly more fixed obligations which
could harnt our ability to meet our growth strategy.

Our debt and other fixed obligations could impact our ability to obtain additional financing to support
capital cxpansion plans and working capital on suitable terms. Our ability to make scheduled payments on
our debt and other fixed obligations will depend on our future operating performance and cash flow. The
failure 1o generate sufficient operating cash flow to meet our fixed obligations could harm our business.

A limited number of our current financing agreements require us to comply with specific financial
covenants. There is no assurance that we can comply with these covenants in the future. Thesc covenants
may limit our ability to finance futurc operations or capital necds. 1If we were to default on these
covenants and were unsuccessful in obtaining a waiver of the default, all amounts owing under the
defaulted agreement could be required to be immediately due and payable. In this event, we would require
sufficient cash to meet the repayment obligation or require additional debt or equity financing, which may
not be available. If unable to repay the debt, we would be required to liquidate certain assets in order to
obtain the necessary funds or be subject to the rnisk of having our aircraft repossessed, which could
adversely impact our business.

REGULATORY ENVIRONMENT
Domestic

In Canada, civil air transportation, including the cstablishment of aviation policy, the establishment of
maintenance and opcrations standards, safety, and the provision of ground and airways infrastructure,
rests wholly within federal government jurisdiction and is the responsibility of the Minister of Transport
(the "Minister"). The Aeronautics Act (Canada) gives the Minister the authority to certify air carriers as
being adequately equipped and capable of conducting a safc operation. Pursuant to the deronautics Act
(Canada), we obtained our air operator certificate, which allows us to operate a commercial air scrvice
with Bocing 737 jet aircraft.

The Canada Transportation Act (the "Acs") is the legislation pursuant to which the Canada Transportation
Agency regulates transportation industries in Canada, including the air transport industry. The Acr
requires that holders of licenses be "Canadian,” controlled in fact by Canadians, and that at lcast 75 per
cent of their voting interests be owned and controlled by "Canadians” (as defined in the Acr). We have
amended our Articles by the creation of Variable Voting Shares for any person owning or controlling
commen equity who is not Canadian, limiting their aggregate voting interests to 25 per cent of all voting
intercsts at any time. See “Capital Structure™ above.

Commencing in January 1988, the deregulation of the airline industry in Canada allowed carriers to
establish airfares and conditions of carriage without government regulation, making it easier for new
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airlines to start up and for existing ones to expand. The principle of free market entry under the Act 1s
presently limited only by the requirements that the carrier be "Canadian,” as defined in the Act, that it
hold an operating certificate and that it is suitably insurcd.

Competition Act

Legislative Framework

Competition in the Canadian airline industry is regulated under the Competition Act, a federal statute
designed to maintain and encourage competition in Canada in order to promote efficiency and
adaptability of the Canadian economy and to provide consumecrs with competitive prices and product
choices. In addition to the general criminal and civil provisions of the Competition Act, the Competition
Act contains several airline specific provisions. These provisions were enacted to address concerns
arising out of the dominance of Air Canada in the airline industry following Air Canada's acquisition of
Canadian Airlines in January of 2000.

Specifically, on July 5, 2000, the abuse of dominance provisions of the Competition Act (Section 78) were
amended to include forms of potentially anti-competitive acts specific to the industry, including "acts or
conducts of a person operating a domestic service” as are set out in the regulations. The Regulations
Respecting Anti-Competitive Acts of Persons Operating a Domestic Service (the "Regulations") werce
subscquently cnacted in August 2000 to include a number of additional potentially anti-competitive acts
largely designed to capture anti-competitive, strategic pricing, and output behaviours, including, among
others, operating or increasing capacity on a routc or routes at fares that do not cover the avoidable cost of
providing the service, and altering its schedules, networks, or infrastructure for the purposc of disciplining
or climinating a competitor or impeding or preventing a competilor's entry into, or expansion in, a market.
Scction 104.1 of the Competition Act was also cnacted in July of 2000 to enable the Commissioner of
Competition (the "Commissioner™) to issue a temporary order prohibiting a person from operating a
domestic service when parties have met certain preconditions related to concerns about anti-competitive
activity. These provisions, however, were struck down by the Quebec Court of Appeal in 2003 on the
basis that they conflict with right to duc process of law under the Canadian Bill of Rights. An appeal by
the Government of Canada to the Supreme Court of Canada was in March of 2003 but was subscquently
withdrawn on June 3, 2004.

Section 79 of the Competition Act was amended in June of 2002 to allow the Competition Tribunal to
asscss a monctary penalty against a person operating a domestic service engaged in anti-competitive
conduct contrary to Section 79 of up to $15 million (an "Airlinc AMP"}.

The Regulations were tested in a proceeding between the Commissioner and Air Canada that commenced
in March of 2001 that arose as a result of investigations into Air Canada's response to Westlet's expansion
into castern Canada (the "Air Canada (Westiet) Case") The application alleged that Air Canada was
engaged in anti-competitive practices, namely operating or adding capacity at fares that did not cover the
avoidable cost of providing the service. The Competition Tribunal decided to hear the case in two parts,
the first to deal with the approach to and mcaning of "avoidable costs”, and the second to deal with
whether Air Canada abused its dominant position. The reasons for the decision of the Competition
Tribunal on the first part were released in July 2003. As a result of the aftermath of the cvents of
September 11, 2001 and in light of Air Canada filing for protection under the Company Creditors
Arrangement Act in April 2003, among other events, the Compcetition Tribunal stayed its decision on the
first part and in October of 2004, the proccedings were discontinued in their entirety.

The Competition Bureau clarified its approach to the enforcement of the Competition Act in the airline
industry in any open letter to major Canadian airlines in September of 2004 indicating the policy it would
follow when enforcing the abuse of dominance and predatory pricing provisions of the Comperition Act.
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In an open-letter, the Competition Burcau endorsed the approach to, and definition of "avoidable costs”
established by the Compectition Tribunal in the Air Canada (Westlet) case.

The Minister of Industry introduced Bill C-19 to the Canadian Parliament in November 2004, This Bill
contained amendments to repeal the airline specific provisions. It was the Commissioner's view that the
general provisions of the Competition Act were sufficient to deal with competition in the airline industry.
This Bill received first reading on November 2, 2004 and was referred for review on November 16, 2004.
On dissolution of Parliament in December 2005, Bill C-19 died and the status of those amendments is
now uncertain under the new government of Canada.

The Security Charge and Canadian Security Authority

The Canadian Air Transporf Security Act was brought into force in Aprl 2002 and established the
Canadian Air Transport Sccurity Authority ("CATSA"). CATSA is mandated to take actions, cither
directly or through screening contractors, for the screening of persons accessing aircraft or restricted
airport arcas, including their carry-on possessions and baggage. CATSA is also responsible for such other
air transport security functions as the Minister might assign to it from time to time. In connection with
providing sccurity functions, CATSA is entitled to enter into agreements with RCMP for the provision of
services, including services on aircraft. Airport authorities are required to maintain, free of charge, such
space as CATSA may requre in the airport facility to conduct ils security operations. In addition,
extensive sccunity and screening measures for airlines and airports have been enacted and updated under
the Security Screening Order, Air Carrier Security Measures and Aerodrome Security Measures.

The Air Traveller’s Security Charge Act (the "Security Charge Aet") was brought into force in
March 2002. The Security Charge Act stipulates that issucrs of tickets arc obligated to collect. as agent
and trustee for the Government of Canada, a security charge (“Sccurity Charge™). When first enacted, the
Security Charge was $12.00 ($11.22 if GST was required to have been paid), for cach “"chargeable
enplancment," which included connecting flights between the point of origin and the point of destination,
to a maximum of $24.00 ($22.43 if GST was applicable) for round trips. We are required to file monthly
returns with respect to cach preceding month detailing prescribed information with respect to Security
Charge collections and to pay that amount to the government.

Government recognition of the effects of the Sccurity Charge has led to a reduction in the Sccurity
Charge since its inception. Effective April 1, 2004, the level of charge for air travel within Canada has
been reduced to $12 from $14 for round-trip travel and to $6 from $7 for one-way travel. The level of the
charge for transborder air travel was reduced to $10 from $12 and for other international air travel the rate
has been reduced to $20 from $24. The charge was again subsequently reduced effective March 1, 2005 to
$5.00 for one-way travel within Canada, to $8.50 for transborder air travel and to $17.00 for other
international travel.

Recent Developments

The Canadian Minister of Transport introduced Bill C-11, An Act to Amend the Canada Transportation
Act and Railway Safety Act and to make consequential amendments to other Acts”, on May 4, 2006. The
Bill has been approved by the House of Commons and is presently before the Senate. Bill C-11 addresscs
a number of matters which are important to Westlet in the air transportation scctor, including the
expansion of stated matters relating to national transportation policy Lo include items such as sccurity and
protection of the environment, the addition of sccurity programs to the list of purposes for which
transportation data can be collected by the Minister of Transport, the creation of a mediation process for
disputes concerning Federal transportation matters prior to adjudication beforc the CTA and the
replacement of the Office of the Air Travel Complaints Commissioner with provisions simply making
such function part of the everyday operations of the CTA. Bill C-11 also proposes to require the
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prominent display of tariffs on domestic service, including the publication on an air carricr's internet site
of the terms of conditions of carriage required to be in a tariff. The Bill also provides for broad regulation
making authority to require air carricrs to expand disclosure in advertising to include ail elements of
costs, including third party charges collected by the air carrier.

Bill C-20 was introduced by the Minister of Transport to the House of Commens on Junc 15, 2005 and is
titled, "An Act respecting airports, airport authorities and other airport operators and amending the
Transportation Appeal Tribunal of Canada Act”. The proposed Canada Airports Act is intended to
continue airport authoritics as non-share capital, not-for-profit corporations under the Act with the
establishment of an approprialc corporate and governance framework for the circumstances and structure
of airport authorities. Bill C-20 positions thc Government of Canada as the responsible party for
protecting the public interest as it relates to airports, including overseeing administration of the proposcd
Act, the ability to audit the business and affairs of airports and to give direction and create regulations
regarding issues such as cquitable access for airlines and slot allocation. Bill C-20 is also intended to
enhance the transparency, disclosure and accountability of airport operators by providing public access to
key airport documents, inciuding master plans, annual reports, financial stalements, environmental
management plans and periodic performance reviews. The Bill also sets out principals to guide the
cstablishment of acronautical and passenger fees and fee setting processes, including consultation of
affected partics, in the changing of fee at the country's largest airports.

WestJet is not in a position 1o determine, if or when Bill C-11 or Bill C-20 will become law, or whether
there will be material changes to the proposed legislation as it now stands before the Parliament of
Canada.

International and Transborder

International scheduled air services are regulated by the governments involved. International route rights
are obtained through bilateral negotiations between Canada and forcign countries. Bilateral agreements
provide for the rights which may be exercised over an agreed routing and the conditions under which the
airlines may operate, including, among others, the number of atrlines which may operate, the capacity
and/or flight frequencies that may be provided, and the controls over tariffs to be charged. Many bilateral
agreements to which Canada is a party provide for the designation of more than onc Canadian airlinc,
while some provide for the designation of only onc Canadian airline. The Transport Minister has the
authority to designate which carricrs have the right to serve scheduled international routes, except routes
to the U.S., which are governed by the Air Transportation Agreement between Canada and the U.S.
originally signed in February 1995 (the “Opcn Skics Agrecment™).

Under the Open Skies Agreement, the Canadian government may designate as many carriers as it wishes
to service U.S. destinations. Prior to commencing service, a designated atrline must make an application
to U.S. government authoritics, and the appropriate authorizations and permissions arc required to be
granted by such authoritics with minimal procedural delay provided Canadian ownership requirements,
qualifications under laws normally applicable to international air transportation, and safety and aviation
sccurity requirciments under the Open Skics Agreement, arc mct by the airline. No restrictions as to
capacity, frequency, or aircraft size are imposed under the Open Skies Agreement. Designated airlines
may, at their option, combine two or more points in the U.S. in a through servicc. However, the ability of
foreign domiciled airlines to carry new passengers between domestic points in another country is
prohibited in Canada and the U.S.

On November 11, 2005, as a result of negotiations between Canada and U.S. officials, the federal
government announced amendments to thc Open Skies Agreement. While the 1995 Open Skics
Agreement created an open system for air services between the two countries, certain restrictions
remained in place. The most significant amendment from the November negotiations involves the
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introduction of "fifth freedom rights,” which refer to the right of an air carricr to carry passenger traffic
from one country to and from any third country on any flight originating, traversing or cnding in its home
country. The ability for a Canadian carrier to take advantage of this right requires cquivalent rights from
the third country. The amendments agreed to in the November negotiations came into force on March 12,
2007. As we continue to look at ncw destinations, and examine potential strategic alliances with other
carriers, this new Agreement will provide us with expanded marketing opportunitics to broaden our
network and expand our rcach.

Privacy

Westlet 1s subject to privacy laws regarding the collection, use, disclosure and protection of personal
mformation, including passenger and employee personal information, including Canada's federal private
sector privacy legislation, the Personal Information Protection and Electronic Documents Act
("PIPEDA™}, which govems the collection, usc and disclosurc of personal information in the course of
commcrcial activitics by a federally regulated business. We have taken steps to develop and maintain a
privacy policy and related practices which arc designed to meet or exceed the requirements of applicable
privacy legislation, primarily focused on PIPEDA, but considering other laws as well. We believe that our
privacy policy and practices comply with applicable laws.

TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR

CIBC Mellon Trust Company, at its principal offices in Calgary, Alberta and Toronto, Ontario, is transfer
agent and registrar for our Common Voting Shares and Variable Voting Sharcs.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Additional information rclating to WestJet may be found on SEDAR at www.scdar.com. As well,
additional information including restrictions on voting securities, cxccutive remuneration and
indebtedness, principal holders of sccurities of Westlet, securities authorized for issuance under equity
compensation plans and interests of insiders in material transactions, as applicable, is contained in our
information circular with respect to the annual and special mecting of sharcholders to be held on May 1,
2007. Additional financial information and discussion of the affairs of Westlet is provided in the financial
statements and management's discussion and analysis for the fiscal pertod ended December 31, 2006,
being the most recently completed annual fiscal period of Westlet, which are included in our annual
report for the period ended December 31, 2006, which information is incorporated hercin by reference. A
copy of such documents may be obtained upon request from the Secretary of Westlet.

On February 26, 2007, Westlet filed a notice with the Toronto Stock Exchange (the "TSX") to make a
nommal course issucr bid to purchase outstanding shares on the open market. As approved by the TSX,
WestJet is authorized to purchase up to 2,000,000 shares (representing approximately 1.5% of its
currently issued and outstanding shares) during the period of February 28, 2007 to February 27, 2008, or
until such earlier titne as the bid is complcted or terminated at the option of WestJet. Any shares WestJet
purchases under this bid will be purchased on the open market through the facilitics of the TSX at the
prevailing market price at the time of the transaction. Shares acquired under the bid will be cancelled.
Westlet believes that, from time to time, the market price of its shares may not reflect their underlying
value. At such timces, the purchasc of shares for cancellation will be advantageous to sharcholders by
increasing the valuc of shares remaining. The purchase of shares will also offset the dilutive affect of the
issuance of sharcs pursuant to the exercisc of stock options.

We will also provide to any person upon request to the Seccretary of Westlet, 5055 - 11 Street NLE.,
Calgary, Alberta T2E 8N4 one copy of:
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) Our Annual Information Form, together with one copy of any document, or the pertinent pages of
any document, incorporated by reference in the Annual Information Form;
(1) Our comparative financial statements for our most recently completed financial year togcther
with the accompanying report of the auditors and one copy of any of our interim financial
statements subsequent to the financial statements for our most recently completed financial year;

(11D Onec copy of our information circular in respect to our most recent annual meeting;

(IV)  Onec copy of any other documents that are incorporated by reference into a preliminary short form
prospectus or a short form prospectus; and

(V) One copy of our Notice of Intention to make a Normal Course Issuer Bid

Except when the sccuritics of Westlet are in the course of distribution pursuant to a preliminary short
form prospectus or short form prospectus, we may require the payment of a rcasonable charge if the
request is made by a person who is not a security holder of WestJet.
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® Trademarks of AIR MILES International Trading B.V. Used under license by Loyalty Management
Group Canada Inc., WestJet and Bank of Montreal.

®+ Registered trade-marks of Bank of Montreal. Patent pending. ®* Bank of Montreal is a licensed user
of the registered trademark and design of MasterCard International Inc.




APPENDIX “A”
AUDIT COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

CHARTER

R PURPOSE

The primary function of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board of Directers in fulfilling its oversight
responsibilitics by supervising the quality and integrity of the Corporation's financial reporting to
sharcholders, governmental bodics or the public; the Corporation's systems of internal controls regarding
finance, accounting and legal compliance that management and the Board have cstablished; the
independent auditors' qualifications and independence; and the Corporation's auditing, accounting and
financial reporting processes generally, Consistent with this function, the Audit Committee should
encourage continuous improvement of, and should foster adherence to, the Corporation’s policies,
procedurcs and practices at all levels. The Audit Committee's primary duties and responsibilities are to:

(a) Serve as an independent and objective party to monitor the Corporation's financial
reporting process and internal control system,

(b) Review and appraisc the audit cfforts of the Corporation's independent auditors and
internal auditing department.

(c) Providc an open avenue of communication among the independent auditors, financial
and scnior management, the internal auditing department, and the Board of Directors (e.g.
through Westlet's Confidential and Anonymous Reporting Hotline).

(d) Report regularly to the Board of Dircctors on significant results of the foregoing
activitics.

The Audit Committee will primarily fulfill these responsibilitics by carrying out the activities enumerated
in Section IV of this Charter.

I1. COMPOSITION

The Audit Commuttee shall be comprised of three or more directors as determined by the Board, each of
whom shall be independent directors, as defined by Multilateral Instrument 52-110 — Audit Committees
("MI 52-110"}, and frec from any relationship that, in the opinion of the Board, would interfere with the
exercise of his or her independent judgment as a member of the Committee.

All members of the Committce shall be financially lhiterate as defined by MI 52-110. Committee
members are encouraged by the Board to enhance their familiarity with finance and accounting by
participating in educational programs conducted by the Corporation or outside consultants.

The members of the Committee shall be clected by the Board at the annual orgamzational meeting of the
Board or until their successors shall be duly clected and qualified. Unless a Chair is elected by the full
Board, the members of the Committee may designate a Chair by majority vote of the full Committee
membership.

1. MEETINGS

The Commuttee shall meet at least four times annually, or more frequently as circumstances dictate. As part
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of its rolc to foster open communication, the Committee should mect at lcast quarterly with management,
the independent auditors and the intemal auditor in separate exccutive scssions, without management
present in the case of the latter two, to discuss any matters that thc Committee or cach of these groups
believe should be discussed privately. In addition, the Committec should meet with the independent
auditors and management quarterly to review the Corporation's financials consistent with 1V. 2 below.

1v.

RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES

To fulfill its responsibilitics and duties, the Audit Committee shall:

Documents/Reports

I.

Review this Charter at least once every two (2) years and present for approval any changes to
the Board of Dircctors.

Review with management and the independent auditors the annual and quarterly financial
statements and notes and recommend to the Board of Directors the approval of the financial
statcments and notes and subsequent carning release to the public.

Review management's discussion and analysis of financial results and recommend to the Board
of Directors their approval and public release.

Review regular internal reports to management preparcd by the internal audit department and
management’s response. Ensurc executive suminaries of internal audit reports arc provided to
Board of Directors.

Review significant audit findings during the year, including the status of previous audit
rccommendations for both internal and external audits.

Review regular summary reports of directors’ and officers' expense account claims at least
annually. Establish and review approval policies for cxpense reports and as required request
audits of expense claims and policics for expense approval and reimbursements. The chairman
of the Audit Committee or of the Compensation Committee is to approve cxpense reports of the
president and CEO; and the CEQ is to approve those of the directors and officers.

Require the independent auditors to provide a report describing (i) alternative trcatment of
financial information within generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) discussed with
management, if any, and (i1} other malterial written communications between the independent
auditors and management, if any, and review such report(s).

Review with management and the independent auditors any correspondence with regulators or
government agencics and any employee complaints or public issues which raisc material issucs
regarding the Corporation's financial statements or accounting policies, if any.

Review  with management and  independent auditors any  off-balance sheet financing
mechanisms, transactions and obligations, 1f any.
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Review any matenial related party transactions.

Discuss guidelines and policies with respect to risk management, discuss major financial risk
exposures and steps that management has taken to monitor and control such risks.

Independent Auditors

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

7.

18.

19.

20.

Recommend to the Board of Directors the selection of the independent auditors, who shall report
directly to the Audit Committec. The Committee will consider the independence and
effectiveness of the independent auditors, and approve the fees and other compensation,
including fees for pre-approved non-audit scrvices, to be paid to the independent auditors.

The Audit Committee will formally pre-approve any fecs for non-audit services.

Oversee the work of the independent auditors, including the resolution of disagreements
between management and the independent auditors regarding financial reporting.

On at least an annual basis, (1) review the independent auditors’ internal quality-control
procedures, (ii) review any matcrial issucs raised by the most recent internal quality-control
review or other review, (iit) ensure that the independent auditors do not provide non-audit
services that would disqualify them as independent under applicable law, (iv) review experience
and qualifications of senior members of the independent audit team, and (v} review and discuss
all significant relationships between the auditors and the Corporation to cnsure the continuing
independence and objectivity of the independent auditors.

Annually review the performance of the independent auditors and approve any proposed
discharge of the indcpendent auditors when circumstances warrant,

Regularly consult with the independent auditors without the presence of management about
internal controls and the fullness, accuracy and quality of the organization's financial statements
and the appropriatencss of the accounting principles uscd. Consider the ability and strength of
accounting and internal control systems, the effectivencss of the audit and the competence of
finance personnel.

Review and approve, in consultation with finance management and the scnior internal auditor,
the audit scope, plan and services of the internal audit department.

Review and approve, in consultation with finance management and the independent auditors, the
audit scopc, plan and services of the independent auditors.

Review and approve the Corporation’s hiring policies regarding cmployees and former employces
of the Corporation's present and former independent auditors,

Financial Reporting Processes

21

In consultation with the independent auditors and the intemal auditors, review the integrity of
the organization's financial reporting processes, both internal and external, and identify any
significant or material weaknesses in the design or operation of such processes. Report such
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23.

24.

25.

APPENDIX “A”
AUDIT COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
CHARTER
weaknesses to the Board, if appropriate.

Consider the independent auditors' judgments about the quality, consistency and appropriateness
of the Corporation's accounting principles as applicd in its financial reporting and the
Corporation's financial reporting and accounting estimalcs.

Review with management, the CFO, the internal audit department and the independent auditors
mcthods used to establish and monitor the Corporation's policies with respect to unethical or
illegal activities by employees that may have a material cffect on financial statements.

Review with management, the internal audit department and the independent auditors
recommendations that independent auditors may have, cspecially thosc characterized as
"material" or "serious". Report such recommendations to the Board, if appropriate.

Consider and recommend to the Board, if appropriate, major changes to the Corporation's
auditing and accounting principles and practices as recommended by the independent auditors,
managcment or the internal audit department.

Process Improvement

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

3.

32

33

Following completion of the annual andit, review separately with the independent auditors and
internal auditors any significant difficulties encountered during the course of the audit, including
any restrictions on the scope of work or access to required information.

Review any changes to the audit plan and significant disagrcements among management and the
independent auditors in connection with the preparation of the financial statements and report to
the Board of Directors any significant disagreements, whether resolved or unresolved.

Review with the independent auditors, the internal avditors and management the extent to which
changes to, or improvements in, accounting principles and practices previously approved by the
Audit Committee have been implemented.

Review and establish procedures for the (i) receipt, retention, and treatment of complaints
regarding accounting or financial reporting controls, (i) confidential, anonymous submission of
concerns regarding questionable accounting or auditing matters (e.g. Westlet's Confidential and
Anonymous Reporting Hotline), and (i11) addressing material breaches of securities law,
fiduciary duties, or similar material violation.

Conduct and authorize investigations into any matters within the Committee's scope of
responsibilities.

Ensure that adequate policies and procedures are in place to identify, mitigate, monitor and
report all business risks on an ongoing, proactive basis.

Review the appointment, performance, replacement and termination, if applicable, of the senior
internal auditor.

On at least an annual basis, review with the Company's counsel, any legal matters that could
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have a significant impact on the organization's financial statements, the company's compliance

with applicable laws and regulations, and inquiries received from regulators or government
agencies.

34. Perform any other activities consistent with this Charter, the Corporation's by-laws and
goveming law, as the Committee or the Board deems necessary or appropriate.

V. AUTHORITY

The Committce will have the authority to:

(a) Engage independent counsel and other advisors as necessary.
(b} Set and pay the compensation for any advisors employed.
(c) Communicate directly with the internal and external auditors.
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WestJet announces normal course issuer bid; ©/75 e

CALGARY, ALBERTA. February 26, 2007. Westlet Airlines Ltd. (Westlet) is pleased to
announce that the Toronto Stock Exchange (TSX) has accepted its notice to make a normat
course issuer bid to purchase outstanding shares on the open market, in accordance with the
rules of the TSX.

As approved by the TSX, Westlet is now authorized to purchase up to 2,000,000 common
voting shares or variable voting shares (collectively, shares), representing approximately 1.5 per
cent of the airline’s currently issued and outstanding shares. As of today’s date, there are
129,815,161 shares outstanding, 16,911,389 shares of which are held by insiders.

Westlet is authorized to make purchases during the period of February 28, 2007 to
February 27, 2008, or until such earlier time as the bid is completed or terminated at the option
of Westlet. Any shares Westlet purchases under this bid will be purchased on the open market
through the facilities of the TSX at the prevailing market price at the time of the transaction.
Shares acquired under the bid will be cancelled. ‘

Westlet believes that, from time to time, the market price of its shares may not reflect their
underlying value. At such times, the purchase of shares for cancellation will be advantageous to
shareholders by increasing the value of shares remaining. The purchase of shares will also
offset the dilutive affect of the issuance of shares pursuant to the exercise of stock options.

Wesblet is Canada's leading low-fare airline offering scheduled service throughout its 35-city
North American and Caribbean network. Named Canada's most admired corporate culture in
2006, Westlet pioneered low-cost high-value flying in Canada. With increased legroom and
leather seats on its modern fleet of Boeing Next-Generation 737 aircraft, and live seatback
television provided by Bell ExpressVu on the majority of its fleet, Westlet strives to be the
number one choice for travellers.

This discussion may contain forward-looking statements and are subject to, and may be affected by, numerous risks
and uncertainties, some of which are beyond Westlet's control. Westlet's results may differ materially from those
expressed in or implied by such statements, Factors that could cause or contribute to these differences include, but
are not limited to: changes in government policy, exchange rates, interest rates, disruption of supplies, volatility of
fuel prices, terrorism, general economic conditions, the competitive environment and other factors described in
Westlet's public reports and filings. Forward-looking statements are subject to change and Westlet does not
undertake to update, correct or revise any forward-looking information as a result of any new information, future
events or otherwise.
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Westlet Contacts:

Gillian Bentley, Media Relations
(403) 444-2615
gbentley@westiet.com

April Crane, Investor Communications
(403) 444-2254

acrane@westjet.com

Website: westjet.com
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Westlet’s fleet expanding to 85 aircraft in 2009
WestJet finalizes term sheet for two additional aircraft

CALGARY, Alberta. February 28, 2007. Westlet today announced that it has finalized a term
sheet with Singapore Aircraft Leasing Enterprise (SALE) for two Boeing Next-Generation 737
aircraft to be delivered in 2009. Details of the agreement incdude cne 700-series and one 800-
series aircraft scheduled for delivery in November and December 2009,

“As Westlet builds on its partnership with SALE we are thrilled to add two more leased aircraft
to our 2009 growth plans,” said Sean Durfy, President Westlet. “As demonstrated by our 2006
financial results, our ability to continuously increase capacity, maintain favourable load factors
and produce profitable results gives us confidence in our continued momentum as we grow our
fleet to 85 aircraft in 2009.”

Westlet currently has a registered fleet of 64 aircraft, with six additional aircraft committed for
delivery in the remainder of 2007, six scheduled for delivery in 2008 and nine committed for
delivery in 2009. By the end of 2009, Westlet will have a registered fleet of 85 aircraft.

Westlet is Canada's leading low-fare airline offering scheduled service throughout its 35-city
North American and Caribbean network. Named Canada's most admired corporate culture in
2006, Westlet pioneered low-cost high-value flying in Canada. With increased legroom and
leather seats on its modermn fleet of Boeing Next-Generation 737 aircraft, and live seatback
television provided by Bell ExpressVu on the majority of its fleet, Westlet strives to be the
number one choice for travellers.
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Contact:

Gillian Bentley, Westlet Media Relations
Telephone: (403) 444-2615

Website: www.westjet.com
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WestJlet reports record February load factor of 82.3 per cent: -
Airline’s monthly traffic indicators showing continued strength

CALGARY, Alberta. March 6, 2007. Westlet today announced its best February traffic results
to date, reporting a load factor of 82.3 per cent on a capacity of 1.1 billion available seat miles
(ASM).

Sean Durfy, Westlet’s President commented, “2007 is off to a great start with 20 per cent year-
to-date ASM growth and record load factors for January and February. Our seasonal
deployment of aircraft to Westlet sun spots, our growing network connectivity and our
Wesbletters’ continued focus on delivering exceptional guest service are key factors in our
terrific performance.”

February 2007 Traffic Results

February 2007 February 2006 Per cent change
Load Factor 82.3% 80.8% 1.5 pts.
Available Seat Miles {ASM) 1,080.5 million 899.9 million 20
Revenue Passenger Miles (RPM) | 888.7 million 727.3 million 22

Year-to-date 2007 | Year-to-date 2006 | Per cent change

Load Factor 78.9% 78.0% 0.9 pts.
Available Seat Miles (ASM) 2,253.4 million 1,882.5 million 20
Revenue Passenger Miles (RPM) | 1,778.7 million 1,465.1 million 21

“This month’s load factor combined with a healthy RASM is particufarly satisfying in light of
February’s 20 per cent increase in ASMs. It is shaping up to be great first quarter,” said Sean

Durfy.

This discussion may contain forward-looking statements and are subject to, and may be affected by, numerous risks
and uncertainties, some of which are beyond Westlet's control. Westlet’s results may differ materiaily from those
expressed in or implied by such statements. Factors that could cause or contribute to these differences include, but
are not limited to: changes in government palicy, exchange rates, interest rates, disruption of supplies, volatility of
fuel prices, terrorism, general economic conditions, the competitive environment and other factors described in
Westlet's public reports and filings. Forward-looking statements are subject to change and Westlet does not
undertake to update, correct or revise any forward-looking information as a result of any new information, future
events or otherwise.
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For additional information, please contact:
Gillian Bentley, Media Relations

Telephone: (403) 444-2615
E-mail: gbentley@westjet.com

April Crane, Investor Communications
Telephone: (403) 444-2254
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NATIONAL INSTRUMENT 62-103 iy g
REPORT FILED BY AN ELIGIBLE INSTITUTIONAL INVESTOR UNDER.PART4} | L P
FOR END OF:
o IR T N [
February 2007

o O S R
This is an increase report of Capital Research and Management Company (“CRMC™), a Delaware ¢orporation
pursuant to the above-mentioned part of the above-mentioned National Instrument in respect of CRMC’s

acquisition of Commeon Shares of WestJet Airline Ltd..
(a) Name and address of the eligible institutional investor:

Capital Research and Management Company
333 South Hope Street
Los Angeles, CA 90071-1447

(b) Net increase in the number or principal amount of securities, and in the eligible institutional investor's
securityholding percentage in the class of securities, since the last report filed by the eligible institutional
investor under Part 4 or the early warning requirements:

N/A
{c) Designation and number or principal amount of securities and the eligible institutional investor's
securityholding percentage in the class of securities at the end of the month for which the report is made:

0 Common Shares (0.00%)

(d) Designation and number or principal amount of securities and the percentage of outstanding securities
referred to in paragraph (c) over which

i) the eligible institutional investor, either alone or together with any joint actors. has ownership and
controf:

0 Commeon Shares ((.00%)

i) the eligible institutional investor, either alone or together with any joint actors, has ownership but
control is held by other entities other than the eligible institutional investor or any joint actor:
N/A

iil) the eligible institutional investor, either alone or together with any joint actors, has exclusive or

shared control but does not have ownership:
nfa
(c) The purpose of the eligible institutional investor and any joint actors in acquiring or disposing of
ownership of. or control over, the securities, including any future intention to acquire ownership of, or

control over, additional securities of the reporting issuer:

The abovementioned shares were purchased and are held solely for investiment purposes in the
ordinary course of business and not with the purpose or effect of changing or influencing control.

N The general nature and the material terms of any agreement, other than lending arrangements, with
respect to securities of the reporting issuer entered into by the eligible institutional investor, or any joint




actor, and the issuer of the securities or any other entity in connection with any transaction or occurrence
resulting in the change in ownership or control giving rise to the report, including agreements with respect
to the acquisition, holding. disposition or voting of any of the securities:

n/a

() The names of any joint actors in connection with the disclosure required by Appendix G of Naticnal
Instrument 62-103:

n/a
(h) If applicable, a description of any change in any material fact set out in a previous report by the ¢ligible
institutional investor under the early warning requirements or Part 4 of National Instrument 62-103 in
respect of the reporting issuer's securities:

nfa

)] A statement that the eligible institutional investor is eligible to file reports under Part 4 in respect of the
reporting issuer:

CRMC is an eligible institutional investor eligible to file reports under Part 4 of National Instrument 62-103.
Neither CRMC nor any of its managed accounts presently intend to:

(a) make a formal take-over bid for any securities of the Reporting Issuer;

(b) propose a transaction that would constitute a take-over bid in reliance on an exemption in the
Securities Act (Ontario); or

(c) propose & reorganization, amalgamation, merger, arrangement or similar business combination

with the Reporting Issuer that if completed would reasonably be expected to result in CRMC or
its managed accounts, either alone or together with any joint actors, possessing effective control
over the Reporting Issuer or a successor to all or part of the business of the Reporting Issuer.

() Ageregation Relief:
i) tn preparing this report, we have relied on section(s) 5.1 and/or 5.2 of National Instrument 62-
103.
i) CRMC has disclosed ownership and control of the securities.
iii) Securities owned or controlled by other business units or investment funds have not been, or may
not have been, disclosed.

Signature

“Liliane Corzo”

Liliane Corzo, Counsel

Please contact VIVIEN TAN at (213) 615-0469
Capital Research and Management Company
Eligible Institutional [nvestor
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Amended Canadian Filing

The attached filing has been amended and labeled as Corrected. Page 1 Part 3 has been
amended to reflect the proper period for which the report is filed.
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Corrected March 12, 2007

EARLY WARNING REPORT UNDER
THE ALTERNATIVE MONTHLY REPORTING SYSTEM
OF NATIONAL INSTRUMENT 62-103

1. Name and address of the eligible institutional investor:

Fidelity Management & Research Company (“FMR Co.”)
82 Devonshire Street
Boston, MA, 02109

Pyramis Global Advisors, LLC (“PGALLC™)
53 State Street
Boston, MA, 02109

FMR Co., PGALLC, and certain other relevant affiliates and associates are
sometimes hercinafter collectively referred to as “Fidelity.”

2. Name of the reporting issuer:
Westjet Airlines Ltd.

3. Period for which the report is filed:
Period ended January, 2007.

4. Net increase or decrease in the number or principal amount of securities, and in
the eligible institutional investor’s security holding percentage in the class of
securities, sinice the last report filed by the eligible institutional investor under
the early warning requirements:

Since Fidelity’s last report filed on January 10, 2007, Fidelity’s holdings have
decreased by 6,696,200 shares. This represents a net decrease of 42.51% of the
shares held by Fidelity.

5. Designation and number or principal amount of secarities and the eligible
institutional investor’s security holding percentage in the class of securities at the
end of the month for whicl the report is made:

Fidelity now holds 9,054,900 Common Shares representing approximately
7.35% of the outstanding shares of that class.

6. Designation and number or principal amount of securities and the percentage of
outstanding securities of the class of securities referred to above over which:
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(i) the eligible institutional investor, eithher alone or together with any joint actors,
have ownership and control:

N/A.

(ii) the eligible institutional investor, either alone or together with any joint
actors, have ownership but control is held by other entities other than the eligible
institutional investor or any joint actor:

N/A.

(iii) the eligible institutional investor, either alone or together with any joint
actors, have exclusive or shared control but does not have ownership:

9,054,900 Common Shares representing approximately 7.35% of the outstanding
shares of that class.

7. Purpose of the eligible institutional investor and any joint actors in acquiring or
disposing of ownership of, or controel over, the securities, including any future
intention to acquire ownership of, or control over, additional securities of the
reporting issucr:

The Common Shares of Westjet Airlines Ltd. were disposed of in the ordinary
course of business, for investment purposes only and not with the purpose of
exercising control or direction over Westjet Airlines Ltd. Fidelity may from time
to time, on behalf of funds or accounts it manages, acquire additional Common
Shares, dispose of some or all of the Common Shares they hold or continue to
hold Common Shares.

8. General nature and the material terms of any agreement, other than lending
arrangements, with respect to securities of the reporting issuer entered into by
the eligible institutional investor, or any joint actor, and the issuer of the
securities or any other entity in connection with any transaction or eccurrence
resulting in the change in ownership or control giving rise to the report,
including agreements with respect to the acquisition, holding, disposition or
voting of any of the securities:

N/A.

9. Names of any joint actors in connection with the disclosure required by
Appendix G of Nutional Instrument 62-103:
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|

|
10.
11.
12.

|

|

N/A.

If applicable, a description of any change in any material fact set out in a
previous report by the eligible institutional investor under the early warning
requirements:

N/A.

Eligibility to file reports under the alternative monthly reporting system:

Fidelity is eligible to file this report under the alternative monthly repoiting
system of National Instrument 62-103.

Declaration:

The filing of this report is not an admission that any entity named in this report
owns or controls any securities or is a joint actor with another named entity.

DATED February 12, 2007
By: /s/"Fric D. Roiter”

Name: Eric D. Roiter
Title: Senior V.P. & General Counsel -~ FMR Co.

By: /s/"Mike Howard”

Name: Mike Howard
Title: Senior V.P. & Chief Financiat Officer - PGALLC
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FORM 13-502F1 BN
CLASS 1 REPORTING ISSUERS - PARTICIPATION FEE o

Reporting Issuer Name: WestJet Airlines Ltd. S SLATET apd

Fiscal year end date used to calculate capitalization: December 31, 2006

Market value of listed or quoted securities;
Total number of equity securities of a class or series outstanding at the end of
the issuer's most recent fiscal year end Common Voting Shares (i) 124,495951

Market value of listed or quoted securities:
Total number of equity securities of a class or series outstanding at the end of
the issuer’'s most recent fiscal year end Variable Voting Shares (ia) 5,152,737

Simple average of the closing price of that class or series as of the last trading

day of each month of the fiscal year (See clauses 2.11{a)(ii)(A) and (B) of the

Rule) Common Voting Shares (i) $11.60
Simple average of the closing price of that class or series as of the last trading

day of each month of the fiscal year (See clauses 2.11(a)(ii)(A) and (B) of the

Rule} Variable Voting Shares (iia} $11.59
Market value of class or series (X (i) = (A) $1,444,153,032
Market value of class or series (ia} X (iia} = _(B) $59,720,222

Market value of other securities:
(See paragraph 2.11 (b) of the Rule)

(Provide details of how value was determined) (C)

{Repeat for each class or series of securities) (D}
Capitalization

(Add market value of all classes and series of securities) (A} + (B) + (C) + (D) $1,503,873,254

Participation Fee
(From Appendix A of the Rule, select the participation fee beside the
capitalization calculated above) $29,700

New reporting issuer's reduced participation fee, if applicable
{See section 2.6 of the Rule)

Participation fee X Number of entire months remaining
in the issuer's fiscal year = N/A
12

Late Fee, if applicable
{As determined under secticn 2.5 of the Rule)
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MANAGEMENT'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS N B

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian C w7l
generally accepted accounting principles. When a choice between accounting methods exists, management has
chosen those it deems conservalive and appropriate in the circumstances. Financial staternents will necessarily
include certain amounts based on estimates and judgements. Management has determined such amounts on a
reasonable basis 10 ensure that the consclidated financial stalements are presented fairly in all material respects.
Financial information contained in the annual report is consistent, where appropriate, with the information and
data contained in the consolidated financial statements. Allinformation in the annual report is the responsibility

of management.

Management has established systems of internal control, including disclosure controls and procedures which are
designed to provide reasonable assurance that financial and nen-financial infermation that is disclosed is timely,
complete, relevant and accurate. These systems of internal control also serve to safeguard the Corporation’'s
assets, The systems of internal control are monitored by management, and further supported by an internal audit

department whose functions include reviewing internal controls and their application.

The Board of Directors is responsible for the overall stewardship and governance of the Carporation, including
ensuring management fulfills its responsibility for financial reporting and internal control, and reviewing and
approving the consolidated financial statements. The Board carries out this responsibility principally through its

Augit Committee,

The Audit Cormmittee of the Board of Directors, comprised of non-managerment Directors, meets regularly with
management, the internal audilors and the exiernal auditors, to satisfy itsell that each is properly discharging its
responsibilities, and 1o review the censolidated financial statements and MD&A. The Audit Committee reports its
findings 1o the Board of Direclors prior 1o the approval of such statements for issuance 1o the shareholders. The Audit
Committee also recommends, for review by the Board of Directors and approval of shareholders, the reappaintment

of the external auditors. The internal and external auditers have full and free access to the Audit Committee.

The consolidated financial statemenis have been audited by KPMG LLP, the independent external auditors, in
accardance wilh generally accepted auditing standards on behalf of the shareholders. The auditors’ report outlines

the scope of their examination and sets forth their opinion.

@%—w—- | e

CLIVE J. BEDDCE JANICE PAGET DEREK PAYNE
Executiva Chairman Vice-President, Controfler Vice-President,
and Chief Executive Qfficer and Co-Chiel Financial Officer Finance and Corporate Services

and Co-Chief Financial Officer
Calgary, Alberta
February 12, 2007

2006 | WestJet Annuat Report 35




AUDITORS REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of WastJet Airlines Ltd. as at December 31, 2006 and 2005 and
the consolidated statements of earnings and retained earnings and cash flows lor the years then ended. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Corporation’s management. Dur responsibility is to express an

opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit alsc includes assessing the accounting principles used and

significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial slatement presentation.

In our apinion, these cansclidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Corporation as at December 31, 2006 and 2005 and the results ol its operations and its cash flows for the

years then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

KPm Grp

Chartered Accouniants
Calgary, Canada
February 12, 2007
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

WestJet Airlines Ltd.

Decermber 31, 2006 and 2605
[Stated in Thousands af Dellars]

2004 2005
Assets
Current assets:
Cash ard cash equivalents [note 9) $ 377517 $ 259,640
Accounts receivable 12,645 8,022
Income taxes recoverable 13,820 13,909
Assets held for sale [note 2) 13,157 -
Prepaid expenses and deposits (note 1lg}] 30,727 31,746
Inventory 8,200 6,259
456,066 319,576
Property and equipment [note 2] 2,158,746 1,803,497
Other assets inote 3) 111,15 90,019
$ 2,726,527 $ 2,213,092
Liabilities and Shareholders™ Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 121197 $ 100,052
Advance ticket sales 148,743 127,450
Non-refundable guest credits 40,508 32,814
Current portion of long-term debt [note 4} 153,720 114,115
Current portion of obligations under capital lease [note ) 356 2,466
464,484 376,897
Long-term debt [note 4] 1,291,136 1,044,719
Obligations under capital lease [note &) 1,483 1,650
Other liabilities [note 5i 14,114 16,982
Future income tax note 8] 149,283 102,651
1,920,500 1,942,93%
Shareholders’ equily:
Share capital (nate 7|bl) 431,248 429,413
Contributed surplus {note 7[g]) 58,658 39,093
Retained earnings 316,123 201,447
806,027 670,153
Commitments and contingencies [notes 6 and 10]
$ 2,7263527 $ 2,213,092

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

On behalf of the Board:

g@&r

Clive Beddoe, Director
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Wilmol Matthews, Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS AND RETAINED EARNINGS

WestJet Airlines Ltd.

Years ended December 31, 2004 and 2005
[Stated in Thousands of Dollars, Except Per Share Amounts]

2006 2005
Revenues:
Guest revenues $ 1558471 $ 1,207,075
Charter and other 201,400 179,379
Interest income 13.815 6,308
1,773,486 1,392,762
Expenses:
Aircraft fuel 425,506 354,065
Airport operations 252,310 219,144
Flight operations and navigational charges 229,821 183,463
Sales and marketing 154,736 124,154
Depreciation and amortization 111,442 106,624
General and administration 79.817 71,410
Aircralt leasing [note 11[E)] 71,432 85,647
Interest expense 70,196 55,496
Maintenance 59,975 71,397
Inflight 67,220 53,005
Guest services 31,739 27,322
1,574,197 7331927
Earnings from operations 199,494 40,835
Non-cperating income expensel:
Gain [loss) on fareign exchange 32 (2,729]
Gain [loss] on disposal of property and equipment 83¢ (98]
Non-recurring expenses [note 10]c)) {15,600} -
14,7291 (2.827)
Employee profit share [note 10(b} [20,284] {6,033
Earnings before income taxes 164,481 51,975
Income tax [expense] recovery [note 8):
Current [3.170) 7.367
Future [44,635) {35,341)
[49,805) 127.974]
Net earnings 114,674 24,00
Retained earnings, beginning of year 201,447 177,446
Retained earnings, end of year $ 314123 $ 201447
Earnings per share [note 71dl:
Basic $ 0.88 $ 019
Diluted 3 0.88 % 0.19

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

WestJet Airlines Lid.

Years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005
[Stated in Thousands of Dollars]

2006 2005
Cash provided by lused inl:
Operating activities:
Net earnings % 114,674 % 24,001
Items not involving cash:
Depreciation and amortization 111,442 106,624
Amortization of other liabilities 1868) (604)
Amartizaticn of hedge settlements 1,427 1,391
[Gain) loss on disposal of property and equipment (839) 98
Loss on disposal of aircraft parts (note 2] [1.233] [1.126)
Stock-based compensation expense 21,208 17,604
Issued frorn treasury stock e 17,705
Fulure income tax expense 46,635 35,341
Decrease in non-cash working capital [note #la}l 43,707 46,290
336,152 247324
Financing activities:
Increase in long-term debt 418,581 256,385
Repayment of long-term debt [132,559] 1100,487]
Increase in other liabitities - B.47%
Issuance of shares - 21,694
Share issuance costs {10] (215)
Increase in other assets (28,139) {14,350)
Decrease in obligations under capital lease {480) [5,845]
Increase in non-cash working capitat [1.071] (837
296,322 164,223
Investing activities:
Aircraft additions [438,906) (660,947)
Aircraft disposals 3,822 404,583
Other property and equipment additions [41,124) [64,969)
Other property and equipment disposals 1611 894
[474,597) [300.439]
Increase in cash 117.877 111,108
Cash, beginning of year 259,640 148,532
Cash, end of year $ 377517 % 259,640

Cash is defined as cash and cash equivalents. See note 9[b] for additional cash infarmation.
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

WestJet Airlines Ltd.

Years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005
{Tabular Amounts are Stated in Thousands of Dollars, Except Share and Per Share Datal

1

|40

Significant accounting paolicies:

(a] Basts of presentation:

b

(c

(d

le

These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of WestJet Airlines Lid. (the "Corporation”)
and its wholly owned subsidiaries, as well as the accounts of four special-purpose entities, which are
utilized to facilitate the financing of aircraft. The Cerporation has ne eguity ownership in the special-purpose
entities: however, the Cerporation is the primary beneficiary of the special-purpose entities’ operations. All
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
Canada requires management to make eslimates and assumplions, regarding significant items such as
amounts relating to depreciation and amortization, non-refundable guest credits, lease return conditions,
future income taxes, stock-based compensation expense, deferred sales and marketing costs, impairment
assessments of property and equipment, and the valuation of derivative financial instruments that affect
the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from
these estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents are comprised of cash and all investments that are highly liquid in nature and
have a maturity date of three months or less,

Revenue recognition:

Guest and charter revenue is recognized when air transportation is provided. Tickets sold but not yet used
are reported in the consolidated balance sheet as advance ticket sales.

Tﬁe Corporation earns revenue from package holiday sales. Revenue from the air content is recognized when
air transportation is provided. Revenue from the land content is deferred and recognized on completion of
the holiday. Revenue from the land content is generated from providing agency services equal ta the amount
paid by the guest for products and services less payment tc the travel supplier and are reported at the net

amounts received, without any associated cost of revenue.
Cargo reverue is recognized when air transportation services are performed under the cargo agreement.

The Corporation earns revenue under the tri-branded credit card agreement which is included in other
revenue. Net retail sales revenue is recegnized at the time the transaction occurs, Revenue related to
account activations is deferred and recognized when the Corporatian fulfills its obligations related te the
new activations.

MNon-refundable guest credits:

Where appropriate, the Carporation issues future travel credits related to guests for flight delays, missing
baggage and other inconveniences as a gesture of good faith. These credits are non-refundable and expire
one year from the date of issue. The Corporation records a liability based on the estimated incremental cost
of a one-way flight in the period the credit is issued. The utilization of guest credits is recorded as revenue
when the guest has flown or upon expiry.

Foreign currency:

Monetary assets and liabilities, denominated in foreign currencies, are translated into Canadian dollars at
rates of exchange in effect at the balance sheet date. Non-monetary assets and revenue and expense items
are translated at rates prevailing when they were acquired or incurred. Foreign exchange gains and losses
are included in earnings.
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1. Significant accounting policies [continued):

Ifl Inventory:

Fuel and supplies are valued at the lower cost, determined on a first-in-first-out basis, and reptacement
value, Aircraft expendables and consumables are expensed as acquired.

lg) Deferred costs:

Sales and marketing expenses attributed to advance ticket sales are deferred and expensed in the period the
related revenue is recognized. Included in prepaid expenses and deposits are $10,878,000 (2005 - $13,234,000)
of deferred costs.

=

Property and equipment:

Property and equipment are recorded at cost and depreciated to their estimated residual vatues. Aircrait
under capital lease are initially recorded at the present value of minimum lease payments at the inception
of the lease.

Asset Basis Rate
Aircraft net of estimated restdual value - Next-Generation Cycles Cycles flown
Live satellite television included in aircraft - Next-Generation Straight-line 10 years/lease term
Aircraft net of estimated residual value - 200-series Flight hours Hours flown
Ground property and eguipment Straight-line 510 25 years
Spare engines and parts net of estimated residusl value - Next-Generation Siraight-line 20 years
Spare engines and paris net of estimated residual value - 200-series Flight hours Fleet hours flown
Aireraft under capital lease Straight-line Term of lease
Other assets under capital lease Straight-line Term of lease
Buildings Straight-line 40 years
Leasehold improvements Straight-line Term of lease

Property and equipment is reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.

Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset
ta estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If the carrying ameunt
of an asset exceeds its estimated future cash flows, an impairment charge is recognized by the amount by
which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset.

lil Maintenance costs:

Maintenance and repairs, including major overhauls, are charged to maintenance expense as they are
incurred. Maintenance reserves related o certain aircraft leases are paid on a monthly basis over the term
of the lease.

Aircraft parts that are deemed to be beyond ecanomic repair are disposed of and the remaining net book
values of these parts are included in maintenance expense,

Recovery of costs associated with parts and labour covered under warranty are recognized as an ofiset to
mainienance expense.
{jl Capitalized cosls:

Costs associated with assels under development which have probable future economic benefit, which can be
clearly defined and measured and are costs incurred for the development of new products or technologies
are capitalized. These costs are not amortized until the assets are substantially complete and ready for its
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

WestJet Airlines Ltd.

Years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005
{Tabular Amounts arc Stated in Thousands of Collars, Except Share and Per Share Data)

1.

42

Significant accounting palicies [continued):

tjl

Ik

11

Capitalized costs [continued):

intended use, at which time, they are amortized over five to 10 years. Interest attributable to funds used to
finance property and equipment is capitatized to the related asset. Legal and financing cests for the loan
facilities are capitalized to other assets on the balance sheet and amortized on a straight-line basis over
the term of the related toan.

Costs of new route development are expensed as incurred.

Future income tax:

The Carporation uses the liability method of accounting for future income taxes. Under this methed, current
income taxes are recognized for the estimated income taxes payable for the current year. Future income
tax assets and liabilities are recognized for temparary differences between the tax and accounting bases of
assets and liabilities, calculated using the currently enacted or substantively enactad tax rates anticipated
to apply in the period that the 1emporary differences are expected to reverse.

Stock-based compensation plans:

The Corparation uses the fair value method for valuing stock options. Under this method, as new options are
granted, the fair value of these options will be expensed on a straight-line basis over the applicable vesting
period, with an offsetiing entry to contributed surplus. The fair value of each option grant is estimated
on the date of grant using the Biack-5cheles option pricing odel, Upon the exercise of stock opliens,
consideration received together with amounts previously recorded in contributed surplus is recorded as an
increase in share capital.

[m] Financial instruments:

In

lo

Derivative financia! instruments are utilized by the Corparation from time to time in the management of its
foreign currency, interest rate and fuel price exposures. The Corporation’s policy is not to utilize derivative
financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes.

The Carporation formally documents all relationships between hedging instruments and hedged items,
as well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. This
process includes linking all derivatives to specific assets and liabilities on the balance sheet or to specific
firm commitments ar anticipated transactions. The Corporation also formally assesses, both at the hedge's
inception and on an ongoing basis, whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly
effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items. in the event that a derivative
financial instrument is not designated for hedge accounting, dees nol qualify for hedge accounting or the
event that the hedge is ineffeclive, changes in the fair value of derivative financial insiruments are recorded
in non-operating income or expense.

Gains or lesses relating to derivatives that are designated as hedges are deferred in other assets andfor
other liabilities and recognized in the same period and in the same financial category as the corresponding
hedged transactions.

Fer share amounts:

Basic per share amounts are ¢alculated using the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the
year. Diluted per share amounts are calculated based on the treasury stock method, which assumes that the
total proceeds obtained on the exercise of options and the unamortized portion of stock based compensation
would be used to purchase shares at the average price during the period. The weighted average number of
shares outstanding is then adjusted by the net change.

Comparative figures:

Certain prior-period balances have been reclassified to conform to current period's presentation.
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2. Property and equipment:

Accumulated Net book

2004 Caost depreciation value
Aircraft - Next-Generation $ 2,086,301 $ 185,524 $ 1,900,775
Bround property and equipment 153,894 65,854 88,042
Spare engines and parts - Next-Generation 70,459 10,145 60,314
Buildings 40,028 4,825 35,203
Leasehold improvements 6,974 £,579 2,335
Other assels under capital lease 2,481 694 1,787
2,360,079 271,623 2,088,456

Deposits on aircraft 38.0M — 35,011
Assets under development 32,279 - 32,279
% 2.430,369 $ 27,623 % 2,158,744

Accumulated Net book

2005 Cost depreciation value
Aircraft - Next-Generation $ 1.619.850 $ 102,914 $ 1516936
Ground property and eguipment 135,217 52,664 82,553
Spare engines and parts - Next-Generation 67,960 8,029 59.931
Buildings 39,636 3,825 358N
Leasehold improvements 6,302 3.992 2310
Other assets under capital lease 2,289 198 2.091
Spare engines and parts - 200-series 12,547 11,128 1.419
Aircraft - 200-series 3,892 2,861 1.031
Aircraft under capital lease 19,475 19,475 -
1,907,168 205,084 1,702,082

Depaosits on aircraft 73,493 - 73,493
Assets under development 27,922 — 27,922
$ 2.008,583 $ 205084 $ 1.803.497

During the year, property and eguipment was acguired at an aggregate cost of $192,000 (2005 - $2,137,000) by
means of capital leases.

During the year the Corporation capitalized $6,849,000 12005 - $3,250,0001 of interest related 1o aircraft financing.

Subsequent to year-end the Corporation announced the suspension of the aiRES project while an amendment
to the contract is negotiated. If the negotialion is unsuccessful, the parties will each be in a position to proceed
with claims against each other. While the Corporation is committed to completing the aiRES project, uncerlainty
deces remain, the outcome of which may impact the future recoverability of the project and may have a significant
impact on the financial statements of future periods. As at Decamber 31, 2006, $31,859,000 2005 - $16,781,000)
is included in assets under development for costs related to the aiRES project.

Included in aircraft costs are estimated lease return costs for Next-Generation aircraft totalling $1,107,000 2005
- $1,107,000] and associated accumulated amortization of $329,000 [2005 - $233,000] for these aircraft under
operating leases. These amounts are being amartized an a straight-line basis over the term ol each lease.

Ouring the year, the Corporation recognized $609,000 (2005 - $NIL) of costs previously capitalized for winglet
certification on the 737-600 series aircraft in maintenance expense as a resutt of the abandonment of the winglet
program on these aircraft. In addition, the Corporation expensed $1,233,000 (2005 - $1,126,000} of aircratt paris
deemed to be beyond economic repair which were also included in maintenance expense.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

WestJet Airlines Ltd,

Years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005
|Tabular Amounts are Slated in Thousands of Dollars, Except Share and Per Share Data)

2. Property and equipment lcontinued):

The Corporation has entered into agreernents to sell cerlain spare engines and aircraft parts lo an unrelated
third party. At December 31, 2004, these engines and parts have been taken out of revenue generating service
and are included al their net book value in current assets, as assets held for sale. These transactions were
completed in early 2007,

3. Other assets:

2004 2005

Financing fees $ 45892 $ 50,010
Security deposits and other leaseholds 43,263 31,204
Hedge settlements 19,479 19,479
Other amounts 2,097 1,899
Accumulated amortization (19,016} [12,573]
$ 111,715 $ $0,019

Financing fees are related to the facilities for the purchase of the Boeing Next-Generation aircralt and hedge
settlements relate Lo certain leased Boeing Next-Generatior aircraft. Amortization of financing fees totalling
$5,016,000 (2005 - $3.673,000) has been included in depreciation and amortizaticn and amertization of hedge
setilements totalling $1,427,000 {2005 - $1,391,000] has been included in aircraft leasing for the year ended
December 31, 2006,
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4. Long-term debt:

2006 2005
$1,709,467,000 in 45 individual term loans, amortized on a straight-line basis over a
12-year term, repayable in quarterly principal instalments ranging from $474,000 to
$955,000, including fixed interest at a weighted average rate of 5.31%, maturing between
2014 and 2018. These facilities are guaranteed by the Ex-Im Bank and secured by 32 700-
series aircraft and 13 400-series aircraft. $ 1,393,439 $ 1,114,504
$35,000,000 in three individual term loans, repayable in monthly instalments ranging from
$104,000 and $166.000 including floating interest at the bank's prime rate plus 0.88%
with an effective interest rate of 4.88% at December 31, 2006, maturing between 2008
and 2011, secured by three Next-Generation flight simulators. 26,223 19,618
$12,000,000 term loan, repayable in monthly instalments of $108,000 including interest
at 9.03%, enaturing April 2011, secured by the Calgary hangar facility. 10,426 10,767
$16,9468,000 in 24 individual term loans, amortized on a straight-line basis over a five-year
term, repayable in quarterly principalinstaiments ranging from $29,000 to $47,000 including
floating interest at the Canadian LIBOR rate plus 0.08%, with a weighted average effective
interest rate of 4.35% at Decemnber 31, 2006, maturing between 200% and 2011, guaranteed
by the Ex-lm Bank and secured by certain 700-series and 400-series aircraft. 11,699 10,462
$4,550,000 term loan, repayable in monthly instalments of $30,000, including floating
interest at the bank's prime rate plus 0.50%, with an effective interest rate of 6.50% as at
December 31, 2006, maturing April 2013, secured by the Calgary hangar facility. 3.069 3.484
1,444,856 1,158,834
Less current portion 153,720 114,115
$ 1,291,134 $ 1,044,719

The net book value of the property and equipmen? pledged as collateral for the Corporation’s secured borrowings
was $1,964,139,000 as at December 31, 2004 (2005 - $1,549,107,0001.

Held within the special-purpose entities, as described in note 1, are liabilities of $1,743,984,000 (2005 -
$1,392,629,000) and corresponding assets of $1,744,291,000 (2005 - $1,393,801,000), which are included in the
consolidated financial statements.

Future scheduled repayments of long-term debt are as follows:

2007 $ 153720
2008 161,425
2009 145,593
2010 144,877
2011 157,466
2012 and thereafier 681,775

$ 1,444,858
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

WestJet Airlines Ltd.

Years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005
[Tabular Amounts are Steted in Thousands of Dollars, Except Share and Per Share Datal

4. Long-term debt [continued}:

46

During 2006, the Corporation acquired 12 aircraft supparted by loan guarantees from the Export-Import Bank of
the United States (Ex-Im Bankl. In 2005, the Corporation completed financing arrangements for US $384.1 millien
for the purchase of seven zircraft delivered in 2005 and six aircraft delivered between February and June 2004,
In 2006, the Corporation completed financing arrangements for US $191.1 million to support the acquisition of
six aircraft delivered between July and December 2006, As at December 31, 2006, the Corporation has accepted
the 12 2006 aircraft deliveries under these facilities and drew a total of CAD $40%.4 million [US $340.6 million),

These facilities were drawn in Canadian dollars, in separate instalments, with five- and 12-year terms for trve
satellite television equipment and new aircraft, respeclively, Each lean is amartized on a straight-line basis over
the respective terms in quarterly principal instalments, and interest is calculated on the outstanding balance.

As at December 31, 2004, the Corporation has an unutilized and uncancelled balance of a final commitment from
Ex-Im Bank totatling US $1 million for the purchase of live satellite television systems. The Corporation also
has a total preliminary commitment from Ex-Im Bank for US $240.2 million for seven aircraft 1o be delivered
in 2007 and 2008.

The Corporation will be charged a commitment fee of 0.125% per annum on the unutilized and uncancelled
balance of the Ex-Im Bank facility, payable at specified dates and upon delivery of an aircraft, and is charged a
3% exposure fee on the financed portion of the aircralt price, payable upon delivery of an aireraft.

The Corporation has available two facitities with a Canadian chartered bank totalling $15.000.000 [2005 -
$8,000,000) for letters of guarantee. At Decernber 31, 2004, letters of guarantee totalling 42,858,000 |2005 -
$6,830,000) have been issued under this facility. These facilities are secured by a general security agreement,
an assignment of insurance proceeds and $1,858,000 of cash.

Other liabilities:

Included in other liabilities is $4,000,000 (2005 - $8,000,000) of unearned revenue related to the BMO Mosaik®,
AIR MILES®, Mastercard® credit card for future net retail sales and far bounty on newly activated credit cards.
During the year ended December 31, 2004, the Corporation recognized $2,000,000 (2005 - $2,000,000] of this
unearned revenue, The remaining unearned revenue balance will be recognized during the next two years with
$3,000,000 earned in 2007 and $3,000,000 in 2008.

At December 31, 2004, included in other liabilities are deferred gains from the sale and leaseback of aircraft
totalling $7,007,000 12005 - $7.875.000), net of amortization, which are being deferred and amortized over the
lease term with the amortization included in aircraft leasing. During the year ended December 31, 2006, the
Carporation recognized amortization of $868,000 2605 - $604,000).

tn 2006, the Corporation has also included in cther liabilities $1,107,000 [2005 - $1,107,000) pertaining to the
estimated lease return costs on its Next-Generation leased aircraft.
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& Leases:

The Corporation has entered into operaling leases and agreements for aircraft, buildings, computer hardware and
software licenses and satellite programming, as well as capital leases relating to ground handling equipment.
The obligations are as follows [see note 10 for additionat commitments):

Capital leases Operating leases
2007 $  44d $ 102,375
2008 L44 118,338
2009 LL4 137.906
2010 698 141,627
201 38 139,453
2012 and thereafter - 538,092
Total lease payments 2,058 $ 1,237,791
Less weighted average imputed interest at 5.29% 12291
Net minimum lease payments 1.83%
Less current portion of ohligations under capilal lease 1358]
Obligations under capital lease $ 1483

The Corporation has certain operating leases primarily related to aircraft that are denominated in US dollars.
The US-dotlar amounts of these operating leases, which have been inciuded at their Canadian-dollar equivalent

above, are as follows:

2007 $ 74430
2008 92,673
2009 114,343
2010 119.154
2011 119.067
2012 and thereafier 500,035

$ 1.021.702

The Corporation has commitled lo lease an additional 11 737-70C aircrak and two 737-800 aircralt o be delivered
between 2007 and 2009, for terms ranging between eight and 10 years, in US dollars. These amounts have been
included at their Canadian- and US-dollar equivalents in the above tables.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

WestJet Airlines Ltd.

Years ended December 34, 2004 and 2005
{Tabular Amounts are Stated in Thousands of Doltars, Except Share and Per Share Datal

7. Share capital:

48

{al Authorized:

Unlimited number of common voting shares:

The commaon voting shares may be owned and controlted by Canadians only and shall confer the right (o one
vote per common voling share at all meelings of shareholders of the Corporation.

Each issued and outstanding comman voting share shalt be converted inte one variable voting share
automatically and without any further act of the Corporation or the helder, if such commeon voting share
becomes owned or controlled by a parson who is nat a Canadian.

Unlimited number of variable voting shares:

The variable voting shares may be owned and controlled anly by persons who are not Canadians and are
entitied to one vate per variable voting share unless (i the number of issued and outstanding variable valing
shares exceed 25% of the total number of all issued and outstanding variable voting shares and common
voting shares [or any greater percentage the Governor in Council may specify pursuant to the Canada
Transportation Act], or lil] the total number of votes cast by or on behalf of the holders of variable voting
shares at any meeting on any matter on which a vote is to be taken exceeds 25% [or any greater percentage
the Governor in Council may specify pursuant to the Canada Transportation Act] of the total number of votes
that may be cast at such meeting.

If either of the above-noted thresholds are surpassed at any time, the vote attached 1o each variable voting
share will decrease automatically without further act of formality. Under the circumstances described above,
the variable voling shares as a class cannot carry more than 25% lor any greater percentage the Governor
in Council may specify pursuant to the Canada Transportation Act] of the total voting rights attached to
the aggregate number of issued and outstanding variable voting shares and common voling shares of the
Carporation.

Under the circumstances described above, the variable voting shares as a class cannot, for a given
shareholders’ meeting, carry more than 25% for any greater percentage the Governor in Council may specify
pursuant to the Canada Transportation Act) of the total number of votes that may be cast at the meeting.

Each issued and outslanding variable voting share shall be automatically converted into one common voting
share without any further inlervention on the part of the Corporation or of the holder if [ the variable voting
share is or becomes owned and controtled by a Canadian; or if (il the provisions contained in the Canada
Transportation Act relating to foreign ownership restrictions are repealed and not replaced with other similar
provisions in applicable legislation.

Unlimited number of non-veoting shares and
Unlimited number of non-voting first, second and third preferred shares:

The non-voting shares and the non-voting preferred shares are subject to limitations to be fixed by the
Board of Direclors.

Issued and outstanding:

On August 30, 2005, the Corporation's cammon shares were restructured into two classes of shares: commaon
voting shares and variable voting shares [collectively, the "voling shares” or "shares”|. Each issued and
outstanding comman share which was not owned and controlled by a Canadian within the meaning of
the Canada Transporiation Act was converted into one variable voling share and the common share was
cancelled. Each issued and outstanding common share which was owned and controlled by a Canadian
within the meaning of the Canada Transpartation Act was converted into one common voting share and the
common share was cancelled.
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7. Share capital {continued):

{b] Issued and outstanding {continued):

2004 2005
Number Ammount Number Amount

Common and variable voling shares:

Balance, beginning of year 129,575,099 $ 429,613 125,497,407 $ 390,469
Exercise of options 73,589 — 1333791 3.389
Stock-based compensation

expense on stock options exercised — 1,642 - 488
Issued from treasury [see note 7[e)) - — 2,743,901 35410
Share issuance costs - (10) - [215]
Tax benefit of issue costs — 3 - 72

Balance, end of year 129,648,688 $ 431248 129,575,099 $ 429,613

As at December 31, 2005, the number of common voling shares and variable voting shares amounted to

124,495,951 (2005 - 119,378,637] and 5,152,737 12005 - 10,194,462} respectively.

{c] Stock Option Plans:

The Corparation has Stock Option Plans, whereby up to a maximurm of 12,957,831 common and variable voting

shares may be issued to officers and employees of the Corporalion subject to the following limitations:

(i} the number of voting shares reserved for issuance 10 any one optionee will nol exceed 5% of the issued

and outstanding commen and variable voting shares at any time;

(i} the number of voting shares reserved for issuance 1o instders shall not exceed 10% of the issued and

outstanding common and variable voting shares; and

(iiil  the number of voling shares issuable under the Stock Option Plans, which may be issued within a

one-year period, shall not exceed 10% of the issued and outstanding common and variable voting
shares at any time.

Stock options are granted at a price that equals the market value, have a term of four years and vest on

either the first, second or third anniversary from the date af grant.

Changes in the number of options, with their weighted average exercise prices, are summarized below:

2006 2005
Weighted Weighted
Number of average Number of average
options exercise price options exercise price

Siock options outstanding, begirning of year 11,428,718 $ 1394 10,682,082 $ 12.37

Granted 5,980,460 11.82 4,474,184 14.46

Exercised {433,129} 11.21 [3,506,625] 9.82

Cancelled (332,711} 13.19 (147,309) 14.53

Repurchased - — (66,724) 11.5%

Expired {1,597,337| 13.78 (6,801 13.79

Stack options outstanding, end of year 15,046,201 $ 132 11428718 $ 13.94

Exercisable, end of year 4 BL6.2346 % 13.63 3,920,623 $ 122
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

WestJet Airlines Ltd.

Years ended Decemnber 31, 2006 and 2005
{Tabular Amounts are Stated in Thousands of Dollars, Excepl Share and Per Share Datal

7. Share capital [continued):

{e} Stock Option Plans [continued):

The following table summarizes the optiens outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2006:

Outstanding options Exercisable options
Weighted

average Weighted Weighted
Range of Number remaining average Number average
exercise prices cutstanding life lyears} exercise Price exercisable exercise Price
$9.764-$11.28 2,283,929 0.44 $ 1119 2,222,540 $ 1121
$11.81 - $13.80 5944711 331 11.84 63,045 1212
$14.13-$18.41 6.817.561 1.94 15.08 2,554,651 15.78
15,046,201 2.25 $ 13 4,846,236 $ 13.43

Under the terms of the Corporation's Staock Option Plans, a cashless settlement alternative is available
whereby option holders can either (a| elect to receive shares by delivering cash to the Corporation or (b] elect
1 receive a number of shares equivalent 1o the difference between the market value of the options and the
aggregate exercise price. For the year ended December 31, 2006, option hotders exercised 433,129 (2005 -
3,151,923) opticns on a cashless settlement basis and received 73,589 (2005 - 979,089) shares.

In 2005, certain executives holding totai options of 6,724, at an exercise price of $11.99, offered the
Corporation an cppertunity io purchase and cancel their oplions in consideration of payment by the
Corporation in cash for a fixed price of $320,000. The agreements were accepted by the Corporation and
the options were cancelled.

[dl Per share amounts:

The following table summarizes the shares used in calculating net earnings per share:

2006 2005

Weighted average number of shares outstanding - basic 129,585,403 128,031,694
Etfect of dilutive employee stock opticns 124,321 392,408

. Weighted average number of shares cutstanding - diluted 129.709.724 128,424,102

Far the year ended Decemnber 31, 2004, a total of 12,823,662 [2005 - 8,672,329] options were not included in
the calculation of dilutive potential shares as the result would be anti-dilutive.

{e) Employae Share Purchase Plan:

The Corporation has an Employee Share Purchase Plan (ESPP] whereby the Corparation matches every
dollar centributed by each employee. Under the terms of the ESPP, employees may centribute up to a
maximum of 20% of their gross pay and acquire voting shares of the Corporation at the current fair market
value of such shares.

The Corporation has the option to acguire voting shares on behalf of employees threugh open market
purchases or to issue new shares from treasury at the current market price. For the period January to October
2003, shares under the ESPP were issued from treasury at the current market price. Subsequent 1o this
period and continuing throughout 2004, the Corporaticn elected to purchase these shares through the apen
market and will continue to review this option in the future. For the year ended December 31, 2006, $NIL {2003
- %$35,410,000) of voting shares were issued from treasury, of which $NIL (2005 - $17,705,000] represented
the Corporation’s matching contribution for employee contributions, for which no cash was exchanged.
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7. Share capita! [continued):

(e] Employee Share Purchase Plan: [continued]:
Current market price for voting shares issued from treasury is delermined based on weighted average trading

price of the voting shares on the Teronto Stack Exchange for the five trading days preceding the issuance.

Shares acguired for the ESPP are held in trust for one year. Employees may cffer to sell voting shares, which
have not been held for at least one year, on January 1 and July 1 of each year, to the Carporation for 50% of
the then current market price.

The Corporation’s share of the contributicns is recerded as compensation expense and amounted to
$28,209,000 {2005 - $23,690,0001.
Ifl Stock-based compensation:

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-5choles option pricing
model. The following weighted average assumptions were used to determine the fair market value of options
granted during the years ended December 31:

2004 2005
Weighted average fair market value per optian $ 429 $ 52
Average risk-free interest rate 4.2% 3.4%
Average volatility 42% 4L3%
Expected lile [years) 346 3.7
Dividend per share $ 0.00 $ 000
The Corporation has not incorporated an estimated farfeiture rate for stock options that will not vest. Rather,
the Corporation acceunts for actual forfeitures as they occur.
Employee stock oplion compensation expense is included in flight operations and general and administration
expenses and totalled $21,205,000 (2005 - $17,404,000, net of repurchase of $320,000 as noted in 7(c]).

[g] Contributed surplus:

Changes to contributed surplus were as follows:

2006 2005
Balance, beginning of year $ 39,093 $ 21977
Stock-based compensation expense 21,205 17.604
Stock options exercised [1.6421 (488}
Balance, end of year $ 58,656 $ 39.093
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

WestJet Airlines Ltd.

Years ended December 31, 2005 and 2005
[Tabular Amounts are Stated in Thousands of Dollars, Except Share and Per Share Data)

8. Income taxes:

The provision for income taxes differs from that which would be expected by applying the combined federal and
provincial statutory rates.

A reconciliation of the difference is as follows:

2006 2005
Earnings before income taxes $ 164481 $ 51,975
Income tax rate 34.21% 35.04%
Expected income tax provisien 56,269 18,212
Add [deduct]:
Non-deductible expenses 1,440 1.27¢9
Norn-deductible stock-based compensation 7.24% 5,208
Non-taxable portion of capitat gains [128] [1,470)
Effect of 1ax rate changes [16.901] 11.426]
Large corporattons tax and capital taxes 3192 6,05%
Other [1.318] [828]
$  49.805 $ 27.974
The Corporation has included in its reconciliation an amount ol $14,901,000 (2005 - $1,426,000) that reflects
the effect of tax rate changes. This balance inclugdes a reduction 1o the Corporation’s future tax liability totalling
$11,333,000 (2005 - $NIL) as a result of the federal government and various provinces, in which the Corporation
operates, enacting legislation during the second quarter of 2006 that reduced the federal and provincial statutory
income tax rates. This amount also includes for 2006 $5,568,000 (2005 - $1,424,000) of 1ax rate changes required
to reconcile the Corporations” combined current federal and provincial statutory rates to the Corporalion’s
anticipated future federal and provincial tax rates.
The components of the net future tax liability are as follows:
2006 2005
Future income tax asset:
Share issue costs $ 581 $ 1,368
Non-capital losses 89,017 44,448
Deferred partnership loss 12,466 52,831
Future income tax liability: .
Property and equipment [251,347) 1201,298)
$ [149.283) $ 102,651

The Corporatien has recognized a benefit on $291.7 million of non-capital losses which are available for carry
forward to reduce taxable income in future years. These tosses will begin to expire in the year 2014.

The non-capital losses recognized result from tax deductions taken in excess of taxable earnings. The Corporation
has the ability to adjust tax deductions tc avoid losses from expiry.
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9. Cash flow information:

lal Change in non-cash working capital from operations:

2006 2005
Increase [decrease] in accounts receivable $ 14.623) $ 4,792
Decrease lincrease)] income taxes recoverable a9 [11,055]
Decrease [increase) in prepaid expenses and deposits 1,01% (6,253
Increase in inventory {1.941) 877)
Increase in accounis payable and accrued liabilities 21,105 8,147
Increase in advance (icket sates 21,293 45,459
Increase in non-refundable guest credits 7.6%4 6,110
Other non-cash items 929 [53)
$ 43,707 $ 46,290
[6] Supplemental cash flow infarmation:
As at December 31, 2006, cash and cash equivalents includes short-term investments of $316,951,000
{2005 - $219,030,000).
Ag at December 31, 2006, the Corporation had US-dollar cash and cash equivalents totalling US $32,019,000
(2005 - US $35,453,000).
As at December 31, 2006, cash and cash equivalents include US $5,279,000 (2005 - $6,470,000) and CAD
44,858,000 {2005 - $NIL) of restricted cash. US $186,000 (2005 - US $153.000] is cash not yet remitted for
passenger facility charges.
Cash interest paid during the year was $47,077,000 (2005 - $54,488,0001.
Cash taxes paid during the year were $3,081,000 (2005 - $10,151,000].
10. Commitments and contingencies:
(a! Aircraft:
The Corporation has remaining commitments to purchase six 737-700s and one 737-800 1o be delivered
over the ¢ourse of 2007 and 2008.
The Cerporation has an agreement with Live TV {e instatl, maintain and operate live satellite television on
all aircraft with the ability to cancel installing the system on future aircralt deliveries, subject to certain
applicable penalties, This agreement contains an exclusivity clause which expires on July 1, 2009.
The Corporation has signed an agreement with Bell ExpressVu for a seven-year term to provide satellite
programming. The agreement commenced in 2004 and can be renewed for an additional five years.
The remaining estimated amounts to te paid in deposits and purchase prices in US dollars relating to the
purchases of the remaining aircraft, live satellite television systems and winglets are as loliows:
2007 $ 153,255
2008 101,330
2009 5.343
$ 259,928
53
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

WestJet Airlines Ltd.

Years ended Decemnber 31, 2006 and 2005
[Tabular Amounis are Stated in Thousands of Dollars, Except Share and Per Share Datal

10. Commitments and contingencies (continued):

[b] Employee profit share:
The Cerporation has an employee profit sharing plan whereby eligible employees participate in the pre-tax operating income
of the Corporation. The profit share ranges from a minimum of 10% to a maximum of 20% of earnings before employee profit
share and income taxes. The amcunts paid under the plan are subject to prior approval by the Board of Directors.

le] Contingencies:

On April 4, 2004, Air Canada commenced a lawsuit against the Corporation. Air Canada claimed damages in the amount of
$220 million in an amendment to its Statement of Claim. On May 29, 2006, as a full settlement, the Corporation agreed {o pay
Air Canada’s investigation and litigation costs incurred of $5.5 million and accepted Air Canada's request that the Corporation
make a donation in the amount of $10 million in the name of Air Canada and the Corporatien to children’s charities across the
country. Air Canada accepted the Corporation’s apolegy and withdrew its claims in light of this setilement. All legal proceedings
between the parties have been terminated. These amounts and other settlement costs totalling $15,600,000 have been paid
as at Cecemnber 31, 2004, and have been included in non-recurring expenses.

A Statement of Claim was also filed by Jetsgo Corporation in the Ontarto Superior Court on October 15, 2004, against the
Corporation, an officer, and a former officer {the "Defendants”]. The principal altegations are that the Defendants conspired
together to unlawfully ebtain Jetsge's proprietary information and to use this proprietary infermation to harm Jetsgo and
benefit the Corparation. The Plaintiff ts seeking damages in an amount to be determined plus $50 million, but the Plaintiff
has provided no details or evidence to substantiate its claim, On May 13, 2005, Jetsgo Corporation declared bankruptey. As a
result, this action has been stayed and no further steps can be taken in the litigation unless a court order is ottained.

The Corporation is party to other legal proceedings and claims that arise during the ordinary course of business. It is the
opinion of management that the ultimate outcome of these and any outstanding matters will not have a material effect upon
the Carporation’s financial position, resutts of operations or cash flows.
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11. Financial instruments and risk management:

{al Fuel risk management:

[b

le

ld

le

The Corparation periodically utilizes short-term and long-term financial and physical derivative instruments to mitigate its
exposure to fluctuations in jet fuel prices and accounts for these derivatives as cash flow hedges. For the year ended December
31, 2004, the Corporation recognized a net loss of $2.223.000 (2005 - et gain of $155.000) in aircraft fuel resulting frem hedging
transactions. As at December 31, 2004, the Corperation has no outstanding jet fuel hedges.

Foreign currency exchange risk:

The Corporation is exposed to fereign currency fluctuations as certain ongoing expenses are referenced to US-dollar
denominated prices, The Corporation perindically uses financial instruments, including foreign exchange forward contracts
and options, to manage its exposure.

The Corporation has entersd into a coniract to purchase US $2.5 million per month at a forward rate of 1.11 for the payment
period from October 2006 to March 2007 to hedge a portion of the Corporation’s committed US-dollar lease paymenis during
the same period. This contract has been designated as a fair value hedge for accounting purpases. The estimated fair market
value of the remaining contract as at December 31, 2006, is a gain of CAD $369,000.

Interest rate risk:

The Corporation is exposed to interest rate fluctuations on variable interest rate debt [see note 4).

Credit risk:

The Corporation does not believe it is subject to any significant conceniration of credit risk. Most of the Corporation’s receivables
result from tickets sold to individual guests through the use of major credit cards and travel agents. These receivables are
short term, generally being settled shortly after the sale. The Corporation manages the credit exposure related to financial
instruments by selecting counter parties based on credit ratings, limiting its exposure to any single counter party, and
manitoring the market position of the program and its relative market positicn with each counter party.

Fair value of financial instruments:

The carrying amounts of financial instruments included in the balance sheet, other than long-term debt, approximate their
fair value due to their short term to maturity.
At Decemnber 31, 2006, the fair value of long-term debt was approximately $1.5 billion (2005 - $1.2 billion). The fair value of long-

term gebt is determined by discounting the future contractual cash flows under current financing arrangements at discount
rates which represent borrowing rates presently available to the Corporation for loans with similar terms and maturity.

2006 { WestJet Annual Report

65 |




L2 - 3R] 2

Form 52-109F1 - Certification of Annual Filings

I, Vite Culmone, WestJef Airlines Ltd., Executive Vice President, Finance, Chief Financial Officer, cerify that:

1.

5.

| have reviewed the annual filings (as this term is defined in Multilateral Instrument 52-109 Certification of
Disclosure in fssuers’ Annual and Interim Filings) of Westdet Airlines Ltd. (the issuer) for the period ending
December 31, 2006,

- Based on my knowledge, the annual filings do not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to

state a material fact required to be stated or that is necessary to make a statement not misleading in light of
the circumstances under which it was made, with respect to the period covered by the annual filings;

Based on my knowledge, the annual financial staterments together with the other financial information
included in the annual filings fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows of the issuer, as of the date and for the periods presented in the annual filings;

The issuer's other certifying officers and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures and internal contro! over financial reporting for the issuer, and we have:

a) designed such disciosure controls and procedures, or caused them to be designed under our
supenvision, to provide reasonable assurance that material information relating to the issuer,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which the annual filings are being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused it to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial repoerting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with the issuer's GAAP;
and

c} evaluated the effectiveness of the issuer's disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the
period covered by the annual filings and have caused the issuer to disclose in the annual MD&A
our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of
the period covered by the annual filings based on such evaluation; and

| have caused the issuer to disclose in the annual MD&A any change in the issuer's internal control over
financial reporting that cccurred during the issuer's most recent interim period that has materially affected, or
is reasonabty likely to materially affect, the issuer's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 21, 2007

| (signed) Vito Culmone

Vito Culmone, CA

Executive Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer




